
Contact: Meryl Lawrence, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 01633 656656 
E-mail: scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: 21 February 2018 
 
 

Agenda 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 

 
Date: Wednesday, 28 February 2018 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Venue: Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre 
 
To: Councillors M Rahman (Chair), D Davies, Y Forsey, R Hayat, M Linton, S Marshall, 

R Mogford, T Suller and K Whitehead 
 

 
 
Item   
1   Agenda in Welsh  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
 

2   Apologies for Absence   
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

 

4   Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 January 2018  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 

5   Education Achievement Service Business Plan 2018-2021  (Pages 13 
- 106) 
There is a Glossary of Terms for the Business Plan on Page 60 
 

 

6   Draft Violence against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 
Strategy  (Pages 107 - 152) 
 

 

7   Forward Work Programme Update  (Pages 153 - 158) 
 

 

8   Evaluation of the Meeting   
 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:scrutiny@newport.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  

Person cyswllt:  Meryl Lawrence, Swyddog Trosolwg a Chraffu 
Ffôn:  01633 656656 
E-bost: scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Dyddiad cyhoeddi: 21 Chwefror 2018 

Agenda 
Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad – Partneriaethau 
 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 28 Chwefror 2018 
 
Amser:  5 y.p. 
 
Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 – Canolfan Dinesig  
 
Y Cynghorwyr: M Rahman (Cadeirydd), D Davies, Y Forsey, R Hayat, M Linton, S Marshall, R Mogford, 

T Suller and K Whitehead. 
 

 
 
Eitem       
 
 
1. Agenda yn Gymraeg 

 
2. Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 

 
3. Datganiadau o Fuddiant 

 
4. Cofnodion y Cyfarfod a 10 Ionawr 2018 

 
5. Cynllun Busnes Gwasanaeth Cyrhaeddiad Addysgol 2018 – 21 

 
6. Strategaeth Drafft Deddf Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Cam-drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol 

 
7. Y Diweddariad o’r Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol  

 
8. Gwerthusiad o'r Cyfarfod 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1

mailto:scrutiny@newport.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 

 
Date: 10 January 2018 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Present: Councillors M Rahman (Chair), D Davies, Y Forsey, S Marshall, T Suller and 

K Whitehead 
 
In Attendance: Will Godfrey (Chief Executive), Keir Duffin (Community Development Manager), 

Rhys Cornwall (Head of People and Business Change), Tracy McKim 
(Partnership Policy & Involvement Manager), Emma Wakeham (Senior Policy & 
Partnership Officer) and Meryl Lawrence (Overview and Scrutiny Officer) 

 
 Will Beer (Public Health Wales), Chief Inspector David Morgan (Gwent Police), 

Andy Robinson (Natural Resources Wales), Jeff Scrivens (South Wales Fire and 
Rescue Service). 

 
Apologies: Councillors R Hayat and M Linton 
 

 
 
1 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 
 

2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 November 2017  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2017 were considered.  Councillor Marshall 
advised that at the bottom of page 6, mention of court declaration costs had been omitted. 
 
Agreed: 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2017 were approved as an accurate record of 
the meeting, subject to the above. 
 

3 Single Integrated Plan (SIP) Performance Update Quarter 2  
 
Invitees; 

- Will Godfrey (Chief Executive for Newport Council) 
- Keir Duffin (Head of Regeneration Housing & Investment (RH&I) for Newport 

Council  
- William Beer - Public Health Wales Lead Officer 
- Chief Inspector David Morgan – Gwent Police 

 
The Chief Executive introduced the Quarter 2 performance update for the Single Integrated 
Plan (SIP) to the Committee. It was explained that this was a transition period from the SIP 
that would be replaced by the Wellbeing Plan. It was noted that many of the underlying 
themes within the SIP priorities were evident in the emerging priorities within the draft 
Wellbeing Plan. The Committee was being presented with an update on the progress being 
made against the three themes.   

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 
Economy and Skills Theme: 

 
The Head of Regeneration, Housing and Investment gave apologies for the Strategic 
Director - Place, and presented an overview of the progress being made within this theme.   
 
Members discussed how the performance measures were set, and how it was ensured that 
the targets were set at an appropriate level to make them challenging.  
 
The Committee enquired whether long term unemployed had been included in the 
performance dashboard, as well as the number of young people Not in Education, 
Employment and Training (NEETs), and outlined the importance of addressing the issue of 
long term employment as a priority.   
 
Members were advised that those that had been close to employment and sustaining 
employment were now currently employed.  Employment in Newport was at a 25 year high, 
and it was hoped that the Workplace Academy had played in a role in those figures. In 
addition, a programme was in place with the Department for Work and Pensions for those 
unemployed for 6 months or more, and its success in the Newport area was the second 
highest across the UK.  
 
In-work poverty was discussed, and how the inability to afford rent payments and cost of 
living could affect mental health. Members queried as to how the partners engage with those 
at risk of in-work poverty, to assist them with managing finances. The Head of Regeneration 
Investment and Housing advised that there was a good working relationship with the 
Newport Credit Union in relation to this matter and that 7 barriers were being addressed as 
part of the partnership working, including housing, drugs & alcohol, mental health and 
financial concerns. It was explained that most clients usually had between 4 and 5 of the 
barriers, and so a programme was developed around their specific situation. The Health and 
Wellbeing Lead also advised of the links between other partners in addressing this problem, 
such as GPs who may be treating a patient for mental health issues, who may have 
underlying issues with debt management. The importance of a partnership approach to 
addressing this was stressed, as the issue was rarely down to a single contributory factor.  
 
Health and Wellbeing Theme: 
         
Shisha Update: 
 
The Public Health Wales Officer updated the Committee upon information previously 
requested by the Committee regarding the use of Shisha. It was advised that current 
regulations would not prevent Shisha bars opening in Newport, but they had to demonstrate 
compliance with Smoke Free Environments Legislation and couldn’t be housed in enclosed 
public buildings.  Any Business wishing to set up a Shisha Bar needed to consider 
application to and compliance with: Planning Regulations; Building Regulations; Licensing 
Acts; Food Business Regulations and HM Revenue and Customs Plain Packaging and 
Tobacco Warning labels requirements.  Due to the number of organisations that need to be 
contacted such as Planning, Building Control and Revenue and Customers it was not easy to 
open up a Shisha bar.   Members were advised that if they had any concerns to contact 
Trading Standards, Planning and Environmental Health.  
 
Performance Update: 
 
The Health & Wellbeing Theme Lead Officer introduced the Performance Dashboard and 
presented an overview of performance to date. 
 
Members queried the Physical Activity Plans and whether they would achieve the same 
participation rates as Scotland. It was also queried what the statutory responsibility was 

Page 6



 

within the Local Development Plan for the Council to have open space. The Lead Officer 
advised that one of the priorities within the draft Well-being plan was making Newport a 
much more active city and to improve walking and cycling in the city. Following engagement 
with schools Primary schools offer a “walking bus” to encourage walking a mile a day. 
Although problems with litter, lighting and damage to pavements could present a barrier to 
people utilising public spaces, a big part of the Well-being plan would be to make alternatives 
accessible.  Members were also advised that an assessment for green space is done as part 
of the Local Plan. 
 
Safe and Cohesive Theme: 
 
The Chief Inspector gave a brief overview of the performance of the PSB in achieving the 
objectives within this theme. Specific mention was made to the ‘Mini Police’ initiative and the 
roll out of Scan Analyse Respond and Assess (SARA).  
 
A Member referred to knife crime and the view that a cultural change was needed to 
influence positive change in this area. Members enquired as to whether in the Officer’s 
opinion this change was possible. The Chief Inspector agreed with this statement, however 
clarified that this would require effective work between the partners.  
 
The success of the Pill Public Space Protection Order was mentioned and there had been 
evidence of a reduction of knife crime since the order was implemented.  The partners 
indicated that the partnership approach to dealing with the issues in Pill would be used to 
develop approaches for similar issues within other areas of the city.  
 
Comment was made about the difficulties young people with criminal records have finding 
work with the NHS. The Chief Inspector advised that restorative justice helped to provide 
learning for those looking to change their future.  
 
Members praised the achievements and progress the Partnership was making towards this 
objective. The Chief Executive advised the Members that the Partnership would succeed or 
fail based on the individual members’ acceptance to share and achieve the collective 
outcomes. It was explained that the Partnership had achieved a better dialogue between the 
partners and greater understanding of how it could work together to achieve collective goals.  
 
Members asked what barriers the Partnership faces in making further progress.  Theme 
Leads responded:  
- The inability of large organisations to think differently and embrace change to get the 

outcomes needed; 
- Identifying the needs of the population and ensuring the PSB had the necessary 

resources to deliver on its objectives;   
- The change in the skills and economic make-up of the city and importance of developing 

the longer term skills needed for the workforce. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer reminded Members of the role of the Committee in 
considering this Q2 update on the Single Integrated Plan, which was to: 
 

 Take a backward look at how the partnership has performed in Q2 against the 
objectives in the SIP; 

 Assess: 

 How well the PSB has delivered as a collaborative partnership on its 
objectives; 

 How effectively the Partners on the PSB worked together to deliver the SIP; 

 Mitigation actions put in place to address risks and not achieving 
objectives; 

 How the public were engaged with on the SIP, and how feedback has been 
used. 

Page 7



 

Conclusions 
 
The Committee agreed that it was clear there was evidence of cross partnership working and 
keeping the lines of communication open between partners and any improvements were very 
positive for residents of Newport.  
 
While the SIP Performance was being achieved in the main, there was however some 
concern about robustness of targets already being achieved by the end of Quarter 2. 
 
The example of partnership work done in Pill was referred to a lot.  Members would like to 
see some feedback / data upon outcomes from this joint working to identify issues and need 
for an area, what was done to provide solutions and whether it would be a sustainable 
process to use elsewhere. 
 

4 Consultation Draft Well-being Plan 2018-23  
 
Invitees: 

- Rhys Cornwall - Head of People and Business Change; 
- Tracy McKim - Partnership Policy and Involvement Officer; 
- Emma Wakeham - Senior Policy and Partnership Officer; 
- Andy Robinson - Natural Resources Wales; 
- Jeff Scrivens - South Wales Fire and Rescue Service. 

 
The Head of People and Business Change provided the Committee with an overview of the 
consultation process for the Draft Well-being Plan. It was advised that delivery and 
development of the Well-being Plan is a statutory duty and has to be produced and reviewed 
after 12 months. Following the consultation process, the final draft would be approved and 
adopted in May 2018. It was explained that the plan was developed following the Wellbeing 
assessment.  
 
Members discussed sustainable travel including plug in points for electronic cars at Civic 
Offices and at other locations around Newport. The Committee were informed that this was 
currently being looked into. 
 
Members welcomed the strategic plan for all partners, and queried how the plan would be 
measured on a year to year basis to see if it is working. Members were advised that the 
Performance Measurement Framework is to be developed and will be signed off by the 
Public Services Board. Members were also advised that as part of the consultation they 
asked which of the five interventions were the most important to the wellbeing of the city.  
 
The Committee queried how the Well-being Plan would contribute to making a more Equal 
Wales. Members were advised actions in the plan would address aspects like inequality of 
health, preventable diseases and improving health across Wales. 
 
The Committee raised the importance of visitors to Newport and the need to improve 
people’s perceptions to encourage visitors to Newport. Members noted the need for a travel 
plan for sustainable travel, inter-city travel and the need to have the right prices and times 
convenient for people to use.  
 
The Committee discussed references to the Welsh Language in the plan, and Members felt 
that the links between the objectives and welsh language was not made clear within the plan. 
Members were also advised that the intention from the development of the plan had been to 
embed the Welsh Language within the document and thread it through every objective.  
 
Members queried if the partners would be working with a baseline and asked why some 
measures are “number of” and some are “% of”, why have both measures? Members were 
advised that there had been a lot of indicators available nationally and for Newport but they 

Page 8



 

were annual, not quarterly. Consultees were being asked which to prioritise for the first year. 
They were also advised that the measures were taken from what is currently being 
measured.  
 
Members asked on what the accountability arrangements were for the plan, and who the 
PSB were accountable to. Members were advised that the PSB was accountable to Welsh 
Government, and in Legislation and Guidance the Public Service Board must report to 
Scrutiny who had overview of the plan. Each of the statutory bodies would have 
accountability arrangements within their organisations and the success of the PSB would be 
embedded within each of these structures and it was not in any of the partners’ individual or 
collective interest to fail. 
 
Members queried how the objective outcomes were to be measured. The Committee were 
advised that data was available for some of the objectives, but there would be some 
indicators that would need to be developed.  Members asked if the data that was being used 
was from Census’ data or has our own data been created. It was advised that work we need 
to start looking at how we are developing indicators. Work is taking place at national level but 
indicators specifically for Newport may be needed to be developed.  
 
It was clarified that the Police were not a statutory partner but were statutory invitees; 
however there is a shared statutory responsibility in Community Safety which is part of the 
regional framework. 
 
It was asked if there had been any discussions with members of the private sector and if so, 
how are they involved. It was advised that there has been involvement in the workshops with 
15 organisations through Newport BID (Business Improvement District) and other 
partnerships, and are looking for wider involvement from the population.  
 
Members queried if something drastically changes in Newport such as large businesses 
moving in, can the plan be revisited. Members were advised that the plan has to be reviewed 
every 5 years but it can be reviewed at any time, at the PSBs discretion. 
 
Members discussed the number of replies in the previous consultation in the Newport 
Citizens Panel and the number of people expected to contribute to this consultation and 
noted that noting that the number seemed small compared to the population of Newport. It 
was clarified that feedback was really good at the wellbeing assessment stage, with more 
than 2000 replies including young people and schools, that fed into the draft Wellbeing Plan 
currently being consulted upon the consultation process was still underway.  
 
The Chair commented on the amount of work required of the partners for the implementation 
of this plan, queried what would be the impact of this on resources and how the partners 
would work together and effectively pool resources. It was advised that these were some of 
the key challenges.  Creating the community profiles had been a huge commitment for all 
partners, and had been the first risk. That had provided confidence that the commitment 
would continue. The next big challenge would be to bring all the information together and 
monitor it to ensure that it produces value for money and making sure everything is being 
done well.  
 
Members raised a number of issues that could impact on the delivery of the Draft Well-being 
Plan including: the City Region Plan; electrification of the railway, Metro, M4 Relief Road etc. 
and queried why there were not included in the Plan.  The Overview and Scrutiny officer 
advised that public transport was included in the Sustainable Travel Integrated Intervention, 
but also clarified that while the issues raised would impact upon Newport, they were not 
deliverable by the PSB partners and this draft plan was the PSB partners’ strategic document 
for things identified they can work together to achieve, following engagement with public and 
consultation with businesses. 
 

Page 9



 

The Overview and Scrutiny Officer reminded Members of the role of the Committee in 
considering this Draft Wellbeing Plan, which was to: 
 

 Take a forward look at what the partnership plans focus on in the Draft Wellbeing 
Plan; 

 Assess: 

 How local objectives have been identified and prioritised;  

 How  the partners have worked together to develop the plan; 

 How the partners plan to work together to achieve the next steps;  

 How the objectives of the individual partners have been reflected and 
integrated into the joint plan.  

 
 
Conclusions / Comments for Public Services Board on  
Consultation Draft Well-Being Plan 
 
The Committee agreed with the Draft Well-being Objectives and that they had open structure 
to sentences and clear to interpret, but they recognised that consultees could have different 
views. 
 
The responses to Members’ questions earlier in the meeting had demonstrated the 
integrated level of partnership working to date. There was a lot of positivity about the 
partners working together and the benefit of keeping lines of communication open and not 
having barriers.  Clearly the partners had already developed a relationship and rapport and 
they had absolutely understood the priorities for the Newport and recognised that it wasn’t   
only about health and social wellbeing, but a holistic approach.  Members hoped that the 
shared resources of Partners would continue. 
 
The Committee thought that it was unclear that Welsh Language was a theme running 
through all proposed integrated interventions and thought that this needed to be clear and 
strengthened in the Plan.   
 
With regard to the steps for each of the integrated interventions, the steps are timed well but 
not yet measurable.  The Plan is aspirational and long term enough but needs to be 
underpinned by measurability to ensure that the ambitions are translated into outcomes.  
There was also concern that some of the measures were a little subjective while others were 
potentially difficult to collect relevant data for, both of which could impact upon how the steps 
translated into action in Newport.  
 
It was unclear how resources from Partners and the Private sector would be utilised and how 
skills in the economic sector would be driven up.  An example was suggested that private 
sector involvement could help address the Recharging of electric vehicles action, as well as 
reaching out to the private sector to address other priorities. 
 
It was suggested that Community Hubs be included in the Plan.  
 

5 Forward Work Programme Update  
 
The Chair referred to the email circulated with the Pre-Meeting Agenda advising Members of 
the Committee that they could contact Scrutiny with any queries on Scrutiny Reports or any 
further information required before the meeting.  Members were reminded of the importance 
of attending an All Member Seminar upon the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
Training sessions on either 6 or 7 February. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer presented the Forward Work Programme to the 
Committee in particular the items scheduled for the next two meetings.   Members requested 

Page 10



 

that the Chair of the Association of Governors, Mr A Speight be invited to the meeting when 
the Committee considers the EAS Governor Support Report. 
 
Members discussed training regarding:  WG Guidance upon PSB Scrutiny, and; statutory 
Education Achievement Service (EAS) reports.  The Senior Overview & Scrutiny Officer 
suggested that training be provided upon relevant sections of guidance or requirements 
applicable to PSB reports, to be scheduled prior to the Committee’s consideration of the item 
and similarly for the relevant EAS reports. 
 
Agreed:  
 
The Committee endorsed the proposed scheduled for the next two Committee meetings, 
confirmed the topics to be considered and requested that the Chair of the Association of 
Governors, Mr A Speight be invited to the meeting when the Committee considered the EAS 
Governor Support Report. 
 

6 Evaluation of Meeting  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer advised that this was a new item upon the  Agenda, the 
purpose of which was to give the Members of the Committee the opportunity to feed back 
constructively about how they felt the meeting had gone, suggest improvements to the 
structure of reports, what worked and what could assist.  
 
Members fed back that: 

 Less time spent on Invitee  presentation to maximise opportunity for questioning invitees 
would be preferable;  

 Agreed that for this Committee all invitees for a report should come to the table together 
as cross cutting questions need answers from multiple invitees. 

 
 
The meeting terminated at 8.50 pm 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Report 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  28 February 2018 
 

Subject Education Achievement Service (EAS) Business Plan 
2018 - 2021 

 

Author  Overview and Scrutiny Officer  

 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

Sarah Morgan Chief Education Officer 

Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director; 
 

Education Achievement Service 
(EAS) Representative 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 

 
 

  

1 Recommendations to the Committee 
  
 The Committee is asked to: 

 
1.1 Note the priorities contained within the Submission of Evidence (Appendix 1), 

EAS Business Plan (Appendix 2) and the Local Authority Specific Annex 
(Appendix 3); 

 
1.2 Consider the impact of the expected outcomes and the specific programme that 

will be implemented during 2018-19 for Newport (contained within Appendix 3); 
 
1.3 Determine if it wishes to make any comment to the Cabinet Member on the 

Business Plan, or any of the specific actions for Newport; 
 

1.4 Acknowledge that as the Performance Scrutiny Committee- People has the role of 
monitoring education performance, the Local Authority Annex (Appendix 3) 
would be shared with that Committee; 

 
1.5 Continue with the EAS reports scheduled for the remainder of this Committee’s 

FWP up to June and consider how the Scrutiny Committee should be involved with 
monitoring the implementation of this plan and Newport’s progress against the 
EAS Business plan during 2018-19, when considering the Annual Forward Work 
Programme for next year at the Committee meeting in July. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2 Context 
 

Background  
 
2.1    The EAS is the school improvement service for the five Local Authorities in the consortium  

      (Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Torfaen).  The role of the EAS is to  
       support, monitor and challenge schools with the purpose of raising education standards in South  
       East Wales.  
 

2.2 The Education Advisory Service (EAS) is required to submit an annual overarching regional 
Business Plan with accompanying annexes for each of the five Local Authorities (LAs). This 
Business Plan (2018-2021) outlines the programme of work that is required to continue to 
accelerate outcomes for children and young people across all schools in South East Wales. The 
plan focuses on the urgent need to raise aspiration and accelerate improvement in pupil 
outcomes, improve the quality of teaching and leadership and build a self-improving system 
within and across schools and settings. The priorities for the Business Plan 2018-2019 have 
been derived from the progress that has been made towards the previous Business Plan and 
progress made across the region with the areas that have been identified as requiring 
improvements through self-evaluation processes and feedback from Estyn on the inspection of 
the EAS.  

   
 Previous Consideration of EAS Business Plan 
 
2.2 Previously, the Education Advisory Service Business Plan for 2017-20 was reported to the 

Learning Caring and Leisure Scrutiny Committee held on 22 March 2017.   
 

 At that meeting, the Principal Challenge Adviser for Newport presented the Education 

Achievement Service Business Plan for 2017-20, including the specific local targets for Newport.  
 

The following points were discussed:  
 

 It was confirmed that the table on page 7 of the business plan (Key Stage 4 L2 including E/W 
& M results 2012-2016) was drawn from raw data, not “value added” figures. Members 
suggested that including additional information to reflect the achievement of pupils, as well as 
their attainment, would provide a more rounded picture of progress.  

 

 A general comment was made regarding the focus on performance indicators, and the need 
to provide meaningful data in reviewing school performance. It was suggested that the 
interpretation of educational standards needed to be re-considered, for measures to reflect 
more accurately the performance of schools in improving achievement levels.  

 

 Concerns were raised that Newport had been performing below the Welsh average for pupil 
attainment for the last 5 years. Officers highlighted that other factors also needed to be taken 
into account when considering school performance, for example the higher than average rate 
of pupils in receipt of free school meals. Welsh Government also set “modelled expectations” 
for each authority, which took into consideration a wider range of factors such as the progress 
made by pupils. It was reported that Newport was currently performing at 1% below its 
modelled expectations.  

 

 Queries were made regarding the percentages of free school meals pupils in specific schools 
in Newport. Officers agreed to report back with this detail.  
 

 It was confirmed that the FPI targets for foundation phase were lower for 2017 because they 
were cohort-specific. It was noted that standards for foundation phase are already high.  

 

 It was noted that St Andrews Primary was no longer in an Estyn follow-up category.  
 

Page 14



 The officers explained how progress against the Business Plan was monitored and reported, 
through an on-going self-evaluation process, and regular communication and challenge 
between the EAS Principal Challenge Advisor for Newport and NCC’s Education 
Management Team. This was fed in to scrutiny through the annual EAS reports, and also the 
Education service plan monitoring reports.  

 

 In response to queries around risk monitoring, Members were directed to the full risk 
information published on the EAS website. It was also suggested that the minutes and 
associated papers from the EAS Audit and Risk Committee could be circulated for information 
to Scrutiny Members in future, to share information and give further context to discussions.  

 
Resolutions and Actions from the Meeting of Learning Caring and Leisure Scrutiny 
Committee held on 22 March 2017: 
 
The Principal Challenge Adviser agreed to report back to the EAS management team on the 
Committee’s suggestion to include “value added” data within the Business Plan.  
 
The Committee requested that Free School Meal percentage figures for all Newport Schools be 
circulated to Committee Members, to give context to future discussions on school performance 
statistics.  
 
No further monitoring was agreed as this would be a matter for the new Committee following the 
election, however annual monitoring of the EAS Business Plan would be included in the 
suggested work programme to be agreed after May. The suggestion to circulate the EAS Audit 
and Risk Committee papers for information would also be included. 

 
2.3 Partnership Committee Terms of Reference  

At the AGM meeting of Council held on 16 May 2017 a new Scrutiny Committee Structure was 
agreed including the Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships, the remit of which 
includes: 

 

 
Holding partnerships to account for their performance. 
 
To include - EAS, Newport Live, Norse, SRS and Joint Commissioning arrangements: 
 

• Performance of the partners against agreed objectives; 
• Effectiveness of governance structures; 
• Undertake formal consultation on key documents as required. 

 
The Committee should therefore focus its questioning on how the consortium is working 
together to create and implement its Business Plan 2018-21 

 

3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached for the Committees consideration: 

 
Appendix 1 – Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny - Managing Director EAS; 
 
Appendix 2 - EAS Business Plan 2018 - 21; 
 
Appendix 3 - Newport Local Authority Specific Annex 2018 - 2019; 
 
Appendix 4 - Mid Year Review of Newport Annex 2017 - 2018 (for information only). 

Page 15



4. Suggested Areas of Focus 

  
Role of the Committee 

 

  
 
 
 Suggested Lines of Enquiry 
 
4.1  In considering / evaluating the EAS Business Plan, the Committee may wish to consider 

focusing questions on: 
 

 How the Consortium sets targets and whether they are robust and achievable? 

 Where targets are not met in the previous year, what is the process that the Consortium 
uses to reset them for future years? 

 What barriers and challenges to improving performance does the Consortium encounter 
and how will these be addressed? 

 How will progress against the Business Plan be monitored and scrutinised? 

 What are the resource implications of delivering on the plan and how does collaborative 
working as a consortium maximise the resources available? 

 What is the process for the approval of the final Business Plan by each LA Partner? 

 How does the Consortium work together as partners to mitigate risks to delivery of the 
Business Plan? 

 
4.2 Estyn Inspections 

In May 2016, Estyn inspected the school improvement services provided by the EAS. In 
September 2017, Estyn visited the EAS to review the progress made by the consortium in 
relation to the recommendations identified in the inspection.  A summary of the judgments made 
by Estyn’s 2017 Inspection Report upon the progress made towards the recommendations made 
in their 2016 Report, is set out below: 

 

Recommendation Estyn Progress 

Judgement 

R1 Consider the use of a wider range of 

performance indicators at school and regional 

level to ensure that the progress of all groups of 

learners is challenged and supported 

Satisfactory Progress 

R2 Improve consistency in the quality of 

evaluation of school improvement activities 

throughout the service 

Strong Progress 

R3 Identify and manage risks more effectively Very Good Progress 

 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to: 

 Consider and provide comments on the Business Plan as part of the consultation 

process; 

 Consider the main strengths and areas for development within Newport, as detailed in 

the Local Authority Annex and to consider how Local Authority services can be aligned to 

meet the ambitious targets within the Business Plan, therefore ensuring all pupils meet 

their full potential; 

 Consider how well the consortium is working in partnership on a regional level. 

Page 16

https://sewales.org.uk/getattachment/Home/FollowUpReport_6924_18-09-2017.pdf.aspx;


In evaluating progress for each recommendation Estyn considered the following 
questions and Members of the Committee may wish to focus on these areas in formulating 
their questions:  
 

 Has the consortium understood the reasons behind the recommendation?  

 Has the consortium taken reasonable action to address the recommendation successfully, 
taking into account its starting point, the time between inspection and follow-up visit as 
well as the complexity of the issues to be addressed?  

 Has the consortium been appropriately supported in addressing the recommendations by 
its partner local authorities?  

 Has the consortium ensured that changes arising from its progress in addressing each 
recommendation have become embedded enough within its working practices to secure 
sustained improvement?  

 

Section B – Supporting Information 

5 Supporting Information 

 
5.1 ‘Qualified for life’  - the national Education Improvement Strategy (2014)  
 

 
 

 
6 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 
6.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan 2017 – 2022; Building on Success - Building a Better Newport 

sets out the following: 
 

Well-being 
Objectives  
 

Promote economic 
growth and 
regeneration whilst 
protecting the 
environment  
 

Improve 
skills, 
educational 
outcomes & 
employment 
opportunities  
 

Enable 
people to be 
healthy, 
independent 
& resilient  
 

Build cohesive 
& sustainable 
communities  
 

Corporate 
Plan 
Commitments 

Thriving City  Aspirational People Resilient 
Communities 

Supporting 
Function 

Modernised Council 

 
  

‘Aim: that every child and young person should benefit from excellent teaching and learning. 
 
To deliver this aim the document sets out four strategic objectives: 
 

1. An excellent professional workforce with strong pedagogy based on an understanding of 
what works. 

2. A curriculum which is engaging and attractive to children and young people and which 
develops within them an independent ability to apply knowledge and skills. 

3. The qualifications young people achieve are nationally and internationally respected and act 
as a credible passport to their future learning and employment.  

4. Leaders of education at every level working together in a self-improving system, providing 
mutual support and challenge to raise standards in all schools. 

Page 17

http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/141001-qualified-for-life-en.pdf


The Aspirational People Commitments within the Corporate Plan that relate to this report are 
as follows: 

 

Ref No.  Commitment: 

6 The Newport Children’s Charter sets out our commitment to children and families, 
including headlines commitments to children in care and care leavers 

7 
 

Three new state of the art schools will be built, tangibly improving student choice and the 
educational offer in the city.  

8 
 

The annual Newport Work Discovery week is established bringing together residents, 
employers and the public sector to connect and raise aspirations. The council commits to 
15 apprenticeships per year as part of this city-wide drive.  

9 
 

Increasing educational and social care capacity, so that fewer than ten children will be 
educated out of the city, and the number of out of county social care placements will 
reduce by 25%  

10 
 

Newport will improve the number of pupils achieving at least five GCSEs A*-C including 
English and Maths in line with the Welsh average.  

 
7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
7.1 General questions 

 How is this Business Plan affected by the new legislation?   

 How will this plan impact upon future generations?  What is the long term impact?   

 What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   

 Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  

 (When published:)  Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan? 
 
7.2 Wellbeing Goals 

 How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the Business Plan? 
o A prosperous Wales 
o A resilient Wales 
o A healthier Wales 
o A more equal Wales 
o A Wales of cohesive communities 
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
o A globally responsible Wales 

 

7.3 Sustainable Development Principles 

 Does the Plan demonstrate how as an Authority we are working in accordance with the 
sustainable development principles from the act when planning services? 

o Long Term 
The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the well-
being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that could 
help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 

Page 18



8. Background Papers 
 

 The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  

 Corporate Plan 

 Report and Minutes of the Learning Caring and Leisure Scrutiny Committee 22 March 2017 

 EAS Website 

 Estyn’s 2017 Inspection Report 

 Welsh Government action plan for Education in Wales: Education in Wales: Our National 
Mission 2017 - 21 

 Report to Annual Council 16 May 2017 upon New Scrutiny Committee Structures 
 
 
Report Completed: 21 February 2018  

Page 19

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s10273/Corporate%20Plan%20-%20Together%20for%20Newport.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/g6654/Public%20reports%20pack%2022nd-Mar-2017%2017.00%20Learning%20Caring%20and%20Leisure%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/g6654/Printed%20minutes%2022nd-Mar-2017%2017.00%20Learning%20Caring%20and%20Leisure%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=1
https://sewales.org.uk/
https://sewales.org.uk/getattachment/Home/FollowUpReport_6924_18-09-2017.pdf.aspx;
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/allsectorpolicies/education-in-wales/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/allsectorpolicies/education-in-wales/?lang=en
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/g6530/Public%20reports%20pack%2016th-May-2017%2017.00%20Council.pdf?T=10


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

1.Background 
 

1.1 The Education Achievement Service (EAS) is required to submit an annual overarching 

regional Business Plan with accompanying annexes for each of the five Local 

Authorities (LAs). This Business Plan (2018-2021) outlines the programme of work that 

is required to continue to accelerate outcomes for children and young people across all 

schools in South East Wales. The plan focuses on the urgent need to raise aspiration 

and accelerate improvement in pupil outcomes, improve the quality of teaching and 

leadership and build a self-improving system within and across schools and settings. 

The priorities for the Business Plan 2018-2019 have been derived from the progress 

that has been made towards the previous Business Plan and progress made across the 

region with the areas that have been identified as requiring improvements through self-

evaluation processes and feedback from Estyn on the inspection of the EAS.  

 

1.2 The delivery model for the Business Plan is on a regional basis, the needs of each 

school and trends within Newport are met through bespoke work with each school. The 

EAS offers a wide range of bespoke support that is based upon best practice. 

 

Expected outcomes 

 

1.3 The Business Plan (Appendix 2) is now in the process of consultation which will last 

until mid-February 2018. All feedback from the Newport Scrutiny Committee will be 

considered and the final plan will be updated and shared with all LAs from March 2018 

onwards. The final version of the Business Plan will commence on April 1st 2018. 

 

1.4 The expected outcomes of the EAS Business Plan actions are noted in the success 

criteria section in Section 3 of the plan. These are ambitious and progress will be 

mapped against these.  In addition, regional and Newport pupil level targets and 

attendance targets are noted in Section 6 of the plan and later in this report. Members 

will be provided with update reports on progress made towards these targets at key 

points in the year. 

 

Issues and Findings 

Progress made towards EAS Business Plan 2017-2018 

 

1.5 The progress made towards the Business Plan and LA Annexes is reported to The Joint 

Executive Group (JEG) and the EAS Company Board on a biannual basis. This is also 

complemented by a range of additional reports (such as pupil outcomes, progress 

towards targets information, regional value for money and progress of schools causing 

concern) that are shared with the above groups and also LA Education Scrutiny 

Committees and termly Challenge and Review events with Welsh Government Officers 

Page 23



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

(with the Cabinet Secretary for Education in the autumn term event). This report is not 

intended to duplicate previous reports that have been provided and reports only against 

previous Business Plan priorities. 

 

1.6 Section 2 of the Business Plan (Appendix 2) highlights a summary of wider regional 

improvements over the last 12 months. 

 

1.7 Appendix 4 details the mid-year review of the current Newport Annex. 

 

1.8 It is important to note that not all actions within the Business Plan will have an 

immediate impact on end of key stage outcomes. It is also important to note that 

outcomes cannot be attributed to solely to the work of the regional consortium as other 

partners in the system also play an important role. The role of school leaders and 

governing bodies in holding these leaders to account are a key factor in securing school 

improvement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Outcomes from Regional Estyn inspection (May 2016) and progress made 

towards the recommendations 

 

1.9 In May 2016 Estyn and Wales Audit Office re-visited the region to undertake the 

inspection of the regional school improvement services provided by the EAS. The 

structure of the inspection report is based on those aspects of Estyn’s Common 

Current Business Plan Priority 

2017-2018 

Progress Judgement (October 

2017) 

1. Support for School 

Improvement 
Satisfactory Progress 

2. Pupil Wellbeing and Equity in 

Education  
Satisfactory Progress 

3. Professional Learning: 

Pedagogy and Leadership 
Satisfactory Progress 

4. Curriculum and Assessment Satisfactory Progress 

5. Curriculum and Pedagogy: 

Wider Curriculum and Pioneer 

Development 

Satisfactory Progress 

6. The Self-Improving System 

(SIS) 
Strong Progress 

7. Wider Regional and EAS 

Company Developments 
Strong Progress 

Page 24



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

Inspection Framework that apply to regional consortia, which are covered by five quality 

indicators, each are graded (Excellent, Good, Adequate or Unsatisfactory). Additionally, 

an evaluation of standards featured as a performance profile in the context section of 

the report.  A summary of the outcome is below: 

 

Section Grade 

Support for school improvement  Good 

Leadership  Good 

Quality improvement  Good 

Partnership working  Good 

Resource Management  Good 

 

1.10 Estyn revisited the EAS in September 2017 to conduct an inspection of the progress the 

EAS had made towards the recommendations from a good baseline. A summary of the 

judgements is below: 

 

Recommendation Estyn Progress 

Judgement 

R1 Consider the use of a wider range of 

performance indicators at school and regional 

level to ensure that the progress of all groups 

of learners is challenged and supported 

Satisfactory Progress 

R2 Improve consistency in the quality of 

evaluation of school improvement activities 

throughout the service 

Strong Progress 

R3 Identify and manage risks more effectively Very Good Progress 

 

1.11 The Estyn team considered a range of evidence including the consortium’s business 

planning, evaluations, challenge advisers’ reports, target setting procedures, risk 

assessments and the views of headteachers. Estyn does not plan to make any further 

follow-up visits to the EAS. Any remaining areas for improvement will be monitored 

informally by Estyn’s regional link inspector and the relevant local authority link 

inspectors, and considered during future inspections of local government education 

services. 

Page 25



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

1.12 Estyn noted in their report that “(EAS) senior managers make honest and accurate 

evaluations of the strengths and shortcomings in the school improvement activities that 

they provide for schools. They have a clear understanding of how to link the findings 

from self-evaluation activities to improvement planning.”  

 

1.13 The improvements that are required at regional and LA level will continue to require a 

strong commitment of partnership working to be successful with Newport making full 

use of their statutory powers, as appropriate, and wider support services such as HR to 

ensure that all schools make improvements at the required pace. 

 

1.14 School leaders in schools in Newport requiring the most improvement will need to fully 

engage with the improvements that need to be made and, alongside governing bodies 

will need to drive forward this change at pace. The EAS will offer support and challenge 

through this process but will not be able to effect change on a whole level without the 

commitment from each tier within the system. 

 

Implications 

The South-East Wales Regional Mission: Business Plan (2018-2019) 

 

1.15 This Business Plan focuses upon the actions that are required to accelerate 

improvement across the region and across all schools, PRUs, Special Schools and non-

maintained nursery settings in Newport. Whilst this plan is regional, the bespoke 

approach at school level and through each individual LA Annex enables all nuances in 

need to be addressed. The actions contained within the plan align with the Welsh 

Government strategic document Education in Wales: Our National Mission (Action Plan 

2017 – 2021). Further details on delivery can be found in the Detailed Delivery 

Document and the Professional Learning Offer 2018-2019 (these will be updated and 

refined following the final version of the attached plan). The content of the Business 

Plan will be used to populate and report against the regional elements within the Wales 

Education Report Card. 

 

1.16 The final version of the Business Plan will be supported by a range of supporting 

documents: 

 Local Authority Annex documents April 2018-March 2019 

 Detailed Business Plan April 2018-March 2019 

 Detailed Resource Overview 2018-2019 

 Long Term 3-year Business Plan Overview 

 Regional Self-Evaluation Report 

 Regional Professional Learning Offer 2018-2019 

 EAS Risk Register (Executive Summary) 

 Self-Evaluation Timetable 2016-2018 

Page 26



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

1.17 The focus for improvement for 2018-2019 will continue to secure improvements in the 

following areas: 

 To continue to raise aspiration, improve pupil outcomes, particularly for vulnerable 

groups of learners (FSM, Gender, EAL, MA and LAC) and reduce the variance 

within and across schools, settings and LAs. 

 To accelerate improvement in schools and settings where progress is too slow by 

ensuring a more consistent approach is applied to schools causing concern and 

the use of Local Authority statutory powers to accelerate progress in identified 

schools.  

 To continue to improve the quality of leadership, teaching and learning, 

particularly within the secondary phase. 

 Supporting schools to ensure the effective development of pupil skills at all 

phases.  

 Supporting the national approach and further development of the regional 

professional learning opportunities to ensure the success, equity and well-being of 

every learner. 

 Preparing schools to meet the curriculum and assessment demands in line with 

new accountability arrangements.  

 Supporting the development of a 'world-class curriculum' that will help raise 

standards for all in Wales. 

 To embed the regional approach to developing a self-improving system. 

 

The Regional Ambition is, by 2021 that: 

 

1.18 Working with our key partners we will aim to transform the educational outcomes and 

life chances for all learners across South East Wales. We will do this by: 

 Ensuring successful learning experiences and high levels of wellbeing particularly 

for those facing the greatest challenges; 

 Building effective networks of professionals, across the five Local Authorities and 

beyond and working together to improve leadership, teaching and learning; and 

 Attracting and retaining a team of outstanding people who embed our core values 

in their work and share a passion for excellence. 

 

1.19 The delivery elements within the plan are centred around 7 key Improvement Strands: 

Support for School Improvement, Professional Learning (Teaching and Leadership), 

Excellence, Equity and Wellbeing, Curriculum, Assessment and Accountability, 

Supporting Collaboration, Curriculum Reform and EAS Company Developments). Each 

of these strands detail ‘What we will do’ and a section that will be used to monitor 

progress against detailed success criteria ‘How will we know we will have made 

progress by March 2019’. 

 

Page 27



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

1.20 The EAS has invested in building the capacity of schools and educational settings within 

the region over the last four years to enable more collaborative ways of working. This 

approach is enabling teachers and leaders to learn from each other, to try out new 

approaches and to engage with educational research as the backdrop for improvement.   

Across the region there are a number of well-established networks of professional 

practice, these will continue to be encouraged and the practice from within them shared.  

 

1.21 The approach to build capacity and schools taking more of a collective ownership for 

the development of teaching and leadership has been developed further and the cluster 

model will be embedded over the next few years across the region.  

 

Regional Key Stage Targets 2017-20 and Local Authority Attendance Targets 

 

1.22 The Business Plan targets in Section 6 are derived from the information submitted by all 

schools across South East Wales during the statutory target setting process in autumn 

2017. The target setting process across the region is robust with all LA / school 

aggregate targets linked to individual pupils.  

 

1.23 To ensure that appropriate aspiration is applied across schools, a joint challenge 

process has been introduced by LA Officers and EAS staff. This process considers an 

analysis of projected future performance against previous performance, projected Free 

School Meal benchmark quarters, FFT estimates and WG modelled expectations. 

 

1.24 The regional and LA targets for 2018 are final and Members will have had involvement 

with Directors in agreeing these. Targets for 2019 and 2020 remain draft and subject to 

additional challenge and scrutiny during the next iteration of the process in autumn 

2018. The targets for Newport schools can be found on pages 2-5 in the LA Annex 

2018-2019 (Appendix 3). 

 

LA Annex Documents 

 

1.25 Each LA Annex contains an overview of the performance and the main areas for 

development at a LA level. A summary of the schools that require the highest levels of 

support, inspection outcomes and an overview of categorisation for the LA. Pupil level 

targets and attendance targets are also included. 

 

A summary of overall pupil performance in Newport LA 
 

 Attainment at Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 has been above the Wales 
average for over 4 years, and the rate of improvement is higher than for Wales. 

Page 28



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

 Attainment at Key Stage 3 has been below the Wales average since 2014, 
although the rate of improvement has been higher than the Wales rate over the 4 
years. 

 Attainment at Key Stage 4 shows a much faster rate of improvement than that 
across Wales, and performance was above the Wales average in 2017. 

 Attainment at Key Stage 5 has decreased in 2017. Performance remains below 
that for Wales. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving the FPI+1 rose by 6.8pp between 2014 and 
2017, and by 1.8pp from 2016. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving the CSI+1 at KS2 rose by 5.1pp between 2014 
and 2017, and by 2.2pp from 2016. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving the CSI+1 at KS3 rose by 17.3pp between 
2014 and 2017, and by 7.3pp from 2016. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving 5A*/As at KS4 fell by 2.9pp between 2014 and 
2017, and rose by 1.8pp from 2016. Both the proportion achieving 5A*/As and 
the rate of improvement are below that across Wales in 2016.  

 
Gender 

 Between 2014 and 2017, the gender gap narrowed at FP. The gender gap in 
2017 was below that for Wales. 

 At KS2, the gender gap narrowed in this time. The gender gap in 2017 was 
below that for Wales.  

 Between 2014 and 2017, the gender gap narrowed at KS3. The gap was wider 
than the Wales gender gap in 2017. 

 At KS4, the gender gap widened between 2014 and 2017, and in 2017 it was 
slightly wider than for Wales.  

 
FSM 

 At FP and KS2, performance of FSM pupils in 2017 is above or the same as the 
Wales average, and the FSM/non FSM gap has narrowed or remained stable. 
The gap remains larger than for Wales at FP. 

 At KS3, performance of FSM pupils has been below the Wales average since 
2014, but the FSM/non FSM gap has narrowed since 2014. However, it is wider 
than the gap across Wales. 

 At KS4, performance of FSM pupils is on a par with the Wales average. The 
FSM/non FSM gap widened from 2014, and is larger than across Wales. 

 
FSM benchmarking quartiles  

 At FP, 76% of schools are above the median for FPI. At KS2, 58% of schools are 

above the median for CSI. At KS3, 25% of schools are above the median for CSI. 

At KS4, 63% (5 out of 8 schools) are above the median for L2 inc. 

 At KS4, Caerleon, Lliswerry and St Joseph’s are in Quarter 1 for L2 inc and 

maths for 2017, Caerleon and Lliswerry for English also 

 St Julian, Newport High and Llanwern are below the median in L2 inc, English 

and maths, and were in Quarter 4 for L2 inc 

 Bassaleg is in Quarter 2 for these three measures 

Page 29



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

Attendance/Exclusions 

 There has been an increase in attendance at both primary and secondary level 

since 2014. Secondary figure just below that of Wales, (Wales primary not 

available yet) 

 Unauthorised absence at primary schools has remained stable at 1.8%, but at 

secondary schools this has decreased to 2%. Secondary figure is higher than 

Wales. 

 There has been decrease in exclusions of 5 days or fewer at secondary level, 

primary remains stable. There has been a decrease in exclusions of 6 days or 

more at both primary and secondary level. 

 There were 3 permanent exclusions in 2017 in primary schools (compared to 3 

for the 3 years previously combined). The breakdown across schools was Alway 

– 1, Monnow – 1, Ringland – 1. 

 There were 9 permanent exclusions in 2017 in secondary schools (there have 

been 8 or 9 annually since 2014). The breakdown across schools was Bassaleg 

– 2, Lliswerry – 1, Newport High – 1, St Julians – 2, The John Frost School – 3  

Inspection/Categorisation 

 The percentage of schools judged at least Good for current performance has 

decreased since 2014 from 91% to 63%. Increase in schools judged at least 

Good for prospects for improvement has also decreased to 63%. No 

unsatisfactory inspections in 2016/17. 

 The percentage of primary schools categorised Green has increased to 57% in 

2017/18. Three secondary schools categorised Red, one Amber, three Yellow 

and two Green (provisional and confidential). 

 

The Business Plan 2018-2021 is designed to address the areas required improvement noted 
above.  
 

2. Financial Summary 
 

2.1 The EAS was set up to be reliant on three funding streams to remain financially viable: 

core funding from councils, grant funding (this includes a contribution from the regional 

Education Improvement Grant (EIG) and other Welsh Government (WG) Grants) and 

income generated from trading services to schools, which due to the notion of a self-

improving school system has reduced overtime.  

 

2.2 By way of context, the EAS has seen funding reductions in each of the areas noted 

above: 

 A reduction in the EIG of 14% (since 2014 and a further potential 11.2% to the 

regional allocation which would equate to £192k reduction planned for EAS in 

2018/2019); 

Page 30



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

 A reduction in a WG grant to support new GCSE specifications of 50% which 

equates to £182k; and 

 A 92% reduction in trading income equating to £1.15m (since 2012 with a further 

£100k planned for 2018/2019). We do not intend reverting back to a trading 

organisation because we feel this compromises our legitimacy and is at odds with 

the strategic direction Members have asked for. 

 

2.3 The service continues to be hampered by short term, ad hoc grant awards from Welsh 

Government. The EAS continues to manage staff changes and are now some 40% 

smaller in payroll staff than when the service started in 2012.  Whilst this has been 

effectively managed to date it has been a contributing factor in increased cash 

contributions to the pension fund (£170k for the next two financial years). In addition, 

Members will be aware that the total regional EIG reduction for 2018/19 totals £3.028m. 

Whilst the detail surrounding this reduction is becoming clearer the regional position is 

still to be determined.  

 

2.4 Over the past three financial years the EAS has been able to contribute to the efficiency 

savings of Councils by reducing the core funding commitment by 3%. Following a recent 

meeting of the EAS Company Board the funding profile for 2018/2019 and indicative 

funding for the following 2 financial years was discussed. Taking all factors into 

consideration, the Company Board agreed that it can offer a 2% efficiency saving on 

last year’s core funding contribution for 2018/19 and an indicative 2% efficiency for the 

next 2 financial years. 

 

  
 

2.5 These efficiencies have been thought through carefully in what will be a challenging 

financial climate for the EAS and councils. It is likely that the EAS will need to 

implement a change management programme to enable a balanced budget to be set for 

the coming financial year. Considering this the Company Board will meet early January 

2018 to formulate the detailed approach to this and will communicate with JEG 

Members as necessary 

 
  

EAS 'As Is' 

Model Aug 

2012

2014/15 
(funding levels set by 

WG, based on RSG 

formula to LA)

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

% Movement 

2011/12 to 

2017/18

2018/19 

Efficiency 

Saving

-3.4% -3% -3% 2.0%

1,095,407 934,254 902,489 875,415 849,152 -22% 832,169

Page 31



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

3. Risks 
 

3.1 Risks to delivery of the Business Plan occur when the following points are not adhered 

to: 

 There is a lack of clarity about respective roles and statutory responsibilities within 

the LA and EAS.  

 Agreed actions are not carried out in a timely manner by EAS and / or LA e.g. 

Schools Causing Concern Register actions  

 EAS and LA staff do not demonstrate a united front when dealing with schools, 

particularly those that give cause for concern. 

 Schools are not held to account in a timely manner using the existing 

mechanisms.  

 There is not consistent application of agreed regional protocols e.g. meeting 

deadlines for target setting, elected Members attending selected EIBs 

 Timely consideration is not given to the use of LA Statutory Powers e.g. low 

standards, attendance, exclusions, leadership  

 Full use is not made of the training offers to ensure that all Elected Members are 

up to date with key messages. 

 Full use is not made of consultation events to help shape the direction of the EAS. 

 

3.2 Uncertain financial projections make it difficult to fully cost the Business Plan at this 

stage.  

 

3.3 Continued changes in reporting arrangements and performance measures at KS4 for a 

number of subjects continues to present risks to LA and regional outcomes.  

 

3.4 Limited impact of the work of the EAS in schools where underperformance in leadership 

is not challenged effectively. 

 

3.5 The work of the EAS in improving outcomes for vulnerable learners will remain slow 

unless there is greater engagement with all key partners across LAs to ensure effective 

joint targeting of resources. 

4. Consultation  
 

a. The Business Plan and the regional Professional Learning Offer is currently in the 
consultation process. The Consultees are noted below: 

 

 Education Achievement Service staff  

 South East Wales Directors / Chief Education Officers and Diocesan Directors  

 Joint Executive Group  

 Education Achievement Service Company Board  

Page 32



 Appendix 1  
 

Submission of Evidence to Scrutiny – EAS Business Plan 2018-2021  
Author   Debbie Harteveld, Managing Director, Education Achievement Service (EAS)  

Date         8 February 2018 

 

 Education Achievement Service Audit and Risk Assurance Committee 

 Circulated to individual Local Authority Education Scrutiny Committees  

 Regional Headteacher Strategy Group  

 Regional Governor Strategy Group 

 Regional Youth Forum 

 

5. Background Papers 
 

EAS Business Plan 2018-2021 
Local Authority Annex 2018-2019 

Mid-Year review Newport Annex 2017-2018 (for information only) 

 

Dated: 8 February 2018 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

The South-East Wales Regional 

Mission: Business Plan (2018-2021) 

“Transforming pupil outcomes, creating capacity through 

networks, enabling excellence in teaching and leadership.” 

This is the draft version for consultation.  

The final plan will be available in both Welsh and 

English.  

Page 37



 

2 
 

 

The Education Achievement Service Business Plan has been though a thorough consultation 

process prior to agreeing the final version. The list of consultees is listed below: 

 

• Education Achievement Service staff 

• SEWC Directors and Diocesan Directors 

• Joint Executive Group 

• Education Achievement Service Company Board 

• Education Achievement Service Audit and Risk Assurance Committee 

• Individual Local Authority Education Scrutiny Committees 

• Regional Headteacher Strategy Group 

• Regional Governor Strategy Group 

• Regional Youth Forum 

 

 

This Business Plan is the regional strategic plan for accelerating educational outcomes 

during 2018-2019. It has been agreed by each Local Authority Director of Education / Chief 

Education Officer, the Joint Executive Group and the Company Board: 

 

Cllr R Jevons 
Chair of Education Achievement Service 
Company Board 

 

Cllr G Giles 
Chair of Joint Executive Group  

 

Mrs Lynette Jones 
Lead Director on behalf of South East Wales 
Directors Group 

 

Ms D Harteveld 
Managing Director, Education Achievement 
Service 

 

 

 

  

Page 38



 

3 
 

Contents 

 

1 South East Wales Regional Context 

 
4 

2 

 
Introduction 

• Regional Improvements 2017-2018  

• Priority Areas 2018-2019 
 

 
5 
6 
8 

3 The South-East Wales Regional Mission: Business Plan (2018-2010) 

 
9 

4 National and Regional Implementation Strategies  

 
18 

5 Funding information 

 
18 

6 Regional Pupil Targets (All Key Stages) and Attendance Targets 

 
19 

 
7 

 
Additional Supporting documents  
 

• Local Authority Annex documents 
• Detailed Business Plan April 2018-March 2019 
• Detailed Resource Overview 2018-2019 
• Long Term 3-year Business Plan Overview 
• Regional Self-Evaluation Report 
• Regional Professional Learning Offer 2018-2019 
• EAS Risk Register (Executive Summary) 
• Self-Evaluation Timetable 2016-2018 

 

 
23 

8 
 
Glossary of Terms  
 

 
24 

Page 39



 

4 
 

1. Regional Context 

The EAS is the school improvement service for the five Local Authorities (LAs) in South East Wales 

(Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Torfaen). The number of pupils of 

compulsory school age in 2017 was 71,234. This represents 19% of all pupils in Wales. There are 

240 maintained schools in the region, 16% of all maintained schools in Wales (EAS figure correct 

from Jan 2018, Wales figure from PLASC, 2017).  The percentage of pupils of compulsory school 

age who are eligible for free school meals (FSM) is 18.5%, which is higher than the national figure 

of 17.8%. This level of eligibility is the second highest of the four regional consortia (PLASC, 2017).  

In the region, 10% of people aged three and over say that they can speak Welsh compared to the 

Wales average of 19% (2011 Census, ONS). The percentage of pupils aged 5-15 from an ethnic 

minority background is 9.7%, an increase from 7.3% in 2013. This is a similar rate of increase to 

that nationally (10.1% from 8.3%). These overall figures mask significant differences between LAs, 

with the proportion of ethnic minority pupils in Newport increasing from 23.0% to 23.7% in 2017. As 

of March 2017, 816 children in the region are looked after (LAC) by a LA and attend a school in the 

region. This represents 14% of LAC in Wales.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Blaenau Gwent (22.8% FSM) 

                            No. schools 
Non- Maintained Settings  2 
Primary    19 
Secondary    2 
Special      1 
Pupil Referral Unit    1 
3-16      2 

  

 

 

Monmouthshire (10.5% FSM) 

                              No. schools 
Non- Maintained Settings 29 
Primary    30 
Secondary    4 
Special      1 
Pupil Referral Unit    1 

  

 

 

Newport (18.6% FSM) 

                            No. schools 
Non- Maintained Settings 24 
Nursery     2 
Primary    42 
Secondary    9 
Special      2 
Pupil Referral Unit    1 

  

 

 

Torfaen (17.5% FSM) 

                             No. schools 
Non- Maintained Settings 16 
Nursery     1 
Primary    26 
Secondary    6 
Special      1 
Pupil Referral Unit    1 

  

 

 

Caerphilly (21.0% FSM) 

                            No. schools 
Non- Maintained Settings 12 
Primary    63 
Infant     6 
Junior     4 
Secondary   12 
Special      1 
Pupil Referral Unit    1 

3-16     1 

 

 

Page 40



 

5 
 

2. Introduction 

This Business Plan (2018-2021) outlines the programme of work that is required to continue to 
accelerate outcomes for children and young people across all schools in South East Wales. The 
plan focuses on the urgent need to raise aspiration and accelerate improvement in pupil outcomes, 
improve the quality of teaching and leadership and build a self-improving system within and across 
schools and settings. Priorities for the Business Plan 2018-2019 have been derived from the 
progress that has been made towards the previous Business Plan, areas that have been identified 
as requiring improvements through self-evaluation processes and feedback from Estyn on the 
inspection of the EAS. The improvements that are required at regional and Local Authority level 
require a strong commitment of partnership working to be successful. 
 
Progress made toward EAS Business Plan 2017-2018  
 

Business Plan Priority 
Progress 

Judgement 
(October 2017) 

Progress 
Judgement (March 

2018) – to be 
updated  

1. Support for School Improvement Satisfactory Progress 
 

2. Pupil Wellbeing and Equity in Education  Satisfactory Progress 
 

3. Professional Learning: Pedagogy and 
Leadership 

Satisfactory Progress 
 

4. Curriculum and Assessment 
Satisfactory 

Progress 
 

5. Curriculum and Pedagogy: Wider Curriculum 
and Pioneer Development 

Satisfactory 
Progress 

 

6. The Self-Improving System (SIS) Strong Progress 
 

7. Wider Regional and EAS Company 
Developments 

Strong Progress 
 

 
Outcomes from Regional Estyn inspection (May 2016) and progress made towards the 

recommendations 

In May 2016 Estyn and Wales Audit Office re-visited the region to undertake the inspection of the 
regional school improvement services provided by the EAS. The structure of the inspection report 
is based on those aspects of Estyn’s Common Inspection Framework that apply to regional 
consortia, which are covered by five quality indicators, each are graded (Excellent, Good, Adequate 
or Unsatisfactory). Additionally, an evaluation of standards featured as a performance profile in the 
context section of the report.  A summary of the outcome is below: 
 

Section Grade 

Support for school improvement  Good 

Leadership  Good 

Quality improvement  Good 

Partnership working  Good 

Resource Management  Good 

 

Page 41



 

6 
 

Estyn revisited the EAS in September 2017 to conduct an inspection of the progress the EAS 
had made towards the recommendations. A summary of the judgements is below:  

 

Recommendation Estyn Progress Judgement 

R1 Consider the use of a wider range of performance indicators 

at school and regional level to ensure that the progress of all 

groups of learners is challenged and supported 

Satisfactory Progress 

R2 Improve consistency in the quality of evaluation of school 

improvement activities throughout the service 
Strong Progress 

R3 Identify and manage risks more effectively Very Good Progress 

 
Summary of wider regional improvements 2017-2018  

 

 Regional Outcomes  

• Teacher Assessment outcomes at the end of foundation phase and key stage 2 at the expected and 

higher levels are good and continue to improve. Attainment has been above the Wales average since 

2013.Teacher Assessment outcomes at the end of key stage 3 are improving but still remain below 

the Wales average.  

• The gender gap in both foundation phase and key stage 2 continues to narrow at the expected level 

and is below the Wales average. At key stage 3, the gender gap is narrowing however remains higher 

than the Wales average. At the higher levels, gender gaps have widened in foundation phase, key 

stage 2 and key stage 3.  

• FSM regional performance at the expected level has continued to improve at foundation phase and 

key stage 3 but declined at key stage 2 in 2017. Between 2014 and 2017, the gap between the 

attainment of FSM pupils and non-FSM pupils has narrowed at each of these key stages.  

• The performance of Looked After Children (LAC) pupils has improved considerably at key stage 3 

from 2014. Performance of pupils with Special Educational Needs (SEN) and those with English as 

an additional language (EAL) has improved since 2014. 

• At key stage 4, this year it is not possible to meaningfully compare results to previous years. However, 

performance of the region compared to national performance is still relevant. At the L2+ performance 

indicator, performance across the region declined by 2.6pp, compared with a decline of 5.7pp across 

Wales. This has resulted in the gap between regional performance and national performance 

narrowing to 1.7pp. 

• At key stage 4, 13 out of 35 (37.1%) schools are placed in benchmark quarter 1 for the L2+ indicator. 

More schools are now able to predict pupil outcomes with greater accuracy, 19 out of 35 schools had 

L2+ performance within 5pp of their June progress estimate. 

• Overall performance at L2 English Language, L2 Welsh Language and A*-C grades in GCSE Science 

has improved.  

• Between 2014 and 2017, the gap between attainment of FSM pupils and non-FSM pupils for the L2+ 

has remained fairly static. The gender gap between girls and boys and the Wales averages are 

narrowing due to a larger decline in performance of these groups across Wales this year.  

• Regional performance of learners achieving 5A*/A grades has improved for the first time in 4 years.  

• Overall performance at the L3 threshold has declined slightly. The performance of boys is at the Wales 

average, performance of girls is 1.3pp below that of Wales. Performance at A*/A Grades across the 

region has declined overall between 2016 and 2017 by 2.7pp.  

• Over the past 4 years, attendance at primary schools has continued to improve. Despite secondary 

school attendance improving at a slightly faster rate than Wales, it remains below the Wales average. 

• The percentage of Year 11 leavers known to be NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training) 

across the region has reduced at a faster rate of improvement than that made nationally, and is below 

the Wales average. 

Page 42



 

7 
 

Provision  

• There is a clear understanding of the respective roles of the LAs and the EAS in supporting school 

improvement across the region and the implementation of National Categorisation and the SEWC 

Intervention Framework of schools across the region has been applied consistently to ensure accurate 

levels of support are provided.  

• The EAS has appropriate differentiated procedures for monitoring, challenging, supporting and 

intervening in schools and non-maintained settings which are applied more consistently and have 

resulted in the majority of schools and non-maintained settings making good progress. The processes 

for holding schools in a red category to account have been robust and well understood.  

• Refined quality assurance protocols across the service are evidencing increasing consistency in 

practice and highlighting inconsistencies that need to be addressed.  

• The quality and range of data from pupil level up that the consortium now uses is improving. The 

process of collecting progress towards pupil level targets now enables the CA team and subject 

specialist to support and challenge potential underperformance within the academic year.  

• There is a clear and coherent regional strategy for the self-improving system. The region has made 

good progress in developing mechanisms to facilitate school-to-school support in key areas including 

the recent introduction of the Learning Network Schools and cluster working.  

• The support for new curriculum specifications at key stage 4 in core subjects, Welsh Baccalaureate 

and the implementation of WG initiatives such as Successful Futures is good.  

• Challenge advisers monitor diligently schools’ plans for their use of the Pupil Development Grant. 

They ensure that the plans meet requirements and focus appropriately on improving’ outcomes for 

vulnerable learners. The provision for these pupils is beginning to improve their outcomes at each key 

stage.  

• There are good arrangements to identify the overall development needs of governors which are 

effectively met in most cases through a centrally delivered training programme.  

• Specialist HR support has complemented and enhanced the provision that is already in place in LAs 

providing support and training for school leaders, disseminating regional policies and protocols. 

Leadership  

• The Business Plan sets out the regional strategic vision, aims and priorities aligned closely to WG 

guidance and key national, regional and local priorities with good progress has been made towards 

recommendations from Estyn.  

• Self-evaluation and improvement planning processes are accurate, evaluative and balanced.  

• A wider range of performance indicators at school and regional level are now being used in self-

evaluation activity to ensure that the progress of all groups of learners is challenged and supported. 

• Strategic leadership and management is good with an effective governance and communication 

structure, which is becoming increasingly effective. 

• School strategic partnerships are good and continue to improve. 

• Working practices with LAs are becoming increasingly effective in relation to schools causing concern. 

• Where warning notices have been issued in LAs linked to standards, most schools have improved 

their performance. 

• There are sound financial processes in place and processes to evaluate Value for Money (VFM) have 

been improved and refined and are now appropriate. 

• Appropriate partnerships with other consortia have been forged with the main aims to improve 

provision and to raise standards for learners across the region. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

8 
 

Regional Priorities for 2018-2019 
 

 
The focus for improvement for 2018-2019 will focus on continuing to secure improvements in 
the following areas: 
 

• To continue to raise aspiration, improve pupil outcomes, particularly for vulnerable groups of learners 

(FSM, Gender, EAL, MA and LAC) and reduce the variance within and across schools, settings and 

LAs. 

• To accelerate improvement in schools and settings where progress is too slow by ensuring a more 

consistent approach is applied to schools causing concern and the use of Local Authority statutory 

powers to accelerate progress in identified schools.  

• To continue to improve the quality of leadership, teaching and learning, particularly within the 

secondary phase. 

• Supporting schools to ensure the effective development of pupil skills at all phases.  

• Supporting the national approach and further development of the regional professional learning 

opportunities to ensure the success, equity and well-being of every learner. 

• Preparing schools to meet the curriculum and assessment demands in line with new accountability 

arrangements.  

• Supporting the development of a 'world-class curriculum' that will help raise standards for all in Wales. 

• To embed the regional approach to developing a self-improving system. 

 

 

 

 
The Regional Ambition is, by 2021 that: 
 
Working with our key partners we will aim to transform the educational outcomes and life chances for 
all learners across South East Wales. We will do this by: 
 

• Ensuring successful learning experiences and high levels of wellbeing particularly for those facing the 

greatest challenges; 

• Building effective networks of professionals, across the five Local Authorities and beyond and working 

together to improve leadership, teaching and learning; and 

• Attracting and retaining a team of outstanding people who embed our core values in their work and 

share a passion for excellence. 

 

 

A detailed three year overview is available within the additional support documentation.  

 
 

 
  

Page 44



 

9 
 

3. The South-East Wales Regional Mission: Business Plan (2018-2019) 

This Business Plan focuses upon the actions that are required to accelerate improvement across 

the region. Whilst this plan is regional, the bespoke approach at school level and through each 

individual LA Annex enables all nuances in need to be addressed. The actions contained within the 

plan align with the Welsh Government strategic document Education in Wales: Our National Mission 

(Action Plan 2017 – 2021). Further details on delivery can be found in the Detailed Delivery 

Document and the Professional Learning Offer 2018-2019. The content of the Business Plan will be 

used to populate and report against the regional elements within the Wales Education Report Card. 

Improvement 
Strand 
(Link to 

Education in 
Wales) 

What will we to do? 

How will we know we will have 
made progress by March 2019? 
(These are in addition to the pupil 
targets at regional and LA level in 

Section 6 and in Annexes ) 

A. Support for 
School 
Improvement 
 

 

 

To continue to raise aspiration, 
improve pupil outcomes, 
particularly for vulnerable groups 
of learners (FSM, Gender, EAL, 
More Able (MA) and LAC) and 
reduce the variance across 
schools and LAs through 
improving the quality of leadership, 
teaching and learning by: 

• Ensuring that all schools and 
settings receive high quality 
bespoke support in line with their 
needs to accelerate progress and 
improve outcomes. 

• Further developing pupil level target 
setting and progress measures for 
all learners and groups of learners 
across all key stages using prior 
attainment information and WG 
modelled estimates where 
appropriate.  

• Collecting progress towards targets 
information through a differentiated 
approach, using a range of first hand 
evidence to verify submitted data.  

• Challenging the use and impact of 
early entry using models of best 
practice. 

• Supporting and challenging school 
level planning documents to ensure 
best use of grant spend so that 
maximum progress is made by all 
vulnerable groups of learners.  

• Reviewing the quality of provision at 
KS3 across the region, providing 
support to accelerate improvement, 
focusing on the development of 
pupils’ skills in literacy, numeracy, IT 
and reducing within school variation.  

• All Challenge Advisers (CAs) will 
effectively implement the CA work 
programme for 2018-2019 and the 
Consortium Intervention Framework 
will be implemented consistently, 
ensuring that nearly all schools, 
including non-maintained settings 
make at least strong progress 
against the bespoke actions within 
support plans.  

• There will be a more consistent 
approach to the use of statutory 
powers across the region through the 
implementation of the Schools 
Causing Concern Register meetings.  

• L2+ regional achievement will be 
>60%. No secondary school will be 
below 45% at L2+. Around half of 
secondary schools will be above or at 
least in line with WG 2b modelled 
expectations for L2+. The gap in 
performance between FSM and non-
FSM learners for L2+ will continue to 
close, with the improvement of FSM 
learners. 

• >55% of secondary schools will be 
within 5% of their target set for the 
L2+. 

• Most secondary schools will use 
early entry appropriately for Y10 and 
Y11 learners.   

• Categorisation outcomes will 
evidence that schools require 
reduced support levels over time. 
<45% of secondary schools will 
require amber or red support levels 
for 2018-2019 with evidence of 
reduced levels of within school 
variation.  

Developing a 

high-quality 

education 

profession. 

1 

2 

Inspirational 

leaders 

working 

collaborative

ly to raise 

standards. 

Page 45



 

10 
 

 

• Continuing to work closely with LAs, 
through the implementation of the 
Schools Causing Concern Risk 
Register to ensure a more 
consistent approach to schools 
causing concern and the use of 
statutory powers to accelerate 
progress. 

• Implementing the regional 
Foundation Phase action plan in line 
with WG priorities.  

• Implementing the Post 16 Learning 
Action Plan.  

• Identifying and sharing examples of 
best practice across the region, 
focusing on effective support for 
vulnerable learners and measuring 
and improving learner well-being. 

• The number of schools placed in or 
remaining in Estyn statutory 
categories, particularly in the 
secondary phase, will reduce. 

• Most Grant Plans (PDG/EIG) meet 
requirements and focus 
appropriately on improving outcomes 
for vulnerable learners. The majority 
of secondary schools focus 
appropriately on meeting the target 
of 60% spend at KS3.  

• There are increased opportunities for 
primary and secondary schools to 
engage in school to school working 
through cluster working and 
networking opportunities that impact 
on pupil outcomes and develop 
leadership capacity.  

• Case studies of identified best 
practice will be created and shared 
across the region. 

• The regional approach to consistent 
target setting at key stage 5 using 
ALPS will be embedded.  

• At least satisfactory progress is being 
made to implementing the actions 
within the Regional Foundation 
Phase Action Plan. 

• At least satisfactory progress is being 
made to implementing the Post 16 
Learning Action Plan.  

B. Professional 
Learning  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review the current regional 
delivery model for professional 
learning in line with the national 
professional learning model so that 
it remains fit for purpose. Work in 
collaboration with EWC to ensure 
maximum impact of the PLP.  
Addressing the quality of teaching 
to improve learner outcomes by: 

• Supporting teachers and school 
support staff so that they benefit 
from opportunities to improve the 
quality of their pedagogy and have 
opportunities for professional 
learning in a research-driven culture. 

• Supporting the adoption and 
implementation of new professional 
standards for all education 
professionals. 

• Improving the quality and 
consistency of teaching in the 
secondary phase by providing 

• A further shift in the balance away 
from centrally delivered programmes 
so that, during the year, all 
programmes have school-based 
components and measurably impact 
upon classroom practice. 

• The Excellence in Teaching and 
Leadership Framework will have 
been disseminated in nearly all 
clusters.  

•  Most school leaders will have 
adopted the ETLF or an equivalent 
instrument that impacts effectively 
on improving the quality of teaching 
across schools.  

• A minority of secondary schools will 
improve the profile of teaching from 
the initial baseline within year one 
moving towards around half in year 
two.  

• There will be an increased take-up 
on professional learning 

Developing a 

high-quality 

education 

profession. 

1 

2 

Inspirational 

leaders 

working 

collaboratively 

to raise 

standards. 

Page 46



 

11 
 

schools with an initial profile of the 
quality of teaching which has been 
derived from a variety of sources and 
access to appropriate support.  

• Improving the quality of teaching, 
especially for the realisation of the 
new curriculum using the new 
Excellence in Teaching and 
Leadership Framework (ETLF). 

• Providing guidance to ensure that all 
teachers, including supply teachers, 
have access to an individual 
professional learning plan.  

• Delivering at a regional level the 
induction programme for Newly 
Qualified Teachers (NQTs). 

• Implementing a pilot scheme to 
prepare Welsh medium graduate 
support staff for teaching through the 
medium of Welsh (GTP route / 
PGCE) concludes with evidence of 
progression to Initial Teacher 
Education (ITE). 

• Supporting LAs in the delivery of the 
cluster based pilot models for supply 
teachers and Business Managers.  

• Supporting the national development 
and regional delivery of pathways for 
Learning Support Workers. 

• Delivering Higher Level Teaching 
Assistant accreditation as part of the 
national development pathway for 
Learning Support Workers.  

• Collaborating with HEI and ITE 
providers to ensure high quality 
initial education and readiness to 
enter the workforce.  

• Continuing to work collaboratively 
with key partners to attract and retain 
high quality teachers through the 
#Discover Teaching campaign.  
 

Ensure that Leaders at all levels 
across the region are well 
supported to develop and aspire 
colleagues and to work 
collaboratively to embed the new 
curriculum and improve outcomes 
for our learners by:  

• Providing an extensive portfolio of 
leadership development 
opportunities available for the 
regional education community. To 
include: Middle Leader, Aspiring 

programmes for pedagogy and 
leadership from the current baseline. 

• A majority of schools will have 
engaged with teachers having 
access to individual professional 
learning plans.   

• An improved impact capture 
methodology for professional 
learning on practice. 

• Evaluative reports commissioned 
from Higher Education Institutions 
demonstrate the positive impact of 
the induction programme for NQTs. 

• Increased numbers of applicants 
and successful candidates for 
Higher Level Teaching Assistant 
accreditation from the current 
baseline. 

• A majority of schools will have 
participated in the professional 
learning programme for Learning 
Support Workers.  

• ITE graduates will be better 
prepared to undertake their NQT 
process and enter the fully qualified 
workforce within the region.  

• A regional succession plan for 
leadership will be created and 
agreed by LAs to ensure more 
effective recruitment and retention of 
high quality leaders across the 
region.  

• Increase take up of NPQH by highest 
quality candidates and secure more 
effective conversion from NPQH 
accreditation to employment as 
Headteachers within the region. 

   

Page 47



 

12 
 

Senior Leader, Aspiring 
Headteacher, New to Headship, 
Experienced Headteacher and 
Executive Headteacher. 

• Providing secondary school leaders 
opportunities to experience and 
learn from a range of successful 
settings within and beyond the 
region.  

• Providing specialist HR training for 
school leaders in areas such as 
effective performance management 
and addressing performance 
concerns are effectively 
implemented in schools.  

• Delivering the National Professional 
Qualification for Headship (NPQH) 
to provide more effective preparation 
for headship. 

• Embedding the use of the 
Excellence in Teaching and 
Leadership Framework across the 
region to maximise the impact of 
leadership on standards of teaching 
and learning. 

• Developing professional learning 
programmes that will satisfy 
accreditation processes of the 
National Academy for Educational 
Leadership. 

• To support the development and 
implementation of the Associates 
Programme for the National 
Academy for Educational 
Leadership.  

The Governor Support & 
Development team will support and 
develop skilled, focused, effective 
governing bodies that work in 
partnership with School Leaders to 
raise standards by: 

• Continuing to offer a Professional 
Learning Offer that includes the EAS 
Mandatory Training and Strategic 
Development Programme for 
Governors. 

• Making E-Learning available for 
each priority area from within the 
professional learning offer for 
governors. 

• Providing support to Governing 
Bodies that require improvement by 
sharing and promoting best practice. 

• Annual questionnaires for 
stakeholders deem the majority of 
governing bodies as effective by July 
2019 

• Increased numbers of governing 
bodies that complete the online 
Governing Body Self Evaluation 
(initial pilot 29%) to increase year on 
year. 

• Attendance at Mandatory Training 
and engagement in online 
Mandatory E-learning to remain in 
line with the annual turnover of 
governors (35% of governor 
population). 

• Increase engagement at Link 
Governor Seminar and on the Link 
Governor Hwb Network by 20%. 

Page 48



 

13 
 

 

• Disseminating the EAS Excellence 
in Governance Framework to ensure 
that all Governing Bodies are 
effectively challenging and 
supporting schools to improve.   

• Continuing to develop the 
effectiveness of priority Link 
Governors in improving outcomes 
for groups of learners by providing 
guidance on: More Able, Pupil 
Development Grant and Looked 
After Children. 

• Providing an effective clerking 
service to schools. 

• Governor awareness of the link role 
for deprivation via the annual 
questionnaire will raise from 78% to 
82% and the role for More Able and 
Looked After Children will be no 
lower than 75%. 

• Maintain the percentage of 
governors agreeing that overall, they 
are satisfied with the service they 
receive from Governor Support at 
over 95%. 

C. Excellence, 
Equity and 
Wellbeing 
 

 
 
 

Support the national approach and 
develop regional professional 
learning opportunities to ensure 
the success and well-being of every 
learner by: 

• Developing a wellbeing toolkit using 
a wide range of data for vulnerable 
groups to identify school, LA and 
regional needs, sharing and 
improving practice.  

• Supporting schools and settings to 
improve their use of the Pupil 
Development Grant (PDG) and to 
develop more integrated approaches 
to reducing the impact of poverty on 
outcomes. 

• Working with key partners such as 
the Regional Equity and Wellbeing 
Strategy Group to provide a more 
coherent approach to the 
relationship between education 
provision and other services 
available to support schools in 
disadvantaged areas. 

• Maximising the impact of 
commissioned research on practice 
in relation to more vulnerable groups 
at school, LA and regional level.  

• Embedding the regional strategy for 
LAC. 

• Further refining the collaborative 
arrangements in place for Pupil 
Referral Units and Special Schools 
which are designed to improve the 
outcomes for these groups of 
learners.  

• Supporting schools to improve their 
work in measuring and improving 
learner wellbeing. 

• A majority of schools in year 1 will 
utilise the wellbeing toolkit to 
improve provision and more effective 
resourcing for vulnerable groups.  

• The regional More Able Strategy will 
be understood and implemented 
over a two-year period by all schools, 
leading to improved outcomes for 
learners.  

• Improved quality in PDG plans, 
especially in secondary schools with 
around half of plans in year 1 making 
the shift to proven approaches that 
lead to sustainable improvements in 
outcomes.   

• Most clusters access and make use, 
at school level of new professional 
learning opportunities in relation to 
ACEs. 

• An agreed definition of wellbeing will 
operate across many clusters in year 
1. 

• Improved outcomes based upon the 
baseline from 2017 and uptake in 
university placements for learners 
within the SEREN programme. 

3 

Strong and 

inclusive 

schools 

committed to 

excellence, 

equity and 

well-being. 

Page 49



 

14 
 

 

• Building on the success of the Seren 
Network to embed the regional 
strategy to deliver improved 
outcomes for our more able learners 
at each key stage.  

• Expanding professional learning 
opportunities to enable key school 
practitioners to become more aware 
that the effect of Adverse Childhood 
Experiences (ACEs) can have on 
learners.  

• Working closely with key partners to 
support The Children’s Rights 
Approach to education.  

• Working with Regional Leads for 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) to 
implement, as appropriate, 
professional learning for school 
based practitioners.  

• By working closely with LAs to 
support the implementation of 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN), 
attendance, exclusion and for those 
pupils Educated other than at school 
(EOTAS) strategies at school level. 

D. Curriculum, 
Assessment 
and 
Accountability 

 
 
 

Robust delivery of support and 
challenge for identified 
departments leading to 
improvements in provision and 
outcomes.  
 
Schools are prepared to meet the 
curriculum and assessment 
demands in line with new 
accountability arrangements. 
 
Supporting schools to ensure the 

effective development of pupil 

skills at all phases.  

 
In collaboration with key partners 
refine the regional Welsh medium 
Education Strategy and continue to 
deliver on the key principles within 
the Global Futures Programme.  
 
To implement the Regional Strategy 
for Literacy and Numeracy in 
collaboration with key partners to 
accelerate outcomes at all key 
stages.  
 

• Most departments engage well with 
the regional support programmes 
leading to improvements in provision 
and outcomes.  

• By March 2019, all schools will have 
developed understanding of the 
emerging transformational 
curriculum coupled with a flexible 
approach to the changing 
performance measures.  

• A majority of schools make effective 
use of guidance materials for 
effective skills development at 
school level.  

• Increased numbers of practitioners 
enrolled onto language training 
events demonstrating improved 
confidence in language use.  

• Increased number of clusters with a 
member of staff trained to Higher 
Level through the one-year Welsh 
Language Sabbatical Scheme. 

• Increased proportion of Welsh 
medium teachers and support staff 
trained through the Sabbatical 
Scheme.  

• National Language Charter 
objectives will be met in all schools 

4 

Robust 
assessment, 

evaluation and 
accountability 
arrangements 

supporting 
a self-

improving 

system. 

Page 50



 

15 
 

 

Refine and develop support for 
Skills Challenge Certificate/Welsh 
Baccalaureate.  

(Silver Award) according to 
individual school timetables towards 
verification. 

• Cymraeg Campus objectives 
(Bronze / Silver) met in all 
participating English medium 
schools. 

• Improved standards in Modern 
Foreign Languages (MFL) and 
increased numbers of young people 
choosing to study modern foreign 
language subjects at GCSE and A 
level. 

• Improved learning experiences of 
modern foreign languages for 
learners from 7-19.  

• Outcomes from the Excellence in 
mathematics and Science National 
Networks become embedded across 
the region.  

• Most schools will implement through 
their planning recommendations of 
the regional strategies for Literacy 
and Numeracy.  

• Regional average Skills Challenge 
Certificate results to be in line with 
the National Average (-4/+2 
tolerance).    

E. Supporting 
Collaboration 

 
 

Ensure that education 
professionals within the region can 
thrive in a supportive and 
collaborative environment to raise 
standards and ensure that every 
young person can fulfil their 
potential. We will achieve this by: 

• Prioritising investment in clusters of 
schools to build capacity 
encouraging clusters to take 
collective ownership of outcomes, 
improve the quality of teaching and 
learning and develop the new 
curriculum.  

• Piloting a cluster based self-
assessment and development tool 
across selected clusters to enable 
accurate assessment of needs. 

• Increasing opportunities for 
university-school engagement to 
support an increased research-
engaged profession. 

• Supporting schools to develop as 
learning organisations (SLOs), 
enabling their capacity to adapt 

• A majority of cluster improvement 
plans are of a good quality focusing 
on shared data and a common 
commitment to collective working 
that enhances transition 
arrangements for learners. 

• The self-assessment cluster tool will 
be used effectively by 3 clusters as a 
pilot programme in year 1.  

• At least 12 comprehensive schools 
and 40 primary schools will have 
engaged in collaborative work with 
Higher Education Institutions. 

• by the end of the summer term 2018 
to produce school level research on 
improving practice. 

• Outcomes of research will inform 
future design of provision for 
Learning network schools, the 
cluster model and bespoke support 
for departments.  

• All schools will have engaged with 
the SLO model within year 1 and a 
majority of schools will have 
completed a self-assessment in 

4 

Robust 
assessment, 

evaluation and 
accountability 
arrangements 

supporting 
a self-

improving 

system. 

Page 51



 

16 
 

 

 

 

quickly and explore new 
approaches, with a means to 
improving learning and outcomes for 
their learners.  

• Reviewing and refining the Learning 
Network School approach, the 
cluster model and the approach to 
supporting GCSE specification 
changes in partnership with a Higher 
Education Institution. 

• Developing further the school based 
peer enquiry model. 

• Working in partnership with Local 
Authorities to develop a model for 
school federations.  

• Continuing to work in partnership 
with other regions to realise delivery 
of pan regional plans. 
 

relation to the OECD model for SLOs 
in year 2 to enable schools to 
become more effective learning 
organisations.  

• A majority of clusters have examples 
of school based peer enquiry work in 
relation to curriculum development 
and professional learning. 

• Outcomes of pan-regional 
collaborative programmes covering 
leadership, pedagogy, assessment, 
performance measurement and 
Equity and Wellbeing will inform 
provision and future planning.  

 
 
 

F. Curriculum 
Reform 

 
 

 
 

Support the development of a 
'world-class curriculum' that will 
help raise standards for all in Wales 
by: 

• Working with a partner Higher 
Education Institution to develop and 
deliver a focussed programme of 
professional learning that supports 
cluster based curriculum 
development.  

• Working in partnership with Welsh 
Government to lead the 
development of the Humanities Area 
of Learning and Experience (AoLE). 

• Continuing to provide support to and 
monitor the work of pioneer schools, 
providing opportunities for sharing of 
learning across the region. 

• Supporting schools, through 
effective brokerage in continuing to 
embed the Digital Competence 
Framework (DCF) and work realising 
the strategic aims of cracking the 
code. 

• Supporting schools trialling and 
testing of curriculum; planning and 
preparation for changes. 

• All schools will have a nominated 
lead practitioner for curriculum 
design and development, who will 
have worked through the 
professional learning programme.  

• Most clusters will have begun to 
develop principles for a collaborative 
approach to curriculum planning. 

• Humanities Area of Learning and 
Experience will be developed and 
tested through professional inquiry, 
in time for publication in the new 
Curriculum for Wales in March 2019. 

• All pioneer schools will pro-actively 
contribute to national AoLE 
development and the regional 
development programme.   

• DCF school survey to show most 
schools making good or better 
progress with implementing DCF. 

• Many schools will be actively 
engaged with Hwb platform. 

• Few schools receive Estyn 
recommendations to improve 
provision for ICT. 

• Many schools will be actively 
engaged with the 360 audit tool. 

• Identified clusters engage well with 
the Coding Club initiative.  
 

Page 52



 

17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G. Company 
Development 

To improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the EAS by:  

• Engaging fully with all consultation 
groups to ensure increased 
engagement with regional 
strategies.  

• Using of a wider range of 
performance indicators at school 
and regional level to ensure that the 
progress of all groups of learners is 
challenged and supported more 
fully. 

• Refining the funding processes and 
budget monitoring systems in line 
with the workforce strategy and 
regional need.  

• Introducing a regional Management 
Information System to enable more 
efficient of a range of data.  

• improving the process to evaluate 
the effectiveness of grant spend on 
pupil outcomes. 

• Ensuring that the EAS remains 
compliant with current and future 
legislative changes. 

• Ensuring governance and 
accountability structures are robust 
and that roles and responsibilities 
between the LA and EAS remain 
clear.  

• Engaging with any future changes to 
the National Model for regional 
working. 

• Learning from the other regions and 
sharing best practice in approaches 
to accelerating pupil outcomes. 

 

• The EAS remains compliant with 
Company Law. 

• There is a sustainable three-year 
financial plan in place. 

• Evaluating VFM at individual project 
level. 

• The majority of schools audited 
evidence effective use of grant 
money which will contribute to 
improved provision and outcomes 
for vulnerable learners. 

• A Management Information system 
will be implemented from September 
2018 enabling a more refined use of 
data.  

• Performance Management systems 
remain robust and self-evaluation 
processes present an accurate 
picture of the region. 

• The governance and accountability 
structures are robust and roles and 
responsibilities between the LA and 
EAS remain clear.  

• Collaboration and learning from 
other regions demonstrate an impact 
on the provision and outcomes 
within the region. 

 

Page 53



 

18 
 

4. National and Regional Implementation Strategies 

 

The EAS will work closely with all key partners to ensure the realisation of this Business Plan. The 

implementation of the Tiers, noted below, are embedded in way in which we will continue to work 

across the sectors. 

 

Source: Education in Wales: Our National Mission 

The EAS has invested in building the capacity of schools and educational settings within the region 
over the last four years to enable more collaborative ways of working. This approach is enabling 
teachers and leaders to learn from each other, to try out new approaches and to engage with 
educational research as the backdrop for improvement.   Across the region there are a number of 
well-established networks of professional practice, these will continue to be encouraged and the 
practice from within them shared.  
 
The approach to build capacity and schools taking more of a collective ownership for the 
development of teaching and leadership has been developed further and the cluster model will be 
embedded over the next few years across the region.  
  

5. Funding Information (indicative – will be updated) 

 
The EAS is funded on an annual basis from three sources as illustrated below. A detailed spending 
plan accompanies this Business Plan and is intrinsically linked to all actions contained within the 
Business Plan.  
  

 
Page 54



 

19 
 

 

6. Regional Key Stage Targets 2017-20 and Local Authority Attendance Targets  

The targets below are derived from the information submitted by all schools across South East 

Wales during the statutory target setting process in autumn 2017. The target setting process across 

the region is robust with all LA / school aggregate targets linked to individual pupils. 

To ensure that appropriate aspiration is applied across schools, a joint challenge process has been 

introduced by LA Officers and EAS staff. This process considers an analysis of projected future 

performance against previous performance, projected Free School Meal benchmark quarters, FFT 

estimates and WG modelled expectations. 

Targets for 2019 and 2020 remain draft and subject to additional challenge and scrutiny 

during the next iteration of the process in 2018. Individual LA aggregate targets can be found in 

the accompanying LA Annex documents. 

Foundation Phase 

 
Page 55



 

20 
 

Key Stage 2 

 

 

  

Page 56



 

21 
 

Key Stage 3 

 

 

 

  

Page 57



 

22 
 

Key Stage 4 

 

Local Authority Pupil Attendance Targets 

 

 

Authority Attendance Targets

2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target

Blaenau Gwent 94.6 94.9 95.0 95.1 Blaenau Gwent 93.7 94.5 94.7 95.0

Caerphilly 94.7 95.1 95.2 95.3 Caerphilly 93.3 94.2 94.3 94.4

Monmouthshire 95.6 96.2 96.2 96.2 Monmouthshire 95.0 95.2 95.25 95.3

Newport 94.7 94.8 94.9 95.0 Newport 93.6 93.8 94.0 94.1

Torfaen 94.6 96.0 96.0 96.5 Torfaen 93.7 95.0 95.0 95.5

Pupil Attendance

Primary 

 Pupil Attendance

Secondary 

Page 58



 

23 
 

7. Additional supporting documents 

Ref 
Document 
 

1 Local Authority Annex documents 2018-2019 

2 Detailed Business Plan April 2018-2019 

3 Detailed Resource Overview 2018-2019 

4 Long Term 3-year Business Plan Overview 2019 - 2021 

5 Regional Self-Evaluation Report 

6 EAS Risk Register 

8 Self-Evaluation Timetable 2016-2018 

9 Regional Professional Learning Offer 2018-2019  

10  Estyn Inspection Reports (May 2016 and September 2017) 

 

  

Page 59



 

24 
 

8. Glossary of Key Terms  

ACE Adverse Childhood Experience 

ALPS Advanced level performance system (used for A levels) 

AoLE Area of Learning and Experience from the new curriculum 

DCF Digital Competence Framework  

EAL English as an additional language 

EAS Education Achievement Service 

eFSM Eligible Free School Meals 

ETLF EAS Excellence in Teaching and Leadership Framework 

EOTAS Education Other Than At School 

EY Early Years 

FP Foundation Phase (Curriculum year groups Yr 1 and Yr 2) 

FSM Free School Meals 

GTP Graduate Teacher Programme 

HEI Higher Education Institution 

HR Human Resource 

ITE Initial Teacher Education  

KS2,3,4 
Key Stage 2, 3, 4 (KS2 age 7 – 11 “Juniors”, KS3 age 11- 14, KS4 age 14 -
16) 

LA Local Authority 

LAC Looked after Children  

LLC Languages, Literacy and Communication 

LLC Cym Languages, Literacy and Communication - Cymraeg 

LLC Eng Languages, Literacy and Communication - English 

MA More Able learners  

MAT More Able and Talented 

MD Mathematical Development 

NC National Curriculum 

NPQH National Professional Qualification for Headship  

NMS Non- maintained Nursery Setting 

PGCE Post Graduate Certificate in Education 

PLASC Pupil Annual School Census 

PLO Professional Learning Offer  

PSD Personal and Social Development 

PSE Personal and Social Education 

PSHE Personal Social Health Education (also PSCHE including citizenship) 

SIS Self-Improving System 

SEN Special Educational Needs 

SEWC South East Wales Consortium  

SEREN 
Network of regional hubs designed to support Wales’ brightest 6 form 
students to achieve their academic potential and to gain access to leading 
universities.  

SLO Schools and Learning Organisations  

STEM Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics 

VFM Value for Money 

WG Welsh Government 

Page 60



 

25 
 

 

Expected National 
Curriculum Levels 

By the end of the Foundation Phase, at the age of seven, pupils are expected 
to reach Foundation Phase outcome 5 and the more able outcome 6. 

By the end of the key stage 2, at the age of eleven, learners are expected to 
reach level 4 and the more able to reach level 5. 

By the end of the key stage 3, at the age of fourteen, learners are expected 
to reach level 5 and the more able to reach level 6 or level 7 

Foundation Phase 
Indicator (FPI)  

Progress in learning through the Foundation Phase is indicated by outcomes 
(from outcome 1 to outcome 6). The Foundation Phase indicator (FPI) 
relates to the expected performance in three areas of learning in the 
Foundation Phase: literacy, language and communication in English or 
Welsh first language; mathematical development; personal and social 
development, wellbeing and cultural diversity. Pupils must achieve the 
expected outcome (outcome 5) in the three areas above to gain the 
Foundation Phase indicator.  

Core Subject 
Indicator (CSI) in 
key stages 2,3 and 
4  

The core subject indicator relates to the expected performance in English or 
Welsh first language, mathematics and science, the core subjects of the 
National Curriculum. Learners must gain at least the expected level in either 
English or Welsh first language together with mathematics and science to 
gain the core subject indicator. 

 
Level 1 
qualification  

The equivalent of a GCSE at grade D to G. 

The Level 1 
threshold (L1) 

Learners must have gained a volume of qualifications equivalent to five 
GCSEs at grades D to G. 

Level 2 
qualification  

The equivalent of a GCSE at grade A* to C. 

The Level 2 
threshold (L2) 

Learners must have gained a volume of qualifications equivalent to five 
GCSEs at grade A* to C. 

The Level 2 
threshold 
including English 
or Welsh first 
language and 
mathematics (L2+) 

Learners must have gained level 2 qualifications in English or Welsh first 
language and in mathematics as part of their threshold of 5 Level 2 
qualifications. 

Level 3 
qualification  

The equivalent of an A level at A* to C  

The Level 3 
threshold (L3) 

Learners must have gained a volume of qualifications equivalent to two A 
levels at grade A* to E. 

The capped 
average points 
score (CPS)  

Only includes the best nine results (with subject restrictions) for each pupil 
from all qualifications approved for use in Wales at age 16. 

 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
Local Authority Specific Annex 2018-2019 
 
Local Authority: Newport 
 
The targets below are derived from pupil level targets submitted by all schools across South East Wales during the statutory target setting 
process in autumn 2017. The target setting process across the region is robust with all school targets linked to targets for individual pupils and a 
comprehensive challenge process by Challenge Advisers and quality assurance by Principal Challenge Advisers and Local Authorities including 
analysis of projected future performance against previous performance, projected Free School Meal benchmark quarters and WG Modelled 
Expectations.  
  

P
age 65



 

2 
  

 
  

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target

FPI 89.2 87.2 FPI 82.0 75.4 FPI 91.0 89.9

LLC English O5+ 90.5 88.5 LLC English O5+ 85.2 77.7 LLC English O5+ 91.8 91.0

LLC Welsh O5+ 94.5 94.4 LLC Welsh O5+ 88.2 92.3 LLC Welsh O5+ 95.9 94.8

Math Dev.O5+ 91.3 89.9 Math Dev.O5+ 84.3 81.2 Math Dev.O5+ 93.1 91.8

PSD O5+ 94.7 94.4 PSD O5+ 91.0 88.6 PSD O5+ 95.6 95.8

LLC English O6+ 42.8 38.7 LLC English O6+ 24.2 22.3 LLC English O6+ 47.4 42.3

LLC Welsh O6+ 47.3 41.1 LLC Welsh O6+ 17.6 23.1 LLC Welsh O6+ 54.1 44.2

Math Dev. O6+ 39.7 35.8 Math Dev. O6+ 21.3 20.8 Math Dev. O6+ 44.2 39.1

PSD O6+ 63.9 59.9 PSD O6+ 44.2 45.2 PSD O6+ 68.9 63.2

2017 2018

Actual Target

FPI 9.0 14.5

LLC English O5+ 6.6 13.2

LLC Welsh O5+ 7.7 2.5

Math Dev.O5+ 8.8 10.6

PSD O5+ 4.6 7.2

LLC English O6+ 23.2 20.0

LLC Welsh O6+ 36.4 21.1

Math Dev. O6+ 22.9 18.3

PSD O6+ 24.7 18.0

FSM/non FSM gap

non-FSM Pupils

Foundation Phase

All Pupils FSM Pupils

P
age 66



 

3 
  

 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target

CSI 90.1 90.5 90.2 89.7 CSI 78.0 81.2 79.7 80.2 CSI 93.4 92.5 92.9 91.6

English L4+ 93.0 92.6 91.9 92.2 English L4+ 85.5 83.2 82.8 82.7 English L4+ 95.1 94.6 94.3 94.2

Welsh (1st) L4+ 90.1 94.4 93.9 95.2 Welsh (1st) L4+ 69.2 83.3 80.0 85.7 Welsh (1st) L4+ 94.8 95.5 96.4 97.1

Maths L4+ 91.9 92.2 91.6 91.8 Maths L4+ 81.1 85.4 82.3 81.8 Maths L4+ 94.8 93.7 94.0 93.8

Science L4+ 93.4 94.0 92.7 92.4 Science L4+ 84.0 87.4 83.5 84.7 Science L4+ 95.9 95.5 95.1 94.0

English L5+ 51.0 52.3 47.3 49.4 English L5+ 28.0 33.0 26.2 24.9 English L5+ 56.7 56.3 52.6 54.3

Welsh (1st) L5+ 49.3 52.8 40.4 41.0 Welsh (1st) L5+ 46.2 33.3 13.3 35.7 Welsh (1st) L5+ 50.0 54.5 45.2 42.0

Maths L5+ 51.4 49.5 45.5 47.4 Maths L5+ 28.0 28.8 25.2 23.6 Maths L5+ 57.3 53.8 50.6 52.1

Science L5+ 54.8 54.8 50.4 48.0 Science L5+ 31.4 28.8 30.1 23.0 Science L5+ 60.7 60.2 55.5 53.0

Welsh (2nd) 

L4+
86.3 87.7 86.8 85.5

Welsh (2nd) 

L4+
72.1 79.2 74.6 71.2

Welsh (2nd) 

L4+
90.3 89.5 89.9 88.4

Welsh (2nd) 

L5+
38.9 36.0 33.0 34.6

Welsh (2nd) 

L5+
18.0 16.2 19.3 16.7

Welsh (2nd) 

L5+
44.1 40.2 36.4 38.1

2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target

CSI 15.4 11.2 13.2 11.5

English L4+ 9.6 11.4 11.5 11.4

Welsh (1st) L4+ 25.6 12.1 16.4 11.4

Maths L4+ 13.6 8.2 11.7 12.0

Science L4+ 12.0 8.1 11.5 9.3

English L5+ 28.7 23.3 26.3 29.4

Welsh (1st) L5+ 3.8 21.2 31.9 6.3

Maths L5+ 29.3 25.0 25.4 28.5

Science L5+ 29.2 31.4 25.4 30.0

Welsh (2nd) 

L4+
18.1 10.3 15.3 17.1

Welsh (2nd) 

L5+
26.1 24.0 17.2 21.4

FSM/non FSM 

gap

non-FSM Pupils

Key Stage 2

All Pupils FSM Pupils

P
age 67



 

4 
  

  

Key Stage 3

2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target

CSI 85.3 88.6 89.8 91.0 CSI 67.4 74.6 76.8 81.5 CSI 89.5 91.3 92.7 92.7

English L5+ 89.3 92.0 92.8 92.4 English L5+ 74.2 80.9 83.6 85.1 English L5+ 93.0 94.1 94.8 93.8

Welsh (1st) 

L5+
- - 92.6 89.9

Welsh (1st) 

L5+
- - 84.6 92.3

Welsh (1st) 

L5+
- - 94.1 89.4

Maths L5+ 90.6 92.3 92.6 94.4 Maths L5+ 80.4 80.5 83.0 86.3 Maths L5+ 93.1 94.5 94.8 95.9

Science L5+ 92.9 93.3 94.4 94.9 Science L5+ 85.6 82.0 88.2 87.5 Science L5+ 94.9 95.4 95.7 96.2

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L5+
83.4 90.0 90.5 92.8

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L5+
63.9 81.6 80.3 86.0

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L5+
88.2 91.7 92.8 94.0

English L6+ 58.8 66.4 69.9 69.3 English L6+ 30.9 42.2 48.3 54.0 English L6+ 65.2 71.0 74.8 71.9

Welsh (1st) 

L6+
- - 56.8 60.8

Welsh (1st) 

L6+
- - 53.8 53.8

Welsh (1st) 

L6+
- - 57.4 62.1

Maths L6+ 66.6 70.6 73.8 75.4 Maths L6+ 38.1 48.8 48.6 62.5 Maths L6+ 73.3 74.8 79.4 77.6

Science L6+ 63.6 71.9 77.4 75.9 Science L6+ 37.1 46.1 56.7 59.3 Science L6+ 69.7 76.9 82.0 78.7

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L6+
43.2 57.9 61.0 69.4

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L6+
19.2 38.3 40.3 51.1

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L6+
48.7 61.6 65.7 72.5

2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target

CSI 22.2 16.7 16.0 11.2

English L5+ 18.8 13.2 11.2 8.7

Welsh (1st) 

L5+
- - 9.5 -2.9

Maths L5+ 12.7 14.0 11.8 9.6

Science L5+ 9.3 13.4 7.5 8.7

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L5+
24.3 10.1 12.4 8.1

English L6+ 34.3 28.8 26.5 17.9

Welsh (1st) 

L6+
- - 3.5 8.3

Maths L6+ 35.1 26.0 30.8 15.1

Science L6+ 32.6 30.8 25.4 19.4

Welsh 2nd 

Lang L6+
29.5 23.4 25.3 21.5

FSM/non FSM 

gap

non-FSM 

Pupils
All Pupils FSM Pupils

P
age 68



 

5 
  

 

Note: As advised by the LA, there are no EOTAS pupils in Newport for this year’s Yr11 cohort.   

2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target Actual Target Target Target

L2 inclusive 55.5 62.5 65.1 70.2 L2 inclusive 28.6 33.3 43.8 45.7 L2 inclusive 62.1 68.9 69.9 74.9

L2  65.3 71.7 78.1 75.0 L2  40.2 45.2 63.3 52.3 L2  71.8 77.7 81.6 79.4

L1  92.6 95.7 96.8 96.2 L1  83.8 86.2 92.9 89.1 L1  96.7 97.6 97.6 97.5

Capped 9 

Points Score
345.0 350.0 357.4 360.9

Capped 9 

Points Score
282.4 304.9 326.4 339.8

Capped 9 

Points Score
365.8 357.2 360.9 360.7

5+ A*-A 16.3 17.5 21.0 18.3 5+ A*-A 4.2 6.1 8.5 7.8 5+ A*-A 19.0 20.0 23.7 20.2

English A*-C 62.9 69.2 71.7 75.5 English A*-C 34.7 43.3 51.2 57.4 English A*-C 70.0 75.1 76.3 79.0

Welsh (1st) A*-

C
0.0 - - -

Welsh (1st) A*-

C
- - - -

Welsh (1st) A*-

C
- - - -

Maths A*-C 61.2 66.8 70.1 75.1 Maths A*-C 37.5 41.4 48.4 53.5 Maths A*-C 67.3 72.6 75.0 79.3

Maths 

Numeracy
58.4 65.5 67.8 72.2

Maths 

Numeracy
33.6 41.4 46.3 50.0

Maths 

Numeracy
64.7 71.0 72.7 76.4

Science 1st 

Qual
56.1 64.5 68.2 70.7

Science 1st 

Qual
30.5 41.0 48.4 49.6

Science 1st 

Qual
62.5 69.9 72.7 74.7

Science 2nd 

Qual
44.6 58.9 62.8 67.7

Science 2nd 

Qual
19.7 36.4 42.0 46.5

Science 2nd 

Qual
50.6 64.0 67.4 71.8

2017 2018 2019 2020

Actual Target Target Target

L2 inclusive 33.6 35.6 26.1 29.2

L2  31.6 32.5 18.3 27.1

L1  12.9 11.4 4.7 8.4

Capped 9 

Points Score
83.4 52.2 34.5 20.9

5+ A*-A 14.8 13.8 15.2 12.4

English A*-C 35.2 31.8 25.1 21.6

Welsh (1st) A*-

C
- - - -

Maths A*-C 29.9 31.2 26.6 25.7

Maths 

Numeracy
31.1 29.6 26.4 26.4

Science 1st 

Qual
32.0 28.9 24.3 25.1

Science 2nd 

Qual
30.9 27.6 25.4 25.3

FSM/non FSM 

gap

non-FSM Pupils

Key Stage 4

All Pupils FSM Pupils

P
age 69



 

6 
  

Primary Attendance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Secondary Attendance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of National Categorisation of schools in the Local Authority in 2015-2016, 2016-2017 and 2017-2018 

Step 1 – Primary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 

Newport 
15-16 0 6 16 18 0% 15% 40% 45% 

16-17 0 5 12 23 0% 13% 30% 58% 

South East 
Wales 

15-16 2 24 90 79 1% 12% 46% 41% 

16-17 2 19 61 113 1% 10% 31% 58% 
 

 

 

Pupil Attendance 

  
2017 

Actual 

2018  

Target 

2019  

Target 

2020 

Target 

LA 94.7 94.8 94.9 95.0 

Pupil Attendance 

 

2017 

Actual 

2018  

Target 

2019  

Target 

2020 

Target 

LA 93.6 93.8 94.0 94.1 

P
age 70



 

7 
  

Step 2 - Primary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

D C B A D C B A 

Newport 

15-16 0 4 15 21 0% 10% 38% 53% 

16-17 0 2 14 24 0% 5% 35% 60% 

17-18 0 3 15 24 0% 7% 36% 57% 

South East 
Wales 

15-16 4 27 113 50 2% 14% 58% 26% 

16-17 2 19 106 63 1% 10% 56% 33% 

17-18 3 17 86 88 2% 9% 44% 45% 
 

Step 3 - Primary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Red Amber Yellow Green Red Amber Yellow Green 

Newport 

15-16 0 4 14 22 0% 10% 35% 55% 

16-17 0 2 16 22 0% 5% 40% 55% 

17-18 1 2 15 24 2% 5% 36% 57% 

South East 
Wales 

15-16 5 29 109 51 3% 15% 56% 26% 

16-17 4 17 110 59 2% 9% 58% 31% 

17-18 9 15 83 87 5% 8% 43% 45% 
 

P
age 71



 

8 
  

 

Step 1 - Secondary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 

Newport 
15-16 1 5 1 1 13% 63% 13% 13% 

16-17 2 2 2 2 25% 25% 25% 25% 

South East 
Wales 

15-16 3 22 6 4 9% 63% 17% 11% 

16-17 3 19 8 5 9% 54% 23% 14% 
 

Step 2 – Secondary Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

P
age 72



 

9 
  

D C B A D C B A 

Newport 

15-16 2 3 2 1 25% 38% 25% 13% 

16-17 1 3 3 2 11% 33% 33% 22% 

17-18 2 2 3 2 22% 22% 33% 22% 

South East 
Wales 

15-16 3 17 15 1 8% 47% 42% 3% 

16-17 6 9 17 4 17% 25% 47% 11% 

17-18 6 12 13 5 17% 33% 36% 14% 
 

Step 3 – Secondary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Red Amber Yellow Green Red Amber Yellow Green 

 15-16 2 4 1 1 25% 50% 13% 13% 

Newport 16-17 1 3 3 2 11% 33% 33% 22% 

 17-18 3 1 3 2 33% 11% 33% 22% 

South East 
Wales 

15-16 6 17 12 1 17% 47% 33% 3% 

16-17 6 12 15 3 17% 33% 42% 8% 

17-18 9 12 12 3 25% 33% 33% 8% 

 

  

P
age 73



 

10 
  

 

LA schools currently in any Estyn follow-up category  

Phase School 
Date of last 
inspection 

Date report 
published 

Follow-up status of last inspection 

Primary St Andrew’s Primary Nov-15 Jan-16 LA monitoring 

Primary Maesglas Primary Nov-16 Jan-17 Estyn monitoring 

Primary Alway Primary Nov-16 Jan-17 Estyn monitoring 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase School 
Date of last 
inspection 

Date report 
published 

Follow-up status of last inspection 

Secondary Llanwern High Jan-17 Mar-17 Significant Improvement 

Secondary St Julian’s School Monitoring visit Jun17 Special Measures 

P
age 74



 

11 
  

 

Phase School 
Date of last 
inspection 

Date report 
published 

Follow-up status of last inspection 

Special Maes Ebbw Mar-16 May-16 Estyn monitoring 

 

LA summary and issues  

Overall pupil performance 

 Attainment at Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2 has been above the Wales average for over 4 years, and the rate of improvement is 
higher than for Wales. 

 Attainment at Key Stage 3 has been below the Wales average since 2014, although the rate of improvement has been higher than the 
Wales rate over the 4 years. 

 Attainment at Key Stage 4 shows a much faster rate of improvement than that across Wales, and performance was above the Wales 
average in 2017. 

 Attainment at Key Stage 5 has decreased in 2017. Performance remains below that for Wales. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving the FPI+1 rose by 6.8pp between 2014 and 2017, and by 1.8pp from 2016. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving the CSI+1 at KS2 rose by 5.1pp between 2014 and 2017, and by 2.2pp from 2016. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving the CSI+1 at KS3 rose by 17.3pp between 2014 and 2017, and by 7.3pp from 2016. 

 The proportion of pupils achieving 5A*/As at KS4 fell by 2.9pp between 2014 and 2017, and rose by 1.8pp from 2016. Both the proportion 
achieving 5A*/As and the rate of improvement are below that across Wales in 2016.  

 
Gender 

 Between 2014 and 2017, the gender gap narrowed at FP. The gender gap in 2017 was below that for Wales. 

 At KS2, the gender gap narrowed in this time. The gender gap in 2017 was below that for Wales.  

 Between 2014 and 2017, the gender gap narrowed at KS3. The gap was wider than the Wales gender gap in 2017. 

 At KS4, the gender gap widened between 2014 and 2017, and in 2017 it was slightly wider than for Wales.  
 
FSM 

 At FP and KS2, performance of FSM pupils in 2017 is above or the same as the Wales average, and the FSM/non FSM gap has narrowed 
or remained stable. The gap remains larger than for Wales at FP. 

P
age 75



 

12 
  

 At KS3, performance of FSM pupils has been below the Wales average since 2014, but the FSM/non FSM gap has narrowed since 2014. 
However, it is wider than the gap across Wales. 

 At KS4, performance of FSM pupils is on a par with the Wales average. The FSM/non FSM gap widened from 2014, and is larger than 
across Wales. 

 
FSM benchmarking quartiles  

 At FP, 76% of schools are above the median for FPI. At KS2, 58% of schools are above the median for CSI. At KS3, 25% of schools are 

above the median for CSI. At KS4, 63% (5 out of 8 schools) are above the median for L2 inc. 

 At KS4, Caerleon, Lliswerry and St Joseph’s are in Quarter 1 for L2 inc and maths for 2017, Caerleon and Lliswerry for English also 

 St Julian, Newport High and Llanwern are below the median in L2 inc, English and maths, and were in Quarter 4 for L2 inc 

 Bassaleg is in Quarter 2 for these three measures 

Attendance/Exclusions 

 There has been an increase in attendance at both primary and secondary level since 2014. Secondary figure just below that of Wales, 

(Wales primary not available yet) 

 Unauthorised absence at primary schools has remained stable at 1.8%, but at secondary schools this has decreased to 2%. Secondary 

figure is higher than Wales. 

 There has been decrease in exclusions of 5 days or fewer at secondary level, primary remains stable. There has been a decrease in 

exclusions of 6 days or more at both primary and secondary level. 

 There were 3 permanent exclusions in 2017 in primary schools (compared to 3 for the 3 years previously combined). The breakdown 

across schools was Alway – 1, Monnow – 1, Ringland – 1. 

 There were 9 permanent exclusions in 2017 in secondary schools (there have been 8 or 9 annually since 2014). The breakdown across 

schools was Bassaleg – 2, Lliswerry – 1, Newport High – 1, St Julians – 2, The John Frost School – 3  

Inspection/Categorisation 

 The percentage of schools judged at least Good for current performance has decreased since 2014 from 91% to 63%. Increase in schools 

judged at least Good for prospects for improvement has also decreased to 63%. No unsatisfactory inspections in 2016/17. 

 The percentage of primary schools categorised Green has increased to 57% in 2017/18. Three secondary schools categorised Red, one 

Amber, three Yellow and two Green (provisional and confidential). 

  

P
age 76



 

13 
  

Schools requiring Improvement 2017-2018 (Amber and Red Overall Categories of support)  

The information below indicates the additional support that will be given to schools in the overall category of Amber or Red in the Local Authority 
in the academic year 2017-2018. The support is in line with the guidance within the National Categorisation System and within the SEWC 
Intervention Framework 2017-2018. Each of these schools will have a detailed Intervention or Support Plan, the progress each school makes 
over the next academic year will be captured through regular Education Improvement Boards (EIBs) or Intervention Meetings.  

Schools requiring Amber levels of support Schools requiring Red levels of support 

The John Frost School Bridge Achievement Centre 

Maes Ebbw Special School Llanwern High School 

Milton Primary Maesglas Primary 

Somerton Primary Newport High School 

 St Julian’s School 

 
The content of this LA Annex has been agreed by: 

LA Director / Chief Education Officer:   

 Ms Sarah Morgan 

 

Cabinet Member for Education:  

 Cllr Gail Giles 

 

EAS Managing Director  

P
age 77



 

14 
  

 Ms. Debbie Harteveld 

 

P
age 78



APPENDIX 4 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

Local Authority Specific Annex 2017-2018 
 
Local Authority: Newport 
 
Review of LA level performance set against target and previous performance  

 

 

 

Performance in the foundation phase improved slightly from 89.1% in 2016, to 89.2% pupils achieving the foundation phase indicator (FPI) in 2017, an 

increase of 0.1 percentage points. Newport currently remains ranked 6th in Wales for the FPI when compared with other local authorities, which is above the 

LA’s FSM ranking (15th, 2017 PLASC data). 

Foundation Phase

FPI 89.1 89.2 88.4 FPI 76.4 82.0 79.8

LLC English O5+ 90.4 90.5 89.7 LLC English O5+ 80.3 85.2 82.9

LLC Welsh O5+ 97.7 94.5 93.5 LLC Welsh O5+ 92.3 88.2 76.5

Math Dev.O5+ 91.3 91.3 90.3 Math Dev.O5+ 81.3 84.3 83.1

PSD O5+ 95.2 94.7 94.6 PSD O5+ 90.2 91.0 91.0

LLC English O6 40.2 42.8 40.5 LLC English O6 21.8 24.2 23.5

LLC Welsh O6 46.5 47.3 45.7 LLC Welsh O6 38.5 17.6 17.6

Math Dev. O6 37.4 39.7 38.4 Math Dev. O6 21.0 21.3 21.7

PSD O6 61.3 63.9 60.0 PSD O6 37.6 44.2 41.7

All Pupils 2016 Actual 2017 Actual FSM Pupils
2017 Perf. 

v Target

2017 LA 

Target
2016 Actual

2017 

Actual

2017 Perf. 

v Target

2017 LA 

Target

P
age 81



 

2 
 

 
 

10 Year Performance Summary – FPI / CSI (before 2012) 

 

P
age 82



 

3 
 

There have been improvements at the expected level (outcome 5+) in all areas except LLC Welsh and PSD.  At the higher outcome (outcome 6+) there have 

been improvements in all areas. 

 

Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 5+: 

 

Percentage of pupils achieving Outcome 6+: 

 

Newport 2017 89.2 1.0 90.5 1.0 94.5 -1.0 91.3 1.0 94.7 -1.0

Target

Newport 2016

Wales 2017

94.6

95.2

94.7

91.3

90.3

FPI LLC English LLC Welsh
Mathematical 

Development
PSD

88.4

89.1

87.3

89.7

90.4

88.1

93.5

97.7

90.9

90.3

Newport 2017 42.8 1.0 47.3 1.0 39.7 1.0 63.9 1.0

Target

Newport 2016

Wales 2017

40.2

38.1

46.5

38.1

37.4

38.7

61.3

61.3

40.5 45.7 38.4 60.0

LLC English LLC Welsh
Mathematical 

Development
PSD

P
age 83



 

4 
 

Performance in the Foundation Phase Indicator improved slightly by 0.1 percentage points and remains ranked 6th in Wales. 

Performance in LLC English improved slightly by 0.1 percentage points at outcome 5+ and has improved by 2.6 percentage points at outcome 6+. 

Performance is ranked 5th in Wales at outcome 5+. 

Performance in LLC Welsh has declined by 3.2 percentage points at outcome 5+ but has improved by 0.8 percentage points at outcome 6+. Performance is 

ranked 5th in Wales at outcome 5+. 

Performance in mathematical development remains stable at 91.3% at outcome 5+, and has improved by 2.3 percentage points at outcome 6+. Performance 

is ranked 8th in Wales at outcome 5+. 

Performance in PSDWCD has declined by 0.5 percentage point at outcome 5+ but has improved by 2.6 percentage points at outcome 6+.  Performance is 

ranked 16th in Wales at outcome 5+. 

Performance has exceeded schools’ aggregate targets for each area of learning, except for LLC Welsh O5+, which was 1% within target.  

Gender differences at outcome 5+ (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

At outcome 5+ gender differences have increased in LLC Welsh and PSD.  The gender gap is broadly in line or below the national average in all indicators 

except PSD.  

Gender differences at outcome 6 (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -8.1 -6.9 -7.8 -7.1 -1.0 -2.6 -5.4 -4.1 -4.8 -5.4

Wales -8.2 -7.1 -8.3 -7.2 -7.0 -6.0 -5.3 -4.1 -5.3 -5.0

LLC English LLC Welsh
Mathematical 

Development
PSDFPI

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -9.0 -8.5 5.8 -25.5 2.8 0.9 -17.9 -19.5

Wales -11.7 -12.7 -15.1 -13.7 0.1 -0.9 -18.3 -18.0

LLC Welsh
Mathematical 

Development
PSDLLC English

P
age 84



 

5 
 

At outcome 6+ gender differences have increased in LLC Welsh and PSD. The gender gap is narrower than or in line with the national average for LLC 

English and MD. 

Wales rankings: 

When compared with other LAs in Wales, performance in Newport is higher than could be expected for each area of learning except for PSDWCD.  Ranks 

position has improved for MD and remained the same for FPI and LLC English. 

 

 
FPI LLC English 

LLC  

Welsh 

Mathematical 

Development 
PSDWCD 

2017 6  5  5  8  16  

2016 6  5  1  9  7  

2015 8  7  2  10  9  

 

 

 

  

Monmouthshire 93.8 Monmouthshire 94.7 Monmouthshire 98.1 Monmouthshire 94.4 Monmouthshire 97.9
Vale of Glamorgan 91.4 Ceredigion 92.1 Blaenau Gwent 96.8 Vale of Glamorgan 93.7 Vale of Glamorgan 96.7
Ceredigion 90.2 Vale of Glamorgan 91.8 Vale of Glamorgan 96.6 Ceredigion 92.8 Flintshire 96.1
Powys 89.6 Torfaen 90.8 Powys 95.2 Bridgend 92.3 Ceredigion 96.0
Flintshire 89.5 Newport 90.5 Newport 94.5 Flintshire 92.2 Powys 96.0
South East Wales 89.2 South East Wales 90.4 Bridgend 94.4 Merthyr Tydfil 91.8 Bridgend 95.6
Newport 89.2 Flintshire 90.3 Flintshire 94.1 Powys 91.6 Gwynedd 95.3
Bridgend 89.1 Wrexham 90.0 Swansea 93.8 South East Wales 91.4 South East Wales 95.2

Caerphilly 88.9 Bridgend 90.0 Caerphilly 93.8 Newport 91.3 Cardiff 95.1
Torfaen 88.6 Powys 89.9 Merthyr Tydfil 93.3 Caerphilly 91.2 Wrexham 95.1

Cardiff 88.5 Caerphilly 89.6 South East Wales 92.4 Cardiff 91.2 Torfaen 95.1
Wrexham 88.4 Cardiff 89.1 Rhondda Cynon Taff 92.2 Wrexham 91.1 Caerphilly 95.0
Merthyr Tydfil 88.1 Merthyr Tydfil 89.1 Cardiff 92.1 Torfaen 90.7 Isle of Anglesey 94.9

Wales 87.3 Pembrokeshire 88.5 Ceredigion 91.8 Gwynedd 90.3 Merthyr Tydfil 94.8

Rhondda Cynon Taff 86.9 Wales 88.1 Wales 90.9 Wales 90.3 Carmarthenshire 94.8
Pembrokeshire 86.6 Rhondda Cynon Taff 87.7 Denbighshire 90.6 Rhondda Cynon Taff 90.2 Swansea 94.7

Gwynedd 86.6 Blaenau Gwent 86.8 Carmarthenshire 90.5 Blaenau Gwent 90.0 Newport 94.7

Blaenau Gwent 86.0 Denbighshire 86.4 Isle of Anglesey 90.3 Carmarthenshire 89.6 Wales 94.7

Isle of Anglesey 85.8 Swansea 85.8 Neath Port Talbot 89.2 Pembrokeshire 89.3 Denbighshire 94.4
Carmarthenshire 85.6 Conwy 85.7 Wrexham 88.7 Isle of Anglesey 89.1 Conwy 94.3
Swansea 85.5 Isle of Anglesey 84.1 Gwynedd 88.3 Swansea 89.0 Blaenau Gwent 94.2
Denbighshire 85.3 Neath Port Talbot 82.5 Conwy 87.2 Denbighshire 88.8 Rhondda Cynon Taff 93.8
Conwy 84.0 Carmarthenshire 82.1 Pembrokeshire 86.3 Conwy 87.4 Pembrokeshire 93.4
Neath Port Talbot 81.2 Gwynedd 57.9 Torfaen 83.8 Neath Port Talbot 85.4 Neath Port Talbot 91.3

FPI LLC - English LLC - Welsh Math. Dev. PSD

P
age 85



 

6 
 

 
 

Performance improved in 2017, with 90.1% pupils achieving the core subject indicator (CSI), 1.3 percentage points above 88.8% in 2016.  Newport is ranked 

9th in Wales, which is higher than could be expected given the LA’s FSM ranking.  

 

 

Key Stage 2

CSI 88.8 90.1 90.7 89.8 89.6 CSI 79.9 78.0 81.3 79.1 81.1

English L4+ 91.7 93.0 92.3 91.6 91.7 English L4+ 84.1 85.5 83.8 81.8 84.3

Welsh (1st) L4+ 94.6 90.1 91.4 93.2 92.7 Welsh (1st) L4+ 83.3 69.2 75.0 71.4 86.7

Maths L4+ 91.3 91.9 92.1 91.3 91.0 Maths L4+ 84.7 81.1 83.4 81.5 83.3

Science L4+ 93.2 93.4 93.6 93.2 92.9 Science L4+ 84.4 84.0 86.3 84.8 86.3

English L5+ 49.5 51.0 50.3 48.7 45.7 English L5+ 25.1 28.0 28.1 29.3 28.2

Welsh (1st) L5+ 52.7 49.3 50.0 50.7 50.0 Welsh (1st) L5+ 58.3 46.2 50.0 14.3 26.7

Maths L5+ 49.6 51.4 50.3 45.8 43.5 Maths L5+ 31.6 28.0 29.1 24.5 27.2

Science L5+ 51.5 54.8 51.9 48.1 46.9 Science L5+ 33.9 31.4 29.4 26.9 29.4

2018 LA 

Target

2019 LA 

Target

2018 LA 

Target

2019 LA 

Target
All Pupils

2016 

Actual
FSM Pupils

2017 LA 

Target

2017 

Actual

2017 

Actual

2017 Perf. v 

Target

2017 Perf. 

v Target

2017 LA 

Target

2016 

Actual

P
age 86



 

7 
 

10 Year Performance Summary – Key Stage 2 CSI 

 

Performance at the expected level (4+) and expected level+1 (5+) has improved in all areas except Welsh first language L4+ & L5+. 

 

  

P
age 87



 

8 
 

Percentage of pupils achieving level 4+: 

 

Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+: 

 

Performance in the CSI has improved by 1.3 percentage points and is ranked 9th in Wales. 

Performance in English at the expected level 4+ has improved by 1.3 percentage points and is ranked 5th in Wales. Performance at the higher level 5+ has 

improved by 1.5 percentage points. 

Performance in Welsh (first language) at the expected level 4+ has declined by 4.5 percentage points and is ranked 15th in Wales.  Performance in Welsh (first 

language) at the higher level 5+ has declined by 3.4 percentage points. 

Performance in mathematics at the expected level 4+ has improved by 0.6 percentage points and is ranked 10th in Wales. Performance in mathematics at the 

higher level 5+ has improved by 1.8 percentage points. 

Performance in science at the expected level 4+ has improved slightly by 0.2 percentage points and is ranked 7th in Wales. Performance in science at the 

higher level 5+ has improved by 3.3 percentage points. 

Performance at the expected level 4+ and expected level +1 (5+) for all indicators met or exceeded all of the school aggregate targets. 

  

Newport 2017 90.1 1.0 93.0 1.0 90.1 -1.0 91.9 1.0 93.4 1.0

Target

Newport 2016

Wales 2017 91.1

91.4

Mathematics Science

93.6

93.2

92.2

92.1

91.3

91.6

94.6

91.6

CSI English
Welsh (First 

Language)

91.7

92.390.7

88.8

89.5

Newport 2017 51.0 1.0 49.3 -1.0 51.4 1.0 54.8 1.0

Target

Newport 2016

Wales 2017

49.5

44.7

English
Welsh (First 

Language)

52.7

41.5

50.3 50.0

47.0

49.6

Mathematics Science

51.5

46.4

50.3 51.9

P
age 88



 

9 
 

Gender differences at level 4+ (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

At level 4+ gender differences have decreased or remained the same in each subject area except Welsh first language.  Gender differences are wider than 

the national gender differences in Welsh.   

Gender differences at level 5+ (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

At level 5+ gender differences have decreased for English and Welsh.  The gender gap is wider than the national average in mathematics. 

  

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -5.1 -3.4 -5.6 -2.7 -6.0 -8.7 -3.3 -1.6 -2.3 -2.3

Wales -5.2 -4.5 -5.6 -5.0 -5.2 -6.0 -3.2 -2.8 -3.6 -3.4

CSI English
Welsh (First 

Language)
Mathematics Science

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -11.1 -10.0 -34.9 -11.0 0.8 -1.4 -3.2 -3.7

Wales -12.0 -12.9 -13.8 -17.3 0.7 -0.8 -3.6 -5.2

English
Welsh (First 

Language)
Mathematics Science

P
age 89



 

10 
 

Wales rankings: 

LA’s rankings against other LAs in Wales have increased for CSI and maths, and are higher than could be expected for all indicators given the LA’s FSM 

ranking.  
 

 
CSI English 

Welsh  

(first language) 
Mathematics Science 

2017 9   5  15  10  7  

2016 12   4  7  11  5  

2015 7   5  5  8  5  

 

 

  

Vale of Glamorgan 93.5 Monmouthshire 95.3 Bridgend 98.3 Vale of Glamorgan 94.8 Monmouthshire 95.3

Monmouthshire 93.2 Vale of Glamorgan 94.2 Merthyr Tydfil 97.7 Monmouthshire 94.5 Vale of Glamorgan 94.9

Gwynedd 92.1 Gwynedd 93.2 Vale of Glamorgan 96.7 Gwynedd 93.3 Powys 94.3

Isle of Anglesey 91.4 Powys 93.2 Powys 95.9 Isle of Anglesey 93.1 Torfaen 93.8

Powys 91.2 Newport 93.0 Swansea 95.3 Flintshire 93.0 Isle of Anglesey 93.8

Flintshire 91.0 Isle of Anglesey 92.6 Caerphilly 94.7 Powys 92.8 Gwynedd 93.8

Wrexham 90.3 Flintshire 92.6 Neath Port Talbot 93.3 Wrexham 92.5 Newport 93.4

Merthyr Tydfil 90.2 South East Wales 92.3 Rhondda Cynon Taff 93.0 Rhondda Cynon Taff 92.2 South East Wales 93.3

South East Wales 90.2 Wrexham 92.0 Cardiff 92.8 South East Wales 92.1 Flintshire 93.2

Newport 90.1 Torfaen 92.0 Denbighshire 92.4 Caerphilly 92.1 Wrexham 92.9

Caerphilly 90.1 Caerphilly 91.8 South East Wales 92.3 Newport 91.9 Caerphilly 92.9

Rhondda Cynon Taff 90.0 Merthyr Tydfil 91.4 Wales 91.6 Denbighshire 91.8 Denbighshire 92.7

Wales 89.5 Rhondda Cynon Taff 91.4 Conwy 91.3 Swansea 91.7 Rhondda Cynon Taff 92.6

Torfaen 89.5 Swansea 91.3 Gwynedd 91.1 Wales 91.6 Swansea 92.4

Swansea 89.5 Wales 91.1 Carmarthenshire 90.6 Cardiff 91.6 Wales 92.2

Cardiff 89.4 Bridgend 90.8 Pembrokeshire 90.4 Torfaen 91.5 Merthyr Tydfil 92.0

Bridgend 89.4 Cardiff 90.8 Newport 90.1 Merthyr Tydfil 91.4 Carmarthenshire 91.7

Pembrokeshire 89.2 Pembrokeshire 90.7 Wrexham 89.7 Carmarthenshire 91.4 Cardiff 91.7

Denbighshire 88.9 Denbighshire 90.6 Torfaen 88.9 Bridgend 91.4 Bridgend 91.6

Carmarthenshire 88.8 Carmarthenshire 90.2 Blaenau Gwent 88.6 Pembrokeshire 91.3 Pembrokeshire 91.5

Conwy 88.4 Conwy 90.2 Isle of Anglesey 88.3 Blaenau Gwent 90.8 Conwy 91.2

Blaenau Gwent 88.4 Ceredigion 89.3 Ceredigion 87.2 Conwy 90.5 Blaenau Gwent 91.1

Ceredigion 87.9 Blaenau Gwent 88.9 Monmouthshire 86.8 Ceredigion 90.5 Ceredigion 91.0

Neath Port Talbot 85.9 Neath Port Talbot 87.4 Flintshire 86.6 Neath Port Talbot 87.6 Neath Port Talbot 89.4

CSI English Welsh 1st Lang. Mathematics Science

P
age 90



 

11 
 

 

Performance has improved, with 85.3% pupils achieving the core subject indicator (CSI), an increase of 1.9 percentage points from 83.4% in 2016. Newport is 

ranked 19th in Wales. 

 

 
 

  

Key Stage 3

CSI 83.4 85.3 89.0 88.4 90.0 CSI 62.3 67.4 77.6 76.8 80.7

English L5+ 88.3 89.3 91.2 91.0 91.6 English L5+ 75.4 74.2 81.4 80.6 84.0

Maths L5+ 89.0 90.6 91.5 92.1 92.7 Maths L5+ 72.4 80.4 83.1 83.7 86.1

Science L5+ 90.7 92.9 92.9 92.9 93.2 Science L5+ 77.4 85.6 85.9 82.4 87.3

English L6+ 55.4 58.8 59.3 62.0 62.9 English L6+ 31.3 30.9 35.5 37.4 42.9

Maths L6+ 64.3 66.6 68.0 68.7 69.4 Maths L6+ 37.4 38.1 44.5 48.1 50.8

Science L6+ 55.6 63.6 61.8 67.4 66.2 Science L6+ 29.0 37.1 37.6 45.0 45.6

2017 LA 

Target

2017 Perf. 

v Target

2017 LA 

Target

2017 Perf. v 

Target
All Pupils

2016 

Actual

2018 LA 

Target

2019 LA 

Target
FSM Pupils

2016 

Actual

2018 LA 

Target

2019 LA 

Target

2017 

Actual

2017 

Actual

P
age 91



 

12 
 

10 Year Performance Summary – Key Stage 3 CSI 

 

 

Performance has improved across all indicators at expected levels 5+, 6+ and 7+. 

 

P
age 92



 

13 
 

Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+ 

 

Percentage of pupils achieving level 6+ 

 

Percentage of pupils achieving level 7+ 

 

Performance in the CSI has improved by 1.9 percentage points and remains ranked 19th in Wales.  

Performance in English at the expected level 5+ has improved by 1 percentage point and is ranked 19th in Wales. Performance in English at level 6+ and level 

7+ has improved by 3.4 and 2.7 percentage points respectively. 

Performance in mathematics at the expected level 5+ has improved by 1.6 percentage points and is ranked 16th in Wales. Performance in mathematics at 

level 6+ and level 7+ has improved by 2.3 and 3.7 percentage points respectively.   

Performance in science at the expected level 5+ has improved by 2.2 percentage points and is ranked 15th in Wales. Performance in science at level 6+ and 

level 7+ has improved by 8 and 6.3 percentage points respectively.   

Performance at the expected level 5+ and level 6+ was within 4 percentage points. 

  

Newport 2017 85.3 1.0 89.3 1.0 - 0.0 90.6 1.0 92.9 1.0

Target

Newport 2016

Wales 2017

91.2

CSI English
Welsh (First 

Language)
Mathematics Science

92.9

90.7

93.590.8

88.3

90.587.4

83.4

89.0 91.5

89.0

93.5

-

-

Newport 2017 58.8 1.0 - 0.0 66.6 1.0 63.6 1.0

Target

Newport 2016

Wales 2017

59.3 68.0

English Maths

55.4

58.7 65.5

64.3

Welsh (First 

Language)

-

-

58.7

Science

65.6

55.6

61.8

Newport 2017 19.2 1.0 - 0.0 31.7 1.0 25.0 1.0

Newport 2016

Wales 2017

18.7

English

16.5

20.7

28.0

30.8

-

20.7 26.5

Welsh (First 

Language)
ScienceMaths

P
age 93



 

14 
 

Gender differences at level 5+ (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

Gender differences have increased for all indicators except English. Gender gaps are narrower than the Wales average gender difference in English and 

science. 

Gender differences at level 6+ (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

Gender differences have increased for all subjects.  All subject gender gaps are narrower than the Wales average gender difference. 

Gender differences at level 7+ (boys’ performance – girls’ performance): 

 

Gender differences have increased for all subjects, and are wider than the Wales average gender difference in all subjects. 

  

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -4.6 -7.7 -6.8 -6.1 - - -1.1 -4.8 -3.6 -4.2

Wales -7.4 -7.4 -8.0 -7.3 -5.8 -4.9 -3.7 -4.5 -4.4 -4.4

CSI English Science
Welsh (First 

Language)
Mathematics

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -11.4 -16.2 - - -3.1 -4.3 -6.3 -9.3

Wales -18.4 -18.6 -18.8 -19.2 -5.0 -7.3 -11.0 -12.2

English Mathematics Science
Welsh (First 

Language)

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Newport -9.5 -13.9 - - -0.6 -5.8 -5.7 -10.1

Wales -11.0 -12.7 -10.5 -12.0 -3.6 -4.1 -8.3 -8.1

Science
Welsh (First 

Language)
English Mathematics

P
age 94



 

15 
 

Wales rankings: 

Newport’s rankings have improved in mathematics and science, and remains the same as the previous year for CSI. 

 
 

CSI English Mathematics Science 

2017 19  19  16  15  

2016 19  15  17  19  

2015 18  14  17  15  

 

 

Gwynedd 92.8 Ceredigion 95.2 Pembrokeshire 99.3 Gwynedd 94.8 Monmouthshire 97.0

Monmouthshire 92.7 Monmouthshire 94.5 Wrexham 96.6 Monmouthshire 94.5 Gwynedd 96.8

Ceredigion 91.9 Vale of Glamorgan 93.9 Powys 96.3 Vale of Glamorgan 93.4 Ceredigion 96.6

Vale of Glamorgan 91.8 Gwynedd 93.6 Vale of Glamorgan 95.6 Ceredigion 93.3 Vale of Glamorgan 95.7

Flintshire 89.5 Isle of Anglesey 92.9 Cardiff 95.4 Flintshire 92.7 Bridgend 95.5

Bridgend 89.0 Flintshire 92.5 Swansea 95.4 Carmarthenshire 92.4 Conwy 95.4

Torfaen 89.0 Powys 92.3 Flintshire 95.1 Torfaen 92.4 Isle of Anglesey 95.3

Conwy 88.9 Bridgend 91.6 Isle of Anglesey 95.0 Conwy 92.1 Powys 95.2

Isle of Anglesey 88.9 Conwy 91.2 Rhondda Cynon Taff 94.1 Bridgend 92.1 Torfaen 95.2

Powys 88.6 Swansea 91.2 Gwynedd 93.7 Pembrokeshire 91.6 Flintshire 95.1

Pembrokeshire 88.4 Pembrokeshire 90.8 Wales 93.5 Powys 91.2 Carmarthenshire 94.1

Carmarthenshire 88.4 Cardiff 90.8 Ceredigion 93.0 Swansea 91.0 Denbighshire 93.8

Swansea 88.2 Torfaen 90.7 Bridgend 92.7 Isle of Anglesey 91.0 Cardiff 93.7

Rhondda Cynon Taff 87.4 Merthyr Tydfil 90.7 Denbighshire 92.4 Wales 90.8 Wales 93.5

Wales 87.4 Wales 90.5 Conwy 92.2 South East Wales 90.7 Rhondda Cynon Taff 93.3

Merthyr Tydfil 87.1 Rhondda Cynon Taff 90.4 Carmarthenshire 92.1 Rhondda Cynon Taff 90.7 South East Wales 93.0

South East Wales 86.4 Carmarthenshire 90.0 Neath Port Talbot 91.6 Denbighshire 90.7 Newport 92.9

Wrexham 86.3 Denbighshire 90.0 Torfaen 89.9 Newport 90.6 Pembrokeshire 92.8

Cardiff 86.2 Wrexham 89.8 South East Wales 88.0 Cardiff 89.3 Merthyr Tydfil 92.6

Denbighshire 85.6 Newport 89.3 Caerphilly 86.6 Wrexham 89.2 Swansea 91.6

Newport 85.3 South East Wales 89.0 Merthyr Tydfil - Blaenau Gwent 89.1 Blaenau Gwent 91.4

Caerphilly 84.1 Blaenau Gwent 86.3 Blaenau Gwent - Caerphilly 88.9 Wrexham 91.4

Blaenau Gwent 83.4 Caerphilly 86.2 Monmouthshire - Merthyr Tydfil 88.6 Caerphilly 90.7

Neath Port Talbot 79.6 Neath Port Talbot 85.6 Newport - Neath Port Talbot 84.4 Neath Port Talbot 89.0

Welsh 1st Lang. Mathematics ScienceCSI English

P
age 95



 

16 
 

Key Stage 4 (PROVISONAL) 

Please note that this section is compiled using provisional data provided by schools on exam results day.  This data is subject to a validation process 

throughout September and October.  Final confirmed data is not likely to be available until December 2017.  A full analysis will be provided on the final 

validated data set. 

 

  
Cohort Number % L2 E,W+M 

School 2017 2016 2017 2017 Target 

Newport 1,621 57.3 54.7 62.0 

EAS - South East Wales 6,025 55.5 52.1 59.2 

P
age 96



 

17 
 

Wales   60.3     

Primary Attendance  

 
Note: 2017 attendance data is available Dec 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Secondary Attendance 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Pupil Attendance 

  
2016 

Actual 

2017  

Target 

2018  

Target 

2019  

Target 

LA 94.5 95 95.1 95.2 

Pupil Attendance 

  
2017 

Actual 

2017  

Target 

2018  

Target 

2019  

Target 

LA 93.6 93.7 93.8 93.9 

P
age 97



 

18 
 

Summary of National Categorisation of schools in the Local Authority in 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017  

Step 1 – Primary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 

Newport 

14-15 3 7 17 15 7% 17% 40% 36% 

15-16 0 7 16 21 0% 16% 36% 48% 

16-17 0 5 14 25 0% 11%    32% 57% 

South East 
Wales 

14-15 7 52 88 49 4% 27% 45% 25% 

15-16 2 25 90 82 1% 13% 45% 41% 

16-17  2 19 63 115 1% 10% 32% 58% 

 
          
         

Step 2 - Primary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

D C B A D C B A 

Newport 
 

14-15 2 5 17 20 5% 11% 39% 45% 

15-16 0 5 18 21 0% 11% 41% 48% 

16-17 1 2 16 25 2% 5% 36% 57% 

South East 
Wales 

14-15 9 45 101 44 5% 23% 51% 22% 

15-16 4 29 116 50 2% 15% 58% 25% 

16-17 3 18 109 64 2% 9% 56% 33% 

 
          
         

Step 3 - Primary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Red Amber Yellow Green Red Amber Yellow Green 

Newport 
 

14-15 2 7 16 19 5% 16% 36% 43% 

15-16 0 5 16 23 0% 11% 36% 52% 

16-17 1 2 18 23 2% 5% 41% 52% 

South East 
Wales 

14-15 9 50 100 40 5% 25% 50% 20% 

15-16 5 31 111 52 3% 16% 56% 26% 

16-17 5 18 111 60 3% 9% 57% 31% 

P
age 98



 

19 
 

 

Step 1 - Secondary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 Group 4 Group 3 Group 2 Group 1 

Newport 
 

14-15 2 3 2 1 25% 38% 25% 13% 

15-16 1 5 1 1 13% 63% 13% 13% 

16-17 2 2 2 2 25% 25% 25% 25% 

South East 
Wales 

14-15 10 14 10 3 27% 38% 27% 8% 

15-16 3 22 6 4 9% 63% 17% 11% 

16-17 3 19 8 5 9% 54% 23% 14% 

          
Step 2 – Secondary 

Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

D C B A D C B A 

Newport 
 

14-15 0 6 2 0 0% 75% 25% 0% 

15-16 2 3 2 1 25% 38% 25% 13% 

16-17 1 3 3 2 11% 33% 33% 22% 

South East 
Wales 

14-15 0 25 11 1 0% 68% 30% 3% 

15-16 3 18 14 1 8% 50% 39% 3% 

16-17 6 9 17 4 17% 25% 47% 11% 

 
         

Step 3 - Secondary 
Number of Schools Percentage of Schools 

Red Amber Yellow Green Red Amber Yellow Green 

Newport 
 

14-15 0 5 2 1 0% 63% 25% 13% 

15-16 2 4 1 1 25% 50% 13% 13% 

16-17 1 3 3 2 11% 33% 33% 22% 

South East 
Wales 

14-15 5 19 10 3 14% 51% 27% 8% 

15-16 6 18 11 1 17% 50% 31% 3% 

16-17 6 12 15 3 17% 33% 42% 8% 

 

  

P
age 99



 

20 
 

LA schools currently in any Estyn follow-up category  

Phase School 
Date of last 
inspection 

Date report 
published 

Follow-up 
status of last 

inspection 

Current 
Follow-up 

status 
 Primary Maesglas Primary 01/11/2016 06/01/2017 Estyn Estyn 

 Primary Alway Primary* 01/11/2016 13/01/2017 Estyn Estyn 

 Primary Llanmartin Primary* 01/06/2016 16/08/2016 Estyn Estyn 

 
       

Phase School 
Date of last 
inspection 

Date report 
published 

Follow-up 
status of last 

inspection 

Current 
Follow-up 

status 
 Secondary Llanwern High 01/01/2017 21/03/2017 SI SI 

 Secondary Caerleon Comprehensive 01/11/2016 06/01/2017 Estyn Estyn 

 
Secondary 

St Julians School* 
01/12/2014 06/02/2015 

SI SM 
Changed to SM June 
2017 

       

Phase School 
Date of last 
inspection 

Date report 
published 

Follow-up 
status of last 

inspection 

Current 
Follow-up 

status 
 Special Maes Ebbw Special 01/03/2016 13/05/2016 Estyn Estyn 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 100



 

21 
 

Pupil outcomes  

A high level analysis of pupil outcomes for the Local Authority indicates that the following aspects require improvement over the next phase of 
the Business Plan: 

 Continue to close the gap in performance at KS4 for the L2+.  

 Improve performance in L2 Maths, English and science. 

 Improve performance in L2. 

 Improve KS3 outcomes, particularly at the expected level +1.  

 Improve the gender gap at the expected level +1 in FP and KS2. 
 

Schools requiring Improvement 2016-2017 (Amber and Red Overall Categories of support)  

The information below indicates the additional support that will be given to schools in the overall category of Amber or Red in the Local Authority 
in the academic year 2016-2017. The support is in line with the guidance within the National Categorisation System and within the SEWC 
Intervention Framework 2016-2017. Each of these schools will have a detailed Intervention or Support Plan, the progress each school makes 
over the next academic year will be captured through regular Education Improvement Boards (EIBs) or Intervention Meetings.  

School  National Categorisation 2016-2017 Draft National 
Categorisation 2017-2018 
(Confidential)  

Overall judgement on 
progress made against 

detailed actions * 

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 2 Step 3 

Caerleon Comprehensive 
School 

3 C Amber B Yellow Strong progress 

Llanwern High School 3 C Amber D Red Limited progress (new plan 
Summer 2017) 

Newport High School 4 C Amber D Red Limited progress  

Maesglas Primary School 1 C Amber C Amber Satisfactory progress 

Somerton Primary School 2 C Amber C Amber Strong progress 

St Julian’s Comprehensive 
School 

4 D Red D Red Limited progress (new plan 
Summer 2017) 

Maes Ebbw Special 
School 

N/A  D Red D Red Satisfactory progress 

P
age 101



 

22 
 

Milton Junior School 2 D Red C Amber Satisfactory progress 

 
Local Authority specific activity financial year 2017-2018 
 
The section below indicates additional school improvement activity that will be undertaken in the Local Authority through this financial year (2017-
2018). The additional activity is linked to specific need arising from pupil outcomes. 
 
A detailed programme delivery plan is available. Progress towards each of the additional interventions will be measured at the end of each term. 

Nature of Additional Activity Expected Outcomes  Update 

Accelerating Achievement: A Newport 

Schools initiative.  To involve the development 

of a Seamless Learning Pathways Coordinator 

role.  The role will be 3 days per week via the 

secondment of a Newport Head teacher. It will sit 

within the line management structure of the Local 

Authority. 

Schools in Newport have identified a slowing in 

the rate of improvement in standards for pupils 

across key stages 2-3. There is significant 

variation in schools and between schools and 

variation from year to year.  

All stakeholders are seeking a better 

understanding of the factors which impact on 

sustained progress for pupils, particularly over the 

transition from primary to secondary and from 

secondary into post compulsory education. 

All schools in Wales are, in addition, facing the 

       To develop cluster level target-setting 
from Years 5-8. 

       To focus on the development of 
numeracy skills across the two key 
stages. 

      To gather and share good practice across 
all Newport schools in curriculum 
planning and pedagogy that secures 
strong progress for learners in maths.   

      To ensure that two Newport Pioneer 
Schools are involved in the project and 
that appropriate links are made into their 
pioneer work, particularly in relation to 
capturing and sharing good practice. 

      To include a research element which will 
enable the project to trial innovative and 
new approaches to cross phase work, 
which can be tested for impact as part of 
the project plan and drawn up as 
meaningful case studies. 

 To recognise and develop good practice 
in social and emotional transition which 

 The focus of the project has been 
further refined by the LA to 
‘Development of a seamless 
learning pathway between primary 
and secondary with a focus on 
wellbeing and mathematics.’ 

 The SLP coordinator has 
organised 2 cluster conferences 
to capture good practice in 
developing curriculum pathways, 
common assessment and 
smoothing transition 
arrangements, e.g. a Common 
Pupil Transfer Record. 

 There was some overlap in 
service due to the LA also 
scrutinising the cluster 
development plans, but this will be 
addressed in the coming round. 

 Cluster work is assessed as 
‘green’ in the LA project plan, with 
all clusters engaged currently in 

P
age 102



 

23 
 

challenge of implementing new curriculum and 

assessment arrangements as set out in 

Successful Futures.  

This provides an opportunity to look at how 

achievement can be accelerated and that 

acceleration sustained over time. 

This is a programme which will: 

       Involve 2 clusters of primary and 
secondary schools working together; 

       Gather, analyse and understand data from 
a range of sources that are linked to these 
factors; 

 Examine in-school, between school and 
community factors which promote or inhibit 
improved attainment; 

       Use ‘evidence based’ research – e.g 
UNESCO, OECD, Sutton Trust, John 
Hattie, Harvard CGI research base to get a 
better understanding of the factors which 
are prevalent in the locality; 

      Use this research to identify interventions 
which will have a long term impact on the 
progress of young people as they move 
between Year 5 and Year 8. 

       Explore strategies for curriculum planning, 
progression and assessment of the 
curriculum for all pupils but particularly for 
those groups and individuals that are 
underperforming. 

The programme will be led by the schools 

can be shared across the city.  

 

the delivery of their plans.  They 
are producing Case Studies to 
follow progress. One example is 
the Llanwern cluster focus on 
vulnerable children with new and 
robust transfer arrangements in 
place. 

 Governing Bodies have been 
briefed and updated on the project 
and had an opportunity to discuss 
how they can support. 

 The LA has introduced a Common 
Induction Day Summer 2018 – 
This has been agreed with all 
secondary schools as 6th July 
2018.  

 The LA has provided schools with 
a Core Brief for Cluster Working – 
to provide clusters with some key 
learning points which might 
support cluster discussion and 
move them on in terms of close 
collaboration.  

 A calendar of events is also being 
provided to schools to enable 
smoother transfer. 

P
age 103



 

24 
 

involved. There will be a project Board to support 

the programme with the project coordinator (Ann 

Price), The Chief Education Officer, the Strategic 

Lead for People, the Deputy Chief Education 

Officer and the PCA for Newport to track impact 

and evaluate the outcomes. 

It is envisaged that the programme will continue 

to operate over a three-year period: (2016-2019). 

Funding: £5000 

Developing effective practice in supporting 

EAL learners:  

A further development of the 2016-2017 project 

involving GEMs, a wider group of NCC 

schools/HTs in order to:  

     capture good practice in supporting learners at 
both the early language acquisition and the 
later stages of learning English.   

     develop resources to support schools in 
developing provision in this area.  

     identify and share the characteristics of strong 
leadership of this area. 

     develop a model of school to school support. 

     produce case studies exemplifying the 

approaches, which can be shared more widely 

in Newport and the region. 

Funding: £7983 

     Schools are clear about effective practice in 
supporting new learners of English 
(particularly those migrants from countries 
which schools may not have experience with 
to date). 

    New learners of English are well supported in 
developing their language skills. 

    School leadership teams are clear about what 
steps to take to ensure that provision and 
practice are developed appropriately. 

     School to school support works effectively 
to capture and spread effective practice and 
provide targeted CPD to leaders and 
teachers. 

 The toolkit was completed at the 
end of the Summer 2017 and is 
now available to all schools. 

 The group has been upscaled to 
include 2 secondary schools for 
2017-2018 (Lliswerry High School 
and The John Frost School). 

 The Headteacher of Pillgwenlly 
Primary School will coordinate the 
project in the coming two terms. 

 The focus of the project this year 
will be to: update the toolkit to 
include support for more advanced 
learners of English; develop the 
regional Professional Learning 
Offer for the Spring term; provide 
school to school support on 
request; attend Newport clusters to 
share and promote the toolkit; 
present to the Newport CEO 
meeting with HTs (promotion of the 
toolkit); agree how the support for 

P
age 104



 

25 
 

EAL will be shared across the 
region; support the regional 
development of finer tracking of the 
progress of pupils who are EAL 
and those who are from minority 
ethnic groups. 

Curriculum Deputies’ Network: Driving 

Improvements at Key Stage 3 

       Develop a network of curriculum deputies 
from all Newport Secondary schools to 
share, grow and sustain excellent practice 
in improving provision and practice at KS3; 
in order to drive improvements in 
standards across all national curriculum 
subjects. 

       Group to meet 1 day per term in the 
Summer, Autumn and Spring terms to 
identify and share best practice. 

       Gap tasks to be completed by all school 
leaders between the sessions which 
enable further building of practice in 
subsequent meetings. 

       PCA and Deputy Chief Education Officer to 
jointly plan and facilitate the sessions. 

       PCA and Deputy Chief Education Officer to 
monitor the impact of the sessions on 
provision, practice and pupil outcomes. 

       PCA and DCEO to facilitate a session to 
support succession planning (coaching 
individually as well as the whole group) to 
support continued career development into 
Headship.  Possible use of external 

 Best practice in improving provision and 
practice is identified, shared and impacting as 
appropriate across all Newport secondary 
schools. 

 There is a consistent approach to pupil level 
target setting and tracking, between key stage 
3 and 4. 

 Pupils meet statutory targets at KS3. 

 KS3 performance across the LA improves so 
that it is at least in line with similar LAs. 

 Progress at KS3 can be judged to be good 
across the majority of schools and at least 
satisfactory across all schools. 

 Performance in the national tests is good 
across the majority of schools and at least 
satisfactory across all schools. 

 Strategic leadership and systems leadership 
of KS3 (at senior and middle leader level) can 
be judged to be at least good in the majority 
of schools and at least satisfactory in all 
schools. 

 This project was not implemented, at 
the request of the LA.  The funding 
has been diverted into the Seamless 
Learning Pathways project. 

P
age 105



 

26 
 

consultancy. 
Funding: £4000 

Ongoing arrangement in which the Authority 
receives bespoke support from the EAS Learning 
Intelligence team with central data collection and 
reporting. 

 The LA receives the required range of 

performance information across the range of 

indicators, in line with the agreed reporting 

channels and reporting calendar. 

 This service continues and is an 

ongoing arrangement.

 

 

The content of this LA Annex has been agreed by: 

 

LA Director / Chief Education Officer:   

 Mr James Harris 

 

Cabinet Member for Education:  

 Cllr Gail Giles 

 

EAS Managing Director  

 Ms. Debbie Harteveld 

 

 

P
age 106



Scrutiny Report 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships  
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  28 February 2018 
 

Subject  Consultation on the draft Violence Against Women, 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy 
(VAWDASV) 

 

Author  Overview and Scrutiny Officer  

 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 

Sally Ann Jenkins Head of Children and Young Peoples Services 

Mary Ryan Corporate Safeguarding Manager  

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 

2 Context 
 

Background   
 
2.1 The Strategy is required by the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

(Wales) Act 2015 (VAWDASV) which requires the public sector in Wales to work together in a 
consistent and cohesive way to improve the outcomes for individuals and their families subjected 
to VAWDASV.  
 

2.2 The Gwent Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership Board 
has been established to carry out the Welsh Government (WG) Legislation within the five Local 
Authorities that make up Gwent and is made up of partners including: Newport, Monmouthshire, 

1 Recommendations to the Committee 

 
The Committee is asked  
 
1. To consider the draft Violence Against Woman, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

Strategy (The Strategy). 
 

2. Decide whether the wishes to make any recommendations to Cabinet on the draft 
Strategy. 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 6



Torfaen, Caerphilly and Blaenau Gwent Councils, Gwent Police, and the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Welsh Ambulance Service, 
Probation Service, Registered Social Landlords, Supporting People Regional Collaborative 
Committee, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, Gwent Adult and Children Safeguarding 
Boards, VAWDASV specialist sector partners and voluntary sector organisations. 
 

2.3 The VAWDASV Strategy contributes to the national strategy (National Strategy on Violence 
against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – 2016 – 2021) and will reflect the six 
objectives of the national strategy.  

 
2.4 The main aims of the WG act are; 

 Improve the public sectors response to violence against women; domestic abuse and sexual 
violence; 

 Give the public authorities (Councils and Health Boards) a strategic focus on the issue; 

 Ensure the consistent provision of preventative, protective and supportive services. 
 

  2.5 The Committee are being asked to make recommendations on the draft strategy, which will be 
forwarded to the Cabinet’s prior to a decision on the final response from the Council on the 
Strategy. The recommendations will be verbally agreed at the Committee meeting, and then the 
final wording will be agreed with the Chairperson at a later date. These recommendations will then 
be sent to Cabinet at its meeting on 14 March 2018 for consideration in drafting the Councils 
response to the VAWDASV Strategy consultation. 

 
 

3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 

(VAWDASV) is the only document attached for information at Appendix A.  
 
3.2 A breakdown of the Strategy, by subheading; 

 Foreword 

 Introduction: Policy and Legislative Context 

 The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board and its Vision 

 Current Provision in the Region 

 Needs Assessment 

 Survivors as Experts 

 Engagement Findings 

 How we will act together to tackle VAWDASV: Our Strategic Priorities 

 How we will monitor our progress: Our Strategic Delivery Plan 
 

 Appendices 
o Appendix 1 - Understanding the Language Used (included within in the 

strategy) 
o Appendix 2 - Consultation Outputs:  Survivors as Experts  (Available as 

additional information – circulate to Members via email) 
o Appendix 3 – Gwent Needs Assessment (Available as additional information – 

circulate to Members via email) 
o Appendix 4 -  Gwent Data - Annual Strategic Analysis (Available as additional 

information – circulate to Members via email) 
o Appendix 5 -  Annual Strategic Delivery Plan (Currently unavailable) 

 
  

Page 108



4. Suggested Areas of Focus 

 
 Role of the Committee 
 

  
 

Suggested Lines of Enquiry 
 
4.1 In considering the Strategy, the Members might wish to consider: 
   
 Developing the Plan 

 How the partners have worked together to develop the plan; 

 Does it cover everything it needs to fulfil the intensions of the act? 
 

Content and style of strategy 

 Is it clear? Readable and give all the necessary information to understand the purpose 
and intentions of the strategy? 

 
Implementation 

 How the strategy will be resources and implemented across the partnership; 

 What evidence is there that the strategy maximises the joint opportunities of working in a 
regional partnership?  

 Is it clear how the partnership will work together to deliver the strategy? 

 Is it clear how resources will be used and how the partners will work together to maximise 
resources available.  

 References to supporting documents – can the Committee assess whether it’s achievable 
at this stage as strategic document. What is the purpose of the strategic delivery plan? 
How and when will this be developed and reported on?  

 
Monitoring 

 Is it clear who / how the partners will monitor this? 

 Does the LA have statutory responsibility for this? If so, how will we as an Authority 
monitor the implementation of this? 

 Reporting arrangements – how / when will this be reported on and to who? 

 Links to PSB Wellbeing plan – how will this be monitored? 
 

 
  

The role of the Committee in considering the Strategy is to: 
 
Consider: 

 The suitability of the plan in tackling VAWDASV; 

 The robustness of the governance arrangements underpinning the strategy; 

 How measurable and achievable the strategy is; 

 Limitations of the strategy - what needs to be thought about when developing the 
Strategic Delivery Plan?  

 

 Conclusions: 
o Do the Committee wish to make any Comments / Recommendations to the 

Cabinet; 
o What was the Committees overall conclusion on the Strategy; 
o Is the Committee satisfied that it has had all of the relevant information to base a 

conclusion on the Strategy. 
 

Page 109



Section B – Supporting Information 

5 Supporting Information 

 
 For context on the national strategy - National Strategy on Violence Against Women, Domestic 
Abuse and Sexual Violence – 2016 – 2021  
 

6 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  

 

Well-being 
Objectives  
 

Promote economic 
growth and 
regeneration whilst 
protecting the 
environment  
 

Improve skills, 
educational 
outcomes & 
employment 
opportunities  
 

Enable 
people to be 
healthy, 
independent 
& resilient  
 

Build cohesive 
& sustainable 
communities  
 

Corporate 
Plan 
Commitments 

Thriving City  Aspirational People Resilient 
Communities 

Supporting 
Function 

Modernised Council 

 
 The strategy aims to put in place preventative measures to address violence against women, 
domestic violence and sexual violence. This is in keeping with the intentions of the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act in particular the sustainable development principles of prevention 
and collaboration.   

 
 

7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
7.1 General questions 
 

 How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations?  What is the long 
term impact?   

 What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   

 Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  

 

7.2 Wellbeing Goals 

 How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action? 

o A prosperous Wales 

o A resilient Wales 

o A healthier Wales 

o A more equal Wales 

o A Wales of cohesive communities 

o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 

o A globally responsible Wales 

 

7.3 Sustainable Development Principles 

Page 110

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf


 Does the strategy demonstrate how as an partnership is working in accordance with the 
sustainable development principles from the act ?? 

o Long Term 

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 

How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 

Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the 
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 

Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that 
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 

The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 

8. Background Papers 
 

 The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  

 Corporate Plan 
 

 
Report Completed: 21February 2018  

Page 111

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s10273/Corporate%20Plan%20-%20Together%20for%20Newport.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

 

 

 

 

 

Gwent Regional Violence Against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence Strategy 2017-2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 115



 

  2 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

CONTENTS 

1. Foreword 

2. Introduction: Policy and Legislative Context 

3. The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board and its Vision 

4. Current Provision in the Region 

5. Needs Assessment 

6. Survivors as Experts 

7. Engagement Findings 

8. How we will act together to tackle VAWDASV: Our Strategic Priorities 

9. How we will monitor our progress: Our Strategic Delivery Plan 

10. Appendices 

 Appendix 1 - Understanding the Language Used 

 Appendix 2 - Consultation Outputs:  Survivors as Experts - Available on 

Request 

 Appendix 3 – Gwent Needs Assessment - Available on Request 

 Appendix 4 -  Gwent Data - Annual Strategic Analysis – Available on Request 

 Appendix 5 -  Annual Strategic Delivery Plan – Available on Request 

 

 

 

Page 116



 

  3 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

1. FOREWORD 

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence are fundamental breaches of 

human rights, a consequence of the inequality between victims and perpetrators, where power 

and control is used in a way that damages lives, futures and the futures of people around those 

subjected to the actions of perpetrators. Every year lives are damaged needlessly in Wales, all 

forms of violence and abuse are unacceptable. Anyone who experiences violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence deserves an effective and timely response from all 

public services.   

The enactment of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) 

Act 2015 (VAWDASV) requires the public sector in Wales to work together in a consistent and 

cohesive way to improve the outcomes for individuals and their families subjected to 

VAWDASV. The Act sits alongside the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

which requires public bodies to think about what actions and activities are required to improve 

the well-being of current and future generations. Collaboration, preventative activity, the 

involvement of individuals, and long-term incremental improvements in the services delivered 

are threaded throughout the legislative landscape. 

The Gwent Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership Board 

(The Partnership Board) is pleased to publish the region’s first joint strategy to tackle 

VAWDASV by supporting victims and survivors, tackling perpetrators, ensuring professionals 

have the tools and knowledge to act, increasing awareness of VAWDASV and the support 

available, and helping children and young people to understand inequality in relationships and 

that abusive behaviour is always wrong.   

This strategy contributes to the national strategy (National Strategy on Violence against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence – 2016 – 2021)1 and will reflect the six 

objectives of the national strategy. The Partnership Board have determined that they will adopt 

the objectives of the national strategy as their overarching Strategic Priorities.  It sets out to 

provide the leadership and direction that will promote consistency and best practice for the way 

in which violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence is prioritised and tackled 

across the region.   

The South East Wales region, ostensibly considered as Gwent, comprises of five local authority 

areas:  Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Newport, Torfaen and Monmouthshire.  It benefits from 

having the same geographical footprint as Aneurin Bevan University Health Board and Gwent 

Police.   

Gwent has a history of strong partnership working and as the first pilot region in Wales for 

strategic coordination of VAWDASV services there is significant work taking place under the 

new legislative framework.  With its ‘pathfinder’ status Gwent has been given many 

opportunities for pioneering new ways of working and we are proud to be developing this 

regional strategy ahead of other areas and, in so doing, helping to inform national guidance. 

                                                           
1
  http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf 

Page 117

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf


 

  4 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

The Partnership Board members are the core partners required to deliver a cohesive response 

to VAWDASV2. Our aim is to work together in partnership to ensure the most efficient and 

effective response to preventing serious harm caused by such types of abuse.  

People do not experience violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence in a 

vacuum and neither can services, nor wider society, tackle such issues in isolation.  With a 

strong focus on preventative, protective and supportive mechanisms we will aim to work with 

survivors to ensure the meaningful delivery of this strategic plan. Strong leadership and 

accountability is required by us to ensure that the priorities identified are translated into actions 

that can make a real difference to the well-being and safety of people living in Gwent, both now 

and in the future. 

The Partnership Board aims to lead the way in Wales and our collective vision is for survivors, 

their children and wider family to know how and where to get the help that they need, to provide 

that help, and to work towards a society in which no form of violence against women, domestic 

abuse and sexual violence is tolerated. 

 

Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership 

Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
2
 The Partnership Board includes;  the five local authorities, Gwent Police, and the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Wales Ambulance Service Trust, Probation Services, 
Registered Social Landlords, Supporting People Regional Collaborative Committee, Fire and Rescue Service, Gwent 
Adult and Children Safeguarding Boards, VAWDASV specialist sector partners and voluntary sector organisations.  

Page 118



 

  5 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

2. INTRODUCTION: POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE CONTEXT 

 
In Wales, the UK and internationally, violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 

violence is considered to be a violation of human rights and a cause and consequence of 

inequality between women and men. It happens to women because they are women, and 

women are disproportionately impacted by certain forms of violence.  

Whilst it is important that this Strategy acknowledges and communicates the disproportionate 

experience of women and girls this does not, in any way, negate violence and abuse directed 

towards men and boys, or violence and abuse perpetrated by women. This Strategy recognises 

that anyone (women, men, children and young people) can experience and be affected by 

domestic abuse, rape and sexual assault, sexual abuse, forced marriage, child sexual abuse, 

stalking and harassment, sexual harassment and exploitation. This can happen in any 

relationship regardless of sex, age, ethnicity, gender, sexuality, disability, religion or belief, 

income, geography or lifestyle. A significant number of those who experience VAWDASV will 

have one or more ‘protected characteristics’, under the Equality Act 20103 and will face 

additional vulnerabilities and increased barriers to support. This Strategy aims to tackle all 

forms of VAWDASV. 

 

At a global, European and national level legislation and policy acknowledges that violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence operates as a means of social control that 

maintains unequal power relations between women and men and reinforces women’s 

subordinate status. It is explicitly linked to systematic discrimination against women and girls. 

Failing to make the connections between the different forms of violence women and girl’s 

experience, and how this is explicitly linked to the unequal position of women and girls in 

society, can hinder the effectiveness of interventions and prevention work. It is also important to 

recognise that different groups of women experience multiple inequalities which can intersect in 

ways that lead to further marginalisation.  

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence includes the following crime 

types: 

 Sexual violence  

 Domestic abuse 

 Sexual harassment and stalking 

 Trafficking and/or sexual exploitation 

 Female genital mutilation (FGM) 

                                                           
3
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents 

   

Page 119

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents


 

  6 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 Forced marriage 

 So-called ‘honour’ based violence (HBV) and crimes  

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence has far reaching consequences 

for families, children, communities and society.  The direct harm to the health and well-being of 

victims is clear, and at its most severe can, and does, result in death. However impacts are 

wide-ranging not just on health and wellbeing but include human rights, poverty, unemployment, 

homelessness and the economy. It is also important to note that this affects not only adults and 

children exposed to and who experience abuse in the home or in intimate or family relationships 

but wider family members also; the experience of abuse and violence can often also be 

perpetrated in public spaces impacting the wider community.  

 
The International Context 
 
This Strategy is intended to align with the UN Declaration on the Elimination of Violence Against 

Women (1993), most recently enshrined within the UN Sustainable Development Goals 2030 

(2015), and the Council of Europe Convention on Preventing and Combating Violence Against 

Women and Domestic Violence- The Istanbul Convention (2014). 

 

The UN Declaration defines violence against women as: 

 

 Any act of gender-based violence that results in, or is likely to result in, physical, sexual, 

psychological, or economic harm or suffering to women, including threats of such acts, 

coercion or arbitrary deprivation of liberty, whether occurring in public or in private life.  

 This encompasses, but is not limited to: 

 (a) Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring in the family, including 

battering, sexual abuse of female children in the household, dowry-related violence, 

marital rape, female genital mutilation and other traditional practices harmful to women, 

non-spousal violence and violence related to exploitation;  

(b) Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring within the general community, 

including rape, sexual abuse, sexual harassment and intimidation at work, in educational 

institutions and elsewhere, trafficking in women and forced prostitution;  

(c) Physical, sexual and psychological violence perpetrated or condoned by the State, 

wherever it occurs.  

 

 

 

 

Page 120



 

  7 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Article 4 of the Istanbul Convention covers: 

Fundamental rights, equality and non-discrimination  

 

1 Parties shall take the necessary legislative measures and other actions to promote and 

protect the right for everyone, particularly women, to live free from violence in both the 

public and the private sphere.  

2 Parties condemn all forms of discrimination against women and take, without delay, the 

necessary legislative and other measures to prevent it, in particular by:  

 embodying in their national constitutions or other appropriate legislation the 

principle of equality between women and men and ensuring the practical 

realisation of this principle;  

 prohibiting discrimination against women, including through the use of sanctions, 

where appropriate;  

 abolishing laws and practices which discriminate against women.  

3 The implementation of the provisions of this Convention by the Parties, in particular 

measures to protect the rights of victims, shall be secured without discrimination on any 

ground such as sex, gender, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, 

national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, age, state of health, disability, marital status, migrant or 

refugee status, or other status.  

4 Special measures that are necessary to prevent and protect women from gender-based 

violence shall not be considered discrimination under the terms of this Convention. 

 
 
The Welsh Context  

The Welsh policy and legislative landscape has prioritised VAWDASV for a number of years 

and the objectives and aims of this Strategy encompass these responsibilities as they are 

placed on those working in the VAWDASV sector in the region.  

In 2010, the Wales Right to be Safe Strategy set out an integrated, cross government 

programme of action to tackle all forms of violence against women and children. This was 

refreshed in November 2016 and published as the Welsh Government’s National Strategy on 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence, 2016 - 2021.4 Itself a 

                                                           
4
 http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf - pages 5 -8. 

http://www.un.org/documents/ga/res/48/a48r104.htm 
http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/gender-equality/ 
https://www.coe.int/en/web/istanbul-convention/home?desktop=true 
 

 

Page 121

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/commsafety/161104-national-strategy-en.pdf%20-%20pages%205%20-8
http://www.un.org/documents/ga/res/48/a48r104.htm
http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/gender-equality/
https://www.coe.int/en/web/istanbul-convention/home?desktop=true


 

  8 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

requirement of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 

2015. 

This Regional Strategy will also support the delivery of a number of key priorities in the Welsh 

Government “Taking Wales Forward” five year plan, as well as the following relevant legislation:   

The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out seven wellbeing goals 

relevant to the prevention of violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and 

support of survivors. The Act puts in place a “sustainable development principle” which requires 

public bodies to follow five ways of working to ensure they work collaboratively with people and 

communities, avoid repeating past mistakes and to tackle some of the long term challenges 

being faced. The five ways of working in the context of VAWDASV are: 

 Prevention: Understanding and preventing the occurrence of VAWDASV and 

preventing poor outcomes for victims, survivors and their families.  

 

 Integration: Integrating activity across the statutory and third sector and ensuring the 

coordination of programmes of work such that they achieve the maximum benefit. 

 

 Collaboration: Collaborating through the Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board, the 

Strategic Delivery Group and Sub-groups and between the partner bodies. 

 

 Involvement: Listening to victims and survivors to understand their experiences of the 

support offered to them to continually review and make improvements in responses. 

Involving all agencies that are able to make an impact on VAWDASV.  

 

 Long Term: Considering the long term outcomes for victims, survivors and their families 

and in particular any children and young people exposed to VAWDASV.  

 

The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014  provides a legal framework for improving 

the well-being of people (adults and children) who need care and support, carers who need 

support, and for transforming social services in Wales. The Population Needs Assessment 5 is a 

Gwent level area assessment that sets out seven core themes and identifies violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence as one of these.  Close working will be 

established between the Greater Gwent Health, Social Care and Well-Being Partnership Board, 

the Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Partnership Board 

and the five Public Services Boards to align future work plans around early intervention and 

preventative services.   

                                                           
5
 Social Services and Well-being Act Population Needs Assessment: Gwent Region Report DRAFT Nov 2016: page 54 

Page 122

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/contents/enacted
http://gov.wales/docs/strategies/160920-taking-wales-forward-en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/pdfs/anaw_20140004_en.pdf
http://www.newport.gov.co.uk/documents/care-and-support/population-needs-assessment/population-needs-assessment-gwent-region-report-may-2017.pdf


 

  9 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 - enshrines in legislation the role of the local authority in 

preventing and alleviating homelessness. 

The Welsh Government guidance which supports the practical delivery of the legislation advises 

local authorities and their partners that: 

“Local authorities should be led by the wishes and feelings of the victim of domestic abuse 

when determining accommodation arrangements. The first option, where appropriate, should be 

for the perpetrator to be removed from the property to enable the victim to remain in their home. 

The Local Authority must also consider improving the security of the applicant’s home to enable 

them to continue living there safely. Alternatively, the Local Authority must assist the victim in 

sourcing alternative accommodation, whether on a permanent or temporary basis”. 6 

The Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 - sets out a new approach to joint contracts which will 

help survivors by enabling perpetrators to be targeted for eviction.  

The Wales Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) study 7 examined the exposure in childhood 

to a range of ACE’s and presented research on the developmental well-being of children 

growing up in such households. Domestic abuse, emotional, physical and sexual abuse, 

parental separation, as well as parental incarceration, are all indicators that affect childhood 

development due to the stressors they cause. In addition those exposed to four or more ACE’s 

are more likely to adopt health harming behaviour in later life and are more likely to be future 

victims or perpetrators of crime and violence.   

 

The UK Context 

For non-devolved services the Strategy is supported by the Home Office Ending Violence 

Against Women and Girls Cross Departmental Strategy 2016-2020  

The Gwent VAWDASV Partnership Board members include Gwent Police, the Office of the 

Gwent Police and Crime Commissioner, Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Services and the 

Wales Community Rehabilitation Company. These arrangements build on the strong long-

standing partnerships across the region between the devolved and non-devolved sector and 

reflect other strategic regional arrangements in the Public Services Boards, the Regional 

Transformation Board and Safeguarding Boards. 

Associated legislation that supports delivery at a UK level includes:  

 Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”) introduces FGM Protection Orders  

and an FGM mandatory reporting duty inserted into the 2003 Act by the Serious Crime 

Act 2015. 

 Crime and Security Act 2010 – which introduces Domestic Violence Protection Orders 

(DVPOs) and the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme (DVDS). 

                                                           
6
 Welsh Government 2016. Code of Guidance for local authorities on the allocation of housing and homelessness 

7 Public Health Wales (2015) Wales Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) study, PHW 

Page 123

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/7/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2016/1/contents/enacted
http://www2.nphs.wales.nhs.uk:8080/PRIDDocs.nsf/7c21215d6d0c613e80256f490030c05a/d488a3852491bc1d80257f370038919e/$FILE/ACE%20Report%20FINAL%20(E).pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/31/pdfs/ukpga_20030031_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/17/section/7


 

  10 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 Welfare Reform Act 2012 – A paradigm change to the current social security system 

which will change the way welfare benefits are claimed and paid throughout the UK. 

 Anti-social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 - which introduces Sexual Harm 

Prevention Orders (SHPOs) and Sexual Risk Orders (SROs). 

 The Modern Slavery Act 2015  - Considers slavery, servitude and forced or compulsory 

labour and human trafficking, includes provision for the protection of victims.  

 Welfare Reform Act 2012 – A paradigm change to the current social security system 

which will change the way welfare benefits are claimed and paid throughout the UK. 

 

Guidance that informs the delivery of this Strategy includes:  

 

 The 2014 National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidelines: “Domestic violence 

and abuse: how health services, social care and the organisations they work with can 

respond effectively”. This guidance, which applies across England and Wales, highlights 

that domestic abuse is a complex issue requiring sensitive handling collaboratively with 

health and social care professionals.  

 

 FGM statutory guidance 8 issued under section 5C(1) of the Female Genital Mutilation 

Act 2003 and extends to England and Wales and includes updated procedural 

information.  

 

 Updated statutory guidance on conducting Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR). This 

considers the changing landscape and makes reference to new tools that have been 

implemented, such as the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme and Domestic 

Violence Protection Orders, as well as the new coercive and controlling offence 

introduced in the Serious Crime Act 2015. This statutory guidance is accompanied by 

key findings from analysis undertaken by Home Office researchers on a sample of 40 

DHRs from across England and Wales completed between 2013 and 2016.9   

 

 Updated Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme guidance – often referred to as “Clare’s 

Law” – which sets out procedures that could be used by the police to disclose 

                                                           
8
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573782/FGM_Mandatory_Rep

orting_-_procedural_information_nov16_FINAL.pdf 

 

9
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-homicide-review-lessonslearned 

Page 124

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/schedule/5/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/30/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/5/contents/enacted
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/PH50
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/512906/Multi_Agency_Statutory_Guidance_on_FGM__-_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/revised-statutory-guidance-for-theconduct-of-domestic-homicide-reviews
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-violence-disclosure-scheme-pilot-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573782/FGM_Mandatory_Reporting_-_procedural_information_nov16_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/573782/FGM_Mandatory_Reporting_-_procedural_information_nov16_FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/domestic-homicide-review-lessonslearned


 

  11 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

information about an individual’s previous violent and abusive offending behaviour, 

where this may help protect their partner, or ex-partner, from violence or abuse.  

 

 The 2016 England and Wales National Statement of Expectations, sets out what local 

commissioners (Police and Crime Commissioners, Local Authorities or health 

commissioners) need to put in place to ensure their response to violence against women 

and girls is collaborative, robust and effective. 

Page 125

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/574665/VAWG_National_Statement_of_Expectations_-_FINAL.PDF


 

  12 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

3. THE GWENT VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN, DOMESTIC ABUSE AND 

SEXUAL VIOLENCE PARTNERSHIP BOARD AND ITS VISION 

 

Board Membership 

The Partnership Board has been established to provide a governance structure to develop, 

approve and monitor VAWDASV regional working. A key role of the Board is the development 

of the Strategy which is a statutory requirement placed on Local Authorities and Local Health 

Boards under Section 5 the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

(Wales) Act 2015.   

In recognition that effective responses to VAWDASV must, by necessity, involve the full range 

of partners including devolved and non-devolved organisations, third sector specialist 

organisations, survivors and those impacted by forms of VAWDASV, the membership of the 

Board reflects the widest possible perspective and range of information. Membership also 

includes representatives able to provide national context and oversight. A full list of Board 

Membership is available on request from Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk.   

Board membership is replicated as required across the Strategic Delivery Group which through 

its Sub Groups and Task Groups will work towards achieving the Strategic Priorities of the 

Board.    

Ensuring regular victim/survivor/service-user engagement and input into all work streams not 

just participation at the Board level will be an essential requirement for informing the 

Partnership Board on the effectiveness of its work. 

 

Board Structure  

 

 

Page 126

mailto:Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk


 

  13 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

The Regional Context 

 
The regional approach to addressing domestic abuse was developed in Gwent by the Welsh 

Government funded Gwent Domestic Abuse Pathfinder Project (Puckett 2014) which made 

recommendations around the need for ‘a coherent regional strategic framework regarding 

accountability, need, service provision, resource allocation, training, performance and 

outcomes’.   

The work now underway in Gwent, including that of the Gwent Domestic Abuse Pathfinder 

Project, has built upon strongly established regional partnerships.  The Pan-Gwent Domestic 

Abuse Forum provided the baseline for where we are now and enabled such collaboration as 

the Welsh Domestic Abuse Modernisation Project10 

 

The Gwent Regional Team was established in April 2015 to formalise regional collaboration; to 

bring together and further develop structures to implement new legislative requirements under 

the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse And Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.   

 

Early development of the regional model was independently evaluated by Cordis Bright 2015 11 

and based on a set of recommendations that has set the direction for continued regional 

working. 

 

During this time Gwent has been an early adopter site for ‘Ask and Act’ targeted enquiry, 

developing policy and training ahead of national roll out.  It is also in this role as a pathfinder 

region that Gwent develops its regional strategy ahead of national guidance. 

 

The purpose of this strategy is to set out the regional integrated approach to stop violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence, to improve the health and well-being of 

individuals and families affected by abuse and hold to account those who perpetrate such 

abuse. It aims to build on existing successful partnerships and collaborative working 

opportunities in the region, and to further increase public awareness and assist local 

communities, individuals, family members and agencies to deliver a robust response to violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence prevention across Gwent. The Partnership 

Board’s ultimate goal is to move towards a society where everybody is able to live violence, 

abuse and fear free. 

 

                                                           
10

 Welsh Domestic Abuse Modernisation Project: Report from the Gwent Pilot Group, February 2012 

11
 South East Wales VAWDASV Board: Evaluation of the regional VAWDASV model: April 2016. Cordis Bright 

Page 127



 

  14 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

It is intended that this Gwent strategic framework, and the associated actions and activities 

detailed within the accompanying delivery plan, will support the Welsh Government and UK 

Government legislative, strategic and delivery framework to achieve the prevention of violence 

and abuse, the protection of victims and the support of all those affected. The pillars of these 

devolved and non-devolved strategies have informed this Strategy. Over the next five years, 

services and commissioners in Gwent will support a transformation in service delivery and a 

step change in action to achieve a sustainable reduction in violence and abuse, to help 

survivors of abuse rebuild their lives and to prevent such abuse from happening in the first 

place.  

 

Our aim for this strategy is to also influence, help shape and contribute to meeting key regional 

policy priorities. Accordingly, there exists a formal line of reporting for this Strategy and delivery 

plan from the Partnership Board to demonstrate the role that this strategy has in contributing to 

a number of key regional priorities for: 

  

 The five Public Services Boards  

 The SEW Children’s Safeguarding Board 

 The Gwent Adult Safeguarding Boards 

 The Supporting People Regional Collaborative Committee 

 Greater Gwent Health, Social Care and Well-Being Partnership Board 

 Safer Gwent 

 Gwent Substance Misuse Area Planning Board  

 Gwent Criminal Justice Board 

 

This Strategy mirrors the national strategy in organising the work that needs to be done along 

three key strands: 

 

 Prevention 

 Protection 

 Support 

 
 
In developing the Strategy the Partnership Board has considered current service provision, 

integrated the requirements of the Act and Welsh Government Policy, the result of the needs 

assessment of the area, a strategic analysis of needs, and involved victims and survivors. The 

associated Strategic Delivery Plan follows the six strategic aims of the National Delivery Plan 

Page 128



 

  15 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

and sets them in a regional context for the area. In so doing the key objectives and activities 

required to enhance current service provision over the lifetime of the Strategy are captured. 

The Partnership Board recognises, and is committed to, regional working with a view to 

increased consistency of provision, shared best practice including information sharing, the 

development of common commissioning principles, and harnessing the contributions of all 

partners in the strategic vision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 129



 

  16 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

4. CURRENT PROVISION IN THE REGION 

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services rest within the statutory 

and specialist sector. Statutory duties are organised through criminal justice services, local 

authority social services, housing services and local health board provision. The role of the 

specialist sector enhances statutory delivery bringing expertise and knowledge that is not 

possible in the statutory sector and an ability to effectively engage with victims and survivors.  

Commissioned, and grant funded services, have historically evolved at the individual 

geographical level of the five constituent authorities in the region. Notably those services 

commissioned through the management of Welsh Government anti-poverty programme funding 

by local authorities.  More recently regionalised planning of the Supporting People Programme, 

through the Regional Collaborative Committee and the VAWDASV fund has determined 

regionalised arrangements, including the Regional VAWDASV Team and commissioned 

homelessness prevention services. Other Welsh Government programme funding i.e. Flying 

Start, Families First, and the former Communities First funding has been managed at local 

authority geographies. Due to the prevalence of VAWDASV in the casework of social services 

departments, core local authority funding has also been used to commission specialist services 

from the third sector to enhance statutory provision. There is, however, no local authority 

funding or commissioning of sexual violence services. Devolved and non-devolved funding 

models have presented an immediate risk to the sustainability of Sexual Assault Referral 

Centres (SARCs) as identified in the needs assessment that underpins this strategy. 

The Greater Gwent Health Social Care and Well-being Partnership Board is the statutory 

regional board under the Social Services and Well-being Act and has identified VAWDASV as a 

key strand in its Area Plan (under development). 

 

Specialist Sector 

There are currently 10 specialist sector providers in the region delivering a range of services 

that address violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. As the specialist 

sector has historically been operating on smaller geographies some services operate in smaller 

areas than the whole region, others more latterly provide services across the area.  

1. Barnardos 

2. BAWSO 

3. Cyfannol Womens Aid 

4. Hafan Cymru 

5. Llamau 

6. New Pathways 

7. Newport Women’s Aid 

Page 130



 

  17 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

8. Phoenix Domestic Abuse Services 

9. Victim Support/Connect Gwent 

10. SEWREC 

 

The specialist sector has developed in response to need over many years and while services 

may serve similar client groups the mechanisms and specialisms differ in each provider. In 

addition to the local sector provision, national services also exist. A current directory of services 

available in the region is held on the Gwent Adult Safeguarding Board website at: 

http://www.gwasb.org.uk/fileadmin/documents/Handout_7_-

_Gwent_VAWDASV_services_directory_3__amended_16.12.16_HG.pdf 

The VAWDASV needs assessment and strategic analysis includes further information on 

specialist services. 

 

There are multi-agency centres in each of the five local authorities that have been supported by 

Welsh Government capital funding. Historically this was managed by local authority Community 

Safety Partnerships and hence there is a ‘centre’, often termed a ‘one-stop shop’, in each local 

authority that provides a focus for support services to operate out of, and a centre for  victims, 

survivors and their families to receive services and programmes of support from the specialist 

sector. The benefits of multi-agency centres is that they are close to populations and therefore 

will continue to be important in the delivery of the Strategy going forward. Multi-agency centres 

across the region are either owned and provided by the local authority or the specialist sector. 

 

Other grant funding includes that which is devolved through the Police and Crime 

Commissioner and the Home Office. Aligned to criminal justice provision, the support for victims 

and the reduction in attrition of witness evidence in order to increase the conviction of 

perpetrators, the funding supports specialist Independent Sexual Violence Advisors (ISVA) and 

Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVA) positions. The Gwent Police and Crime 

Commissioner (along with Welsh Government) has funded a regionalised approach to IDVA 

provision  including support for posts across Gwent and a regional IDVA manager located within 

the Regional VAWDASV Team. 

Specialist criminal justice support for victim/witnesses through ISVA and IDVA positions also 

exist within specialist sector arrangements, including the local Sexual Assault Referral Centre 

(SARC), located in Risca. 

 

Public Sector 

Outside of the specialist sector public services across Gwent provide support and intervention 

as part of universal services.   

Multi-agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARACs) operate in each of the five local 

authority areas. Chaired by Gwent Police Detective Inspectors, with a fortnightly frequency of 

Page 131

http://www.gwasb.org.uk/fileadmin/documents/Handout_7_-_Gwent_VAWDASV_services_directory_3__amended_16.12.16_HG.pdf
http://www.gwasb.org.uk/fileadmin/documents/Handout_7_-_Gwent_VAWDASV_services_directory_3__amended_16.12.16_HG.pdf


 

  18 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

meetings, the MARACs discuss high risk cases referred from all partners to establish what 

further support is needed and to coordinate that support through the MARAC. 

Domestic Abuse Conference Calls (DACCs) are an early prevention mechanism with the aim of 

identifying interventions for victims who come to the attention of Gwent Police prior to MARAC 

threshold levels. The call has been replaced by a Mircrosoft Sharepoint package that currently 

delivers the necessary information on victims to all partners. DACCs are managed from the 

Gwent Police Public Protection Unit.   

Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements (“MAPPA”) operate in Gwent. These are 

designed to protect the public, including previous victims of crime, from serious harm by sexual 

and violent offenders. They require the local criminal justice agencies and other bodies dealing 

with offenders to work together in partnership in dealing with these offenders.  

WISDOM (Wales Integrated Serious and Dangerous Offender Management)  is a multi-agency 

team consisting of Probation, Police, Psychologists and other local partners working together to 

risk of serious harm through offending by integrating agencies in the management and 

supervision of offenders. Priority domestic abuse perpetrators fall within the WISDOM definition 

of high risk of causing serious harm and are the focus of the Gwent pilot. 

Violence against women, in its definition includes; female genital mutilation, forced marriage, so 

called ‘honour based’ violence and trafficking of women and has lead police officers within the 

Gwent Police Force structure to link closely to specialist Black Minority Ethnic (BME) support 

providers and national coordination mechanisms.  

Connect Gwent, the Gwent Police victims’ hub draws together specialist victim support services 

in a centrally managed location so that the most appropriate support can be identified and 

delivered to victims of crime. Connect Gwent receive all victims details electronically direct 

through Police systems and hence provide a further coordinating mechanism for VAWDASV 

victims where consent is given. 

Probation services, through the Her Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service and the Wales 

Community Rehabilitation Company, provide bespoke interventions and support for offenders 

with VAWDASV in their backgrounds. 

VAWDASV within the local health board is given focus through safeguarding structures. 

Mandated targeted enquiry exists through midwifery and health visiting services. The Aneurin 

Bevan University Health Board will also form part of the Gwent early adopter site for Ask and 

Act. More widely within the health board the links to the causative factors of VAWDASV e.g. 

mental health, substance misuse and the effects of VAWDASV ( i.e. injury, counselling needs) 

are acutely felt.  

The impacts on adults, children and young people exposed to VAWDASV are all too evident.  

Local Authority Social Care Services provide care and support to adults and children at risk of 

abuse or neglect.  All forms of VAWDASV feature significantly as presenting issues.  Ask and 

Act policy framework will support earlier disclosure and appropriate referral into services. 

 

 

Page 132



 

  19 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Housing Related Support 

Across Gwent the Supporting People Programme invests approximately £1.8 million in services 

for women and men who have experienced VAWDASV. These services include refuge 

provision, specialist refuge provision, floating support, drop in services, family support, 

specialist BME services, and target hardening. In addition the programme funding across the 

region enables people to receive other support that reduces their risk of becoming homeless 

including direct financial support and support for people with needs that often co-occur with 

VAWDASV e.g. mental health, substance misuse, debt etc. 

The Supporting People planning framework adopted across the region considers population 

needs through the Gwent Needs Mapping Exercise, performance information, stakeholder 

input, service user feedback, best practice, and legal and policy drivers. Plans exist at the 

regional level and within Local Commissioning Plans. A regional refuge equipped to address 

more complex needs is being developed in the South of Gwent to receive referrals from across 

the region. 

Registered Social Landlords, and in Caerphilly council ‘Caerphilly Homes’, have their own 

programmes of support that prioritise VAWDASV victims and provide target hardening so that 

they may stay in their own homes. 

 

Perpetrator Services 

Programmes to deter the continued and escalating abusive behaviour of perpetrators exist 

within Gwent although, as with the rest of the UK, some of these are relatively new and have 

strict criteria for inclusion. Within Gwent, in addition to court mandated programmes run by the 

Wales Community Rehabilitation Company (probation service), there are community based 

perpetrator programmes. These consist of a Barnardos programme based in Caerphilly and  

Newport (since January 2017) which are both funded by Social Services working with 

perpetrators where there is a recognised risk to children, and one operated by Phoenix 

Domestic Abuse Services in Blaenau Gwent which is open access for local residents and at 

cost for others. Programmes for young perpetrators (under 18 years of age) are run in Blaenau 

Gwent, Caerphilly and Newport usually through the local Youth Offending Services. These 

programmes focus on a mixture of intimate and adolescent inter-familial abuse. Work needs to 

be undertaken to understand perpetrator work in relation to early intervention and other forms of 

VAWDASV within all types of relationships. 

 

Training 

The region has been one of the Welsh Government early adopter sites for Ask and Act and as 

such has begun the roll out of Group 1, 2 and 3 of the National Training Framework to relevant 

authority staff across Gwent.  A suite of VAWDASV multi-agency training is delivered across the 

region raising awareness on specialist topics: Domestic Abuse; Sexual Violence; Working with 

Male Victims; ‘Honour-Based Violence’; Understanding Perpetrators; Effects upon Children; 

Coercive Control; referral into MARAC. 

 

Page 133



 

  20 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Healthy Relationships 

Across the region there are a range of healthy relationship programmes being delivered to 

children and young people both within educational and community settings.  Whilst there are a 

number of organisations delivering preventative work, within schools healthy relationship 

sessions are predominantly delivered as part of the Hafan Cymru Spectrum Programme funded 

by Welsh Government.   In addition schools across Gwent have their own provision and online 

resources around respectful and healthy relationships that they can access at their own pace.  

The Gwent Education Safeguarding Leads have been critical partners in identifying pilot sites 

within education for the early adoption of Ask and Act. 

 

5. NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

 
This Strategy has been informed by a VAWDASV needs assessment for the region, and an 

associated strategic analysis. The full assessment document and strategic analysis is available 

on request from Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk. The Partnership Board commissioned 

Welsh Women’s Aid to undertake the needs assessment, building on the 2014 work done as 

part of the Gwent Domestic Abuse Pathfinder Project. Further work has been done to analyse 

the results of the needs assessment through a strategic analysis to help define the strategy and 

delivery plan for the region. 

The needs assessment is linked to the Greater Gwent Health, Social Care & Well-being 

Partnership Population Needs Assessment required under the Social Services and Well-being 

(Wales) Act 2014. There is a commitment to ensure that this strategy and its underpinning 

needs assessment will be used as the basis for forward planning and to inform the Area Plan 

for the region.   

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence in Gwent 

It should be noted that a detailed demography and population profiles for individual local 

authorities is included in the five Public Services Board’s well-being assessments under the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Included within the Board’s assessment 

and analysis are snapshots from the abbreviated profile and population projections for the 

region contained within the Social Services and Well-being Act Population Needs Assessment: 

Gwent Regional Report (2016)12 In addition the Safer Gwent Strategic Assessment13, national 

data, and proxy data e.g. number of children on the child protection register has been included 

in the full assessment documen 

                                                           
12

 http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/PopulationNeedsAssessment(eng).aspx 
 
13

http://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Safer-Gwent-Strategic-Assessment-2016-

DRAFT-v3.pdf 

 

Page 134

mailto:Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s7459/04%20z%20PNA%20Draft%20Dec%202016.pdf
http://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Council-and-democracy/PopulationNeedsAssessment(eng).aspx
http://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Safer-Gwent-Strategic-Assessment-2016-DRAFT-v3.pdf
http://onenewportlsb.newport.gov.uk/documents/One-Newport/Safer-Gwent-Strategic-Assessment-2016-DRAFT-v3.pdf


 

  21 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Commissioning to meet needs 

Whilst it is important to recognise that this is not a commissioning strategy, its content and 

associated strategic delivery plan will inform the development of regional commissioning 

guidelines. It is important to consider key commissioning principles, drivers and barriers in 

terms of delivering the strategic priorities.  Currently the Partnership Board does not directly 

hold any budget for commissioning VAWDASV services. Services are commissioned by a wide 

range of funding sources and directly from funding providers to those services themselves, 

rather than through any centrally held procurement arrangements. Likewise, Board partners 

commit significant core funding to mitigate the effects of VAWDASV across the population. 

However, in developing this strategy the knowledge and expertise resides in the Board’s 

partners, and its operational groups.  It will be the aim of the Partnership Board to use this 

expertise at the earliest opportunity to guide commissioning across the region.  

For example, in order to deliver a mixed market of specialist support services for violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence survivors it is essential that we consider at 

an early stage the approach we will take and the principles we will adhere to when doing this.  

Our commissioning principles will be informed by the 10 procurement principles of The Welsh 

Public Procurement Policy14.  

This also takes into account the feedback that we have had from providers and survivors in 

terms of stability, consistency and continuity of services and will contribute to the delivery of 

strategic priorities. 

Accordingly we will develop commissioning principles based on: 

 Using the data and information contained within this strategy to inform our thinking in the 

development of a regional commissioning strategy. 

 Developing specifications that take into account the delivery of our strategic priorities for 

violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence in Gwent. 

 Considering the sustainability of funding for services and contributing to the Welsh 

Government scoping on a sustainable funding model for VAWDASV 

 Where possible, providing stability to the sector in terms of the duration of the 

contract(s) and funding for the lifetime of the contract for violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence  services  

 We will work collaboratively with our partners and stakeholders within the violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence sector and other associated 

sectors (for example, education) in the development and commissioning of a mixed 

market for violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services. 

Furthermore, during workshops with providers to map out and understand current and potential 

future referral pathways and survivor journeys a number of barriers were identified.  This led to 

                                                           
14

 Wales Procurement Policy Welsh Government 2015:  

Page 135

http://www.gov.wales/docs/prp/toolkit/june15walesprocurementpolicystatement2015
http://www.gov.wales/docs/prp/toolkit/june15walesprocurementpolicystatement2015


 

  22 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

the focus groups determining that it is essential that any eligibility criteria associated with 

accessing service provision is based solely on a need to access any violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence service rather than a level of risk, complexity or the 

availability of services. 

 

Page 136



 

  23 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

6. SURVIVORS AS EXPERTS 

  

This strategy recognises the vital importance of  collaborating with survivors and service users, 

who are ‘experts by experience’ in terms of what has worked for them, their pathways through 

services and how easy (or difficult) it has been to find the right service and move towards 

independence and freedom from abuse. 

‘Putting our opinion forward is most important’         ‘Our feedback matters’  

‘I can make a difference to others’         ‘I have a voice’  

(Strategy consultation – survivors)  

Local survivor engagement has informed the development of this Strategy and will continue to 

be an important aspect for delivery for the Partnership Board. Without the input and opinion of 

service users providers cannot shape service provision to be responsive to the very individual 

needs of victims and survivors. Service user perceptions provide the continuous opportunity to 

inform, refine and improve services.    

To underpin and inform the development of this strategy, two focus groups were held in Gwent 

with survivors who have been involved in services within the Region.  The purpose of the focus 

groups was to map the experiences of survivors and service users of specialist services in 

Gwent and to assess the coverage and availability of services. 

Following publication of the draft strategy the Regional Partnership consulted widely in the form 

of a survey monkey questionnaire and focus groups held with survivors.  This has been critical 

to further develop the strategy, and has significantly informed the intentions and understanding 

of our 6 strategic priorities as outlined in chapter 8.    

National survivor consultation has also informed this document taking the key findings of the 

Welsh Government “Are you listening and am I being heard?” report15.  This work was informed 

by 66 survivors who attended focus groups, having experienced a range of violence and abuse 

including domestic abuse, sexual violence, forced marriage, Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), 

‘honour-based violence’, sexual exploitation, trafficking and child sexual abuse. 

It is important to note that there was limited consultation with male survivors during the 

development of the strategy which has highlighted significant gaps in knowledge. The 

Partnership Board will endeavour to consult widely with all survivor groups including male 

victims and others who are affected by VAWDASV (including community support networks).  

Survivor consultation underpinned by best practice guidance for the Region, will continue to 

inform the delivery of this strategy.  

 

 

                                                           
15

http://www.welshwomensaid.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Are_you_listening_and_am_I_being_heard_

FINAL_July_2016.pdf   

Page 137

http://www.welshwomensaid.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Are_you_listening_and_am_I_being_heard_FINAL_July_2016.pdf
http://www.welshwomensaid.org.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/03/Are_you_listening_and_am_I_being_heard_FINAL_July_2016.pdf


 

  24 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Output from Consultations with Survivors 

The detail associated with the focus groups, together with the outputs and outcomes from other 
survivor consultation is included at Appendix 2, however, a summary of key points is provided 
below. 

 Survivors identified a number of key concerns in terms of the levels of awareness and 

knowledge when trying to get help, assistance and advice that were common across 

statutory services, encounters with GPs, ambulance and paramedics, and housing 

organisations. 

 Survivors felt that their experience may have been different if professionals had received 

appropriate training in order to be able to identify violence against women, domestic 

abuse and sexual violence and know who to inform.  

 Some survivors felt that in their encounters with (for example) social services (adults 

and children/young people), survivors reported that (it) frequently felt like “…a secondary 

source of victimisation…” and reported experiences of “bullying” in terms of their choices 

and decisions they needed to make.  

 The perception of some survivors was that services were sometimes disjointed with 

eligibility, access, and referral pathways not always clear, whilst services for women 

from black and minority communities were only available in certain areas and not always 

accessible throughout Gwent. However, it should be noted that this is not the perception 

of all survivors who were consulted. 

 Survivors expressed their fear of disclosing to Social Services in case their children 

were removed from their care. This view is also reinforced by perpetrators to exert 

further control over their victims. 

 Survivors recognised that the National Strategy includes priorities for action that if 

implemented would challenge the behaviours and actions of perpetrators, and they felt 

that this is very positive. They identified a number of actions in terms of how they felt 

perpetrators should receive harsher consequences for violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence offences and actions to address issues at an earlier 

age to prevent abusive behaviours. 

 Survivors felt that it is essential that trained staff from independent specialist violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services are co-located in a wide 

range of public services 

 Survivors (along with other stakeholders) identified a range of suggestions for improving 

services in Gwent, details of which are provided at Appendix 2. 

 

 

Page 138



 

  25 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

7. ENGAGEMENT FINDINGS 

 

Engagement and consultation was carried out with survivors (see Section 6 Survivors as 

Experts), specialist service providers, generic service providers, commissioners, stakeholders 

and Partnership Board members.   

Participants were highly engaged in providing both positive and negative observations of the 

current and future landscape. To achieve this level of engagement considerable effort was 

made to engage with contributors and to arrange one-to-one appointments and/or focus groups.  

Contributors were also offered the option of filling in a questionnaire. 

The information gathered during this process formed a broad spectrum of opinion.  Issues 

highlighted can be matched to the Welsh Government six national strategic objectives (see 

Chapter 8) and are presented within Appendix 2. 

Key concerns are outlined below: 

 Lack of understanding amongst professionals leading to reduced confidence in 

professional contacts. 

 Both recognition and concern over the preventative and pastoral role of education in 

dealing with issues of VAWDASV. 

 The effectiveness of services aimed at holding perpetrators to account and the 

consistency and availability of provision across the region. 

 The persistent difficulty to prioritise and define early intervention. 

 Consistency and sustainability of training. 

 The lack of an integrated referral pathway into services and how to ensure that services 

are sustainable long term. 

 Perceived victim blaming by statutory services  

The findings from this engagement process are fully integrated within the Partnership Boards 

Strategic Priorities going forward. 

 

 

Page 139



 

  26 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

8. HOW WE WILL ACT TOGETHER TO TACKLE VAWDASV: OUR STRATEGIC 

PRIORITIES 

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence impacts upon all services, not 

least adult and children’s social services, housing, criminal justice, education, the police, health 

services, and voluntary and community organisations. This strategy will further enable a 

coordinated community response within Gwent in order to reduce the prevalence and impact of 

violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and increase the awareness and 

ability to act swiftly and effectively within communities and professionals.  

The Partnership Board want to ensure that all agencies and organisations within the region 

respond effectively to the challenges and issues both within their own organisations and in 

collaboration with partners and stakeholders to prevent harm, reduce risk and increase the 

immediate and long term safety of people living within the region. 

In line with The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, we intend to deliver on the 

actions within this strategy using the “sustainable development principle” and follow five ways of 

working to ensure we work collaboratively with people and communities, avoid repeating past 

mistakes and tackle some of the long terms challenges we face. 

Accordingly we will achieve this by: 

 Prevention: Recognising that early intervention is the primary overarching principle to 

tackling VAWDASV and improving outcomes for victims and those closest to them, 

particularly children in families.  

 Integration: Consider how the violence against women domestic abuse and sexual 

violence objectives impact upon each of the well-being goals16, and on the objectives 

and priorities of other key statutory services strategies. 

 Collaboration: Members of The Partnership Board will work collaboratively with partners 

and stakeholders to ensure that the actions, objectives and targets of this strategy are 

met. 

 Involvement: We will ensure that we engage and involve the right people at the right 

time with a focus on survivor engagement. 

 Long Term: We will approach regional commissioning and the implementation of an 

agreed sustainable funding model pragmatically and ensure that the short term needs of 

survivors continue to be met whilst any longer term reconfiguration is undertaken 

 

We will also ensure the efficient integration of services in terms of the effective management 

and delivery of specialist violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence services 

                                                           
16

 The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Page 140

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted


 

  27 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

so that service beneficiaries receive a continuum of preventive, safe and supportive services, 

according to their needs that is consistent throughout the region. 

The seven well-being goals contained within the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 

2015 underpin the objectives which are enshrined within the key thematic purpose of the 

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 (the Act): 

 Prevention 

 Protection 

 Support 

Preventing violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence is the predominant 

outcome that the Partnership Board will focus its efforts on. The associated Delivery Plan will 

align its milestones and targets against the above themes and the strategic priorities. 

Preventing violence and abuse 

Violence against women and girls has been described as 'perhaps the most pervasive violation 

of human rights across the globe' 17 yet it is entirely preventable.  

The priorities identified within this strategy and accompanying Strategic Delivery Plan will 

ensure that The Partnership Board continues to build upon the collaborative approach to 

preventing violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence from happening, by 

challenging the attitude and behaviours which foster it, intervening early, where possible, to 

prevent its recurrence, reducing the impact of violence against women, domestic abuse and 

sexual violence and working toward a future where it is eliminated. 

 We will actively work together with schools, government, health, the police/criminal 

justice system, local authorities, and the community to work in a coordinated and 

collaborative way to raise the awareness of violence against women, domestic abuse 

and sexual violence to stop abuse before it begins. 

 We want to be confident that all professionals within our area are equipped with the 

knowledge to effectively respond to any disclosures of violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence.  

Protection  

Protection of survivors is a critical aspect of the coordinated response to violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and The Partnership Board is committed to 

working collaboratively to protect those who are experiencing violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence from suffering further harm, and protect any children within 

the family.   

                                                           
17

  http://www.un.org/press/en/1999/19990308.sgsm6919.html 

Page 141

http://www.un.org/press/en/1999/19990308.sgsm6919.html


 

  28 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 Through collaborative working with partners we will ensure that alleged perpetrators of 

abuse in Gwent are dealt with appropriately and that survivors and their children are 

given protection against further abuse. 

 We want to further develop the evidence base on different manifestations of violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence to help inform regional targeted 

and innovative approaches. 

 We will consider the evidence base for what works in the context of perpetrator 

programmes, identify and disseminate good practice. 

 

Support 

Providing effective support services for people who have been affected by violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence is complex, as people’s experiences and needs 

can be vastly different.  However, we will work with partners to promote a supportive culture that 

is underpinned by a range of services that respond to individuals and their families. 

Specialist services in Gwent have adopted an empowerment approach which seeks to restore 

the control to survivors that is stolen by violence. The support they provide creates an 

environment in which survivors can exercise choice and self-determination.  

Gwent has a range of excellent services established over many decades.  Access to such 

services is a right for survivors when suffering domestic violence or abuse, when at risk of 

forced marriage or female genital mutilation, when subject to abuse related to sexual violence, 

prostitution, and all other forms of gender based violence.  The Partnership Board will ensure 

that this good practice is replicated across the region and that the availability of services is 

consistent.      

 We want anyone experiencing violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 

violence to be aware of the support that is available within Gwent and have the 

confidence to access them 

 We want survivors to be able to access the service that they need, delivered in the right 

place and at the right time on their recovery  journey 

 

Strategic Priorities 

The Partnership Board has set a clear rationale for identifying the six Strategic Priorities based 

upon the evidence provided:  

 

Strategic Priority 1: Increase awareness and challenge attitudes of violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence across Gwent. 

Survivors felt that there were people in all services who lacked the necessary knowledge, 

understanding and empathetic attitude to encourage confidence to disclose violence against 

Page 142



 

  29 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence.  We need to increase awareness for all staff 

within public services; we need also to challenge public perceptions. We need members of the 

community to spot the signs and know where there is support available.  At the same time we 

need to send a clear message that these forms of abuse are not acceptable.  

‘The media, family, schools and employers all need awareness’. 

 ‘People need practical advice on safe ways to contact the police or 

other agencies’.  

‘[We] need to get this issue into public consciousness’  

(Strategy consultation responses – survivors) 

  

Strategic Priority 2: Increase awareness in children and young people of the 

importance of safe, equal and healthy relationships and that abusive behaviour is 

always wrong 

Survivors felt that there was not enough education about healthy relationships and gender 

equality to prevent future abusive behaviour particularly where children had already been 

subjected to violence and abuse in their own homes. Raising awareness of safe and healthy 

relationships enables young people to differentiate between what is acceptable and 

unacceptable behaviour. It is also important that we educate children and young people to know 

that help is available, as well as how to access that support.  

‘I met him when I was 13.  He used to stand outside the school’.   

‘Schools have firework safety sessions every year, but we need to do 

something with VAWDASV which is happening every day of the year’.  

(Strategy consultation responses - survivors) 

 

Strategic Priority 3: Increase focus on holding perpetrators to account and provide 

opportunities to change their behaviour based around victim safety 

There is a need for increased understanding of the current provision across Gwent and 

development of best practice guidance for commissioning services which prioritises victim 

safety.  If we do not hold perpetrators to account we give them no incentive to change their 

behaviour. At the same time we need to provide a clear message about what behaviour/s are 

acceptable in our society.  Some survivors felt that perpetrator programmes did not always 

consider the safety of victim/survivor and any children as a primary focus. Work with 

perpetrators cannot happen in isolation and needs to be rooted in victim safety and prevention. 

If the cycle is to be broken, there is a huge role to play for all services. 

‘The cord is cut once you go to court…if a perpetrator is found not guilty 

in court they can walk down any street and knock on any door…the 

victim has to change their whole life’.   

‘Perpetrator programmes are ‘enigmas that need much more research’’.  

(Strategy consultation responses – survivors) 

Page 143



 

  30 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Strategic Priority 4: Make early intervention and prevention a priority  

Providers tell us that there are many lost opportunities to make every intervention an effective 

and preventative one. Domestic Homicide Reviews highlight missed opportunities to intervene.  

We need professionals and members of the community, to recognise signs, to safely ask 

questions and take appropriate action.  A focus on prevention is important if we are to break the 

cycle of abuse and will mean working holistically to tackle VAWDASV, including working with 

perpetrators, undertaking awareness raising work across all communities including children and 

young people. Providers have expressed concern about prioritising early intervention and 

prevention alongside other competing priorities for the public sector. We must ensure early 

intervention and prevention is core business across all Strategic Priorities.  

‘Support can be good from GPs but you need to be able to have a voice.  

It takes time to build a relationship which is difficult in 10 minutes’.  

‘’Survivors spoke of the need to promote early awareness to by-standers 

so ‘individuals feel empowered to speak up’’.  

(Strategy consultation – survivors) 

 

Strategic Priority 5: Relevant professionals are trained to provide effective, timely and 

appropriate responses to victims and survivors 

It is clear from the evidence that disclosures are made by survivors and their families to a range 

of public services.  Survivors felt there was a need for more consistency between services e.g. 

police, housing and support services.  Some survivors felt that staff in both statutory and other 

professional services were not trained and/or did not have the confidence to pick up on issues 

raised, albeit that this may be indirect. The National Training Framework (NTF) aims to 

strengthen the response amongst those offering specialist or universal services.   It aims to 

bring quality assurance and consistency with respect to training professionals around 

VAWDASV issues. Through the NTF we will improve responses across public services, 

promoting early intervention and providing a gateway for victims to access appropriate forms of 

help and support.   

‘Professionals kind of know what you’re going through but they don’t 

acknowledge it because then they would need to do something with the 

information’.  

 ‘Referral process is like walking on hot coals’.  

 ‘I went to the GP every Monday after an incident and I just wanted him 

to ask why are you here? What is happening?’  

 (Strategy consultation – survivors) 

 

Page 144



 

  31 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Strategic Priority 6: Provide victims with equal access to appropriately resourced, high 

quality, needs led, strength based, gender responsive services throughout the region. 

Providing support to people affected by VAWDASV can be complex and people’s experience 

and needs can be vastly different. Survivors will choose to engage with services in a variety of 

ways; there needs to be a range of services that are accessible and can respond effectively and 

universally to these needs.   Survivors felt that there were not enough experts based in key 

disclosure points like police stations, hospitals and GP surgeries, The Needs Assessment 

highlighted some of the gaps and capacity issues in specialist service provision.  Providers of 

services raised concerns over insecure funding. Services that are strength- based increase 

resilience, independence and a life free from abuse. Public services, community and voluntary 

organisations and independent specialist services all have a key role to play.  We will focus on 

working collaboratively to develop a framework for service delivery that is sustainable, informed 

by survivors and enables clear referral pathways into specialist services.  

‘You can’t overturn a situation on your own when you’re already 

vulnerable.  Living in fear all the time you are a nervous wreck.  [You] 

don’t always have control over your responses’.   

‘You have to stand on the other side of the glass and explain why you 

are there – people in the waiting room can hear…we need opportunities 

to speak alone’  

 ‘Referral process is like walking on hot coals’  

 ‘Once you’ve told someone you need to leave straight away’ 

 ‘Getting help was the best thing that’s ever happened to me’   

(Strategy consultation – survivors) 

 

There will be critical challenges to achieving these which the underpinning engagement 

work and Needs Assessment has articulated.   

 

9. HOW WE WILL MONITOR OUR PROGRESS: OUR STRATEGIC DELIVERY 

PLAN 

 

The Partnership Board will provide the governance structure to develop, approve and monitor 

this joint regional strategy as required by Local Authorities and Local Health Boards under the 

Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015.   

There will be formal lines of reporting from the Partnership Board into Public Services Boards, 

Safeguarding Boards and other regional partnerships with opportunities identified to influence 

and inform regional strategic planning. The cross-working and aligned work plans across adults 

and children’s safeguarding structures will assist in the delivery of this strategy.  

Page 145



 

  32 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 

Measuring the progress of the Strategy 

Welsh Ministers are required to publish annual reports of the progress made towards achieving 

both the objectives in the National Strategy and achievement towards the purpose of the 

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015. Section 11 

of the Act also requires Welsh Ministers to ‘publish national indicators that may be applied for 

the purpose of measuring progress towards the achievement of the purpose of this Act.’ The 

national indicators will measure collective national progress in achieving the purpose of the Act.  

Regionally, these National Indicators present agencies and partnerships in Gwent with a 

renewed opportunity to work towards a quality assured coordinated and coherent measurement 

framework and to mainstream violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence 

data across wider policy areas, in a way that aligns with these national indicators.  

The Partnership Board will identify regional outcomes and indicators to measure progress and 

success in delivering this Strategy which, along with the National Indicators, will help public 

bodies, other stakeholders and communities to understand the extent to which our priorities are 

being achieved. 

Regional data will also be used to inform national progress reports, referred to above, which will 

help demonstrate how effective we have been in achieving the Strategic Priorities set out in this 

regional and National Strategy. 

In recognising its role as the ‘Pathfinder Region’ the Partnership Board will commit to 

influencing and contributing to the national VAWDASV agenda.   

 

The Strategic Delivery Plan 

The Strategic Delivery Plan which accompanies this strategy is a working document that 

outlines The Partnership Boards commitment to the next 12 months activity.  The 6 Strategic 

Priorities detailed within the Delivery Plan will contribute to the pursuit of the prevention of 

violence and abuse, the protection of victims and the support of all those affected.   

The statutory responsibilities under the VAWDASV (Wales) Act 2015 will be discharged through 

the VAWDASV Partnership Board and annual reporting against this Regional Strategy and its 

Delivery Plan will be submitted to Gwent Public Services Boards and incorporated into Well-

being plan reporting. 

In developing this strategy and its underpinning research, the on-going work and the focus of 

the Partnership Board has been defined.   The work undertaken to date has provided the region 

with an overview of provision whilst revealing gaps in knowledge and data and that will be 

necessary to address in the immediate and longer term.    

Through its Strategic Delivery Plan the Board has set clear objectives that address each of the 

6 Strategic Priorities and the means by which to achieve these.   The Partnership Board will be 

committed to building on successful work with the specific aim of strengthening and progressing 

provision collaboratively across all areas. 

Page 146



 

  33 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

The Partnership Board through its Strategic Delivery Group will be responsible for the 

implementation and monitoring of the Strategic Delivery Plan. This document is available on 

request from Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk.  Through its communication framework the 

Partnership Board will ensure that information relating to this Strategy reaches the relevant 

audience by a variety of different methods which are relevant to their needs.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 147

mailto:Vawdasv.Gwent@newport.gov.uk


 

  34 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Appendix 1   

UNDERSTANDING THE LANGUAGE USED 

 

1. Definitions of abuse (Gwent Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Violence Partnership Board Terms of Reference). 

Violence Against Women 

The United Nations defines “Violence against Women” as a "form of discrimination against 

women and a violation of human rights and shall mean all acts of gender-based violence that 

results in, or is likely to result in, physical, sexual or mental harm or suffering to women, 

including threats of such acts, coercion or arbitrary deprivation of liberty, whether occurring in 

public or in private life." 

Domestic Abuse 

According to the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 

2015 domestic abuse means ‘abuse where the victim of it is or has been associated with the 

abuser. This can be committed by an intimate partner, ex-partner, spouse, civil partner or family 

relative’ (a full definition of intimate and familial relations can be accessed within the Act).  

The abuse can be physical, sexual, psychological, emotional or financial abuse.  

This is in line with the Home Office’s definition of domestic abuse as ‘any incident or pattern of 

incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 

16 or over who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or 

sexuality’. 

The Serious Crime Act 2015 legally defines the offence of coercive and controlling behaviour 

within intimate or familial relations as domestic abuse. ‘Controlling behaviour is a range of acts 

designed to make a person subordinate and/or dependent by isolating them from sources of 

support, exploiting their resources and capacities for personal gain, depriving them of the 

means needed for independence, resistance and escape and regulating their everyday 

behaviour. 

Coercive behaviour is an act or a pattern of acts of assaults, threats, humiliation and 

intimidation or other abuse that is used to harm, punish or frighten their victim’.  

Rape and sexual violence 

Sexual violence is any unwanted sexual act or activity. According to the Violence against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 sexual violence means sexual 

exploitation, sexual harassment, or threats of violence of a sexual nature. The act further 

defines sexual exploitation as something that is done to or in respect of a person which 

warrants an offence under Part 1 of the Sexual Offences Act 2003.This includes the following 

definitions: 

Page 148



 

  35 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

 Rape is when a person intentionally penetrates the vagina, anus or mouth of another 

person with his penis when that other person does not consent to the penetration, 

and/or he does not reasonably believe that the other person consents.  

 Assault by penetration is the intentional sexual penetration of the vagina or anus of 

another person with a part of the person’s body or anything else, when that other person 

does not consent to the penetration, and/or he does not reasonably believe that the 

other person consents. 

 Sexual assault is a person intentionally touching another person sexually in a manner to 

which the other person does not consent to the touching, and/or the person does not 

reasonably believe that the other person consents. 

 Child sex offences including rape or any sexual activity with a child, familial child sex 

offences and meeting a child following sexual grooming. 

 

Sexual harassment 

According to the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 

2015 harassment means a course of conduct (including speech) by a person which he or she 

knows or ought to know amounts to harassment of the other. For incidents that took place after 

1st October 2005 there are two types of sexual harassment – unwanted contact on the grounds 

of your sex and unwanted physical verbal or non-verbal conduct of a sexual nature. 

Gender Based Violence 

According to the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 

2015 gender-based violence means: 

 Violence, threats of violence or harassment arising directly or indirectly from values, 

beliefs or customs relating to gender or sexual orientation.  

 

This includes ‘Honour based violence’ which can be distinguished from other forms of 

violence, as it is often committed with some degree of approval and/or collusion from 

family and/or community members.  Examples may include murder, un-explained death 

(suicide), fear of or actual forced marriage, controlling sexual activity, domestic abuse 

(including psychological, physical, sexual, financial or emotional abuse), child abuse, 

rape, kidnapping, false imprisonment, threats to kill, assault, harassment, forced 

abortion.  This list is not exhaustive. 

 

 Female genital mutilation which is an act that is an offence under sections 1, 2 or 3 of 

the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003. 

 

Page 149



 

  36 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

FGM also known as female circumcision or female genital cutting, is defined by the 

World Health Organisation (WHO) as "all procedures involving partial or total removal of 

the external female genitalia or other injury to the female genital organs for non-medical 

reasons"  as defined by the World Health Organisation (WHO). 

 

 Forcing a person (whether by physical force or coercion by threats or other 

psychological means) to enter into a religious or civil ceremony of marriage (whether or 

not legally binding).This is commonly known as Forced Marriage. The pressure put on 

people to marry against their will can be physical (including threats, actual physical 

violence and sexual violence) or emotional and psychological (for example, when 

someone is made to feel like they’re bringing shame on their family). Financial abuse 

(taking your wages or not giving you any money) can also be a factor. 

 

2. Glossary 

Victim/Survivor:  The term used to describe the person who is potentially experiencing 

violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. Other terms encompassed may 

include; ‘service user’ ‘client’ and ‘patient’ and reflect the terms used by different organisations 

to define their relationship to the person at risk.   In practical terms it is suggested that the 

person experiencing these issues selects the term they prefer, where a term is required. 

Public Service:  Public services are services delivered for the benefit of the public, supported 

via government, to serve people in a particular society or community.  This can include services 

delivered through the third sector, through social enterprise or through services that are 

contracted out. 

Local Authority:  A county council or county borough council 

Relevant authorities:  county councils and county borough councils, Local Health Boards, fire 

and rescue authorities and NHS trusts 

VAWDASV specialist sector:  Third sector organisations whose core business is violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. 

Independent Domestic Violence Adviser (IDVA):  Trained specialist worker who provides 

short to medium-term casework support for high risk victims of domestic abuse.  

Independent Sexual Violence Adviser (ISVA):  Trained specialist worker who provides 

support to victims/survivors of rape and sexual assault. 

BME/BAME – Black and Minority Ethnic or Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic is the terminology 

used to describe people of non-white descent. 

Ask and Act:  A process of targeted enquiry across the Welsh Public Service in relation to 

violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence. 

Page 150



 

  37 
Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy Draft  

Target Hardening:  Target hardening is a means with which to make a property safer for the 

resident and reduce the risk of attack in this case by the perpetrator of domestic abuse. (It 

should be part of a ‘spectrum’ of services made available to help to protect victims of domestic 

abuse alongside support in the community, access to refuge provision, involvement of the 

police or other statutory services and programmes for perpetrators of domestic abuse - 

Domestic Abuse and Housing in Wales Factsheet (CIH Cymru 2013) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Scrutiny Report 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  28 February 2018 
 

Subject: Forward Work Programme Update  
 

Author  Overview and Scrutiny Officer  

 
The following officers have been invited to attend for this item:  
 
Meryl Lawrence - Overview and Scrutiny Officer. 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 

 
 
2. Context 
 
2.1 The purpose of a forward work programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation and 

focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function.  Effective work 
programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive 
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
2.2 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward 

work programme.  In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have 
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and 
evaluating it.  The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny 
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely and 
well-planned manner. 

 

1. Recommendations to the Committee 

 
 The Committee is asked to: 
 

(i) Endorse the proposed schedule for the next two Committee meetings; 
 

(ii) Confirm the topics to be considered, the invitees for each item, and indicate whether any 
additional information or research is required; and  

 

(iii) Note the list of reports that have been sent to the Committee for information over the last 
month.  
 

Page 153

Agenda Item 7



 

 

2.3 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring 
new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s Scrutiny 
webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny). 

3. Information Submitted to the Committee 

 
3.2 The following information is attached: 
 
 Appendix 1: The current Committee forward work programme; 
 Appendix 2: List of information Reports sent to the Committee over the last month.  
  

Section B – Supporting Information 

4 Risk  

 
4.1 If proper work programming procedures are not put in place, the organisation and prioritisation of 

the work programme is put at risk.  The work of Overview and Scrutiny could become disjointed 
from the work of the rest of the Council, which could undermine the positive contribution 
Overview and Scrutiny makes to service improvement through policy development.  

 
4.2 This report is presented to each Committee every month in order to mitigate that risk.  The 

specific risks associated with individual topics on the work programme will need to be addressed 
as part of the Committee’s investigations. 

 

5 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  

 
5.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and 

Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the 
delivery of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-
planned manner.   

 

6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 There will be financial consequences for some of the reviews undertaken. These will be 

commented upon by the Head of Finance as the reports are presented. The preparing and 
monitoring of the work programme is done by existing staff for which budget provision is 
available.   

 
 

Background Papers 
 
Scrutiny Handbook  
  
 

Page 154

http://www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny


Appendix 1 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships   

– Forward Work Programme  
 

Wednesday 25 April 2018 at 5pm 

Topic Invitees Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Shared Resource 
Service (SRS) 
Update  

R Cornwall, Head of People 
and Business Change; 
Chief Officer of Shared 
Resource Service (SRS). 

Update on the Partnership 
arrangements since its inception 
in April 2017. 

Review of PSB 
Scrutiny 
Arrangements 
 

E Blayney, Senior Overview & 
Scrutiny Officer. 
T McKim, Partnership Policy 
and Involvement Manager 

Summary of work undertaken by 
this Committee in the last year. 
Update on the recommendations 
in the PSB final report. 

 

Wednesday 6 June 2018 at 5pm 

Topic Invitees Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Wellbeing Plan 
 

R Cornwall, 
Head of People & business 
Change; 
T McKim, Partnership Policy and 
Involvement Manager; 
E Wakeham, Senior Policy and 
Partnership Officer and Chair of 
Well-being Plan Sub-Group. 

Receive the Final Plan 

Single Integrated 
Plan – Year End 
 

R Cornwall, Head of People and 
Business Change (Overall 
Responsibility for Partnerships); 
B Owen,  
Strategic Director - Place 
(Economy & Skills Theme Lead); 
W Beer, Public Health Wales 
(Health & Wellbeing Theme Lead); 
Chief Inspector D Morgan, Gwent 
Police  
(Safe & Cohesive Theme Lead) 

Performance Scrutiny of the 
PSB Partnership and its 
performance against the SIP 
objectives 

 

Wednesday 20 June 2018 at 5pm 

Topic Invitees Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Education 
Achievement 
Services Contribution 
– Financial Year 
2017-18 and Value 
for Money Model for 
Commissioning 
Arrangements 

Chief Education Officer 
 
EAS Representative 

 Detail of the financial 
contribution which the 
Council has made and the 
level of support which the 
EAS has provided to 
Newport over the financial 
year 2017/8 

 Information on a “Value 
For Money Model” so that 

Page 155



Appendix 1 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships   

– Forward Work Programme  
 

the approach developed 
could be applied more 
widely 

 

Education 
Achievement 
Services(EAS) 
Governor Support 

Chief Education Officer 

EAS Representative 

The level of support in place 
for Governors, responsibilities 
for funding this support and 
an assessment of the 
adequacy of resources for 
Governors. 

 

Wednesday 24 July 2018 at 5pm 

Topic Invitees Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Annual Forward Work 
Programme 

Scrutiny Officer To consider and approve its 
Work Programme for July 
2018-19 

 

Page 156



 Appendix 2 

List of Reports sent to the Committee for information  
Up to 21 February 2018  

 

Name of Report Date sent to 
Committee 

Comments Received 

 
None 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 

  

  

 

 

  

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Agenda in Welsh
	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 January 2018
	5 Education Achievement Service Business Plan 2018-2021
	APPENDIX 1
	3. ITEM 5A - Appendix 1 Supporting Evidence EAS Business Plan 18-21
	APPENDIX 2
	4. ITEM 5B - Appendix 2 EAS Business Plan
	APPENDIX 3
	5. ITEM 5C - Appendix 3 - LA Annex 2018-19
	APPENDIX 4
	6. ITEM 5D - Appendix 4  - Newport Mid Year Review 2017-18

	6 Draft Violence against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Strategy
	APPENDIX A
	8. ITEM 6A - Draft VAWDASV Strategy - changes pre 14 Feb 2018 Board

	7 Forward Work Programme Update
	10. ITEM 7A - FWP - App 1
	11. ITEM 7B - FWP - App 2


